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Chairman’s Statement

EREHREE

I am pleased to present the annual report of Kingdom Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Kingdom”,
“we”, “our” or the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022

(the “Year”).

2022 is a year when once in a century Covid-19 and changing times
are intertwined, it is also a year meaningful to Kingdom. This year,
with the tight cooperation and efforts of all employees, we overcame
many difficulties and achieved critical goals: the annual sales revenue
of Kingdom group exceeded RMB2 billion, reaching record high
again. As China’s largest exporter of linen yarn, Kingdom produced
21,725 tonnes (2021: 20,756 tonnes) of linen yarn during the Year
and our sales performance reached new height. Kingdom continued
to account for more than 40% of the total pure linen yarn export from
China during the Year, which maintained the Group’s leading position
as the largest pure linen yarn exporter in China for 20 consecutive
years.

We are ramping up the operation of factory in Ethiopia and targeting
to scale up to the designed annual capacity of 5,000 tonnes (based
on 24Nm specification) of linen yarn within a year or two.

Technological innovation of Kingdom has always been at the forefront
of the industry. The Group had 64 approved patents and 41 patent
applications pending approval as of 31 December 2022. These
achievements will gradually become Kingdom’s core competitiveness.

We work towards our commitment to the environment and strive
to reduce emissions with an objective to achieve carbon neutrality
ultimately. We are also collaborating with CottonConnect, a United
Kingdom based non-profit and social-oriented enterprise with a clear
mission to transform the linen industry for good, to develop the REEL
Linen Code of Conduct. The version 2.0 of the REEL Linen Code of
Conduct was published in May 2022. REEL Linen is a sustainability
driven initiative for brands which are committed for sourcing more
sustainable linen, including improving environment, quality and
traceability conditions in their supply chain factories and farms
worldwide. REEL stands for the idea of “Responsible Environment,
Enhanced Livelihood”, it implements sustainable development into
production practices. We will continue to promote the industrial
hemp yarn which is an equally environment friendly product.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company
believes that opportunities lie within crisis and remains confident in
the future of the Group’s operation and profitability. By leveraging on
some local government incentives, we will tap into the linen weaving
and fabric business with an aim to broaden different linen application
and ultimately creating a bigger market for linen yarn in general.

To show the Group’s appreciation to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) for their trust and support while reserving
resources for the Group’s immediate and future expansion, the
Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend for the
Year of HK$0.09 per ordinary share of the Company (“Share”) (2021:
HK$0.06).

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the entire staff for their
devotion and contributions in the past year. Further, | would also
like to express my sincere gratitude to the Shareholders and business
partners for their continuous support for the Group.

Ren Weiming
Chairman
Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 28 March 2022
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Five Year Financial Summary

LEMBREE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published

FEBRROLEMRFENREUREERER
BE EREETEEELMBTRERNBEES

audited financial statements and restated as appropriate, is set out ¥ NE%I) &HFUI T o
below.
Year ended 31 December
HE+-A=1+—-BHLEE
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E_C 5T & TECTE —NEF —N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFR AREFT AREBFT ARBTT AREFT
REVENUE A 2,021,055 1,799,690 1,057,426 1,499,560 1,245,643
Cost of sales HEMA (1,634,155) (1,508,105) (950,129) (1,136,293) (987,762)
Gross profit £7 386,900 291,585 107,297 363,267 257,881
Other income and gains Hit kS a 54,431 7,136 23,210 23,094 24,308
Selling and distribution costs HERDHMA (41,532) (34,381) (38,879) (49,453) (48,687)
Administrative expenses 1G5 (118,427) (98,406) (77,601) (82,399) (73,020)
Other expenses Hittfi% (13,192) (3,803) (16,847) (10,327) (6,818)
Finance costs BTSN (33,852) (39,044) (36,583) (22,148) (21,520)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary —RWBARANER 500 = 11,123 235 =
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX WEnEH (8518 234,828 123,087 (28,280) 222,269 132,144
Income tax (expense)/credit Fﬁ SH D) /HER (63,020) (32,587) 15,602 (62,163) (28,957)
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FREH /(58 171,808 90,500 (12,678) 160,106 103,187
Attributable to: FE(S
Owners of the parent FAREEA 175,696 88,223 (11,177) 154,941 102,006
Non-controlling interests Elz2 e (3,888) 2,277 (1,501) 5,165 1,181
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
As at 31 December
®+ZB=+-H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
k- k-3 “ET—& S —NE —N\F
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBFR ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT
Total assets BERE 2,904,922 2,789,467 2,646,648 2,741,751 2,127,748
Total liabilities BREEE (1,416,932) (1,438,851) (1,407,013) (1,447,838) (974,239)
Non-controlling interests ElFeiliy b (82,002) (84,890) (44,371) (45,689) (40,620)
1,405,988 1,265,726 1,195,264 1,248,224 1,112,889
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

Year 2022 is an exceptional year with both the effect of coronavirus
disease occurred in late 2019 (“COVID-19") and geo political tension
among different countries intertwined together. As the Chinese old
saying goes: Opportunities always come with threats.

China has been criticized for having locked down for too long,
which harmed the recovery of the economy and resulted in only 3%
GDP growth for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Year”). The
total export of textile yarns, fabrics and related products from China
recorded a 2% increase in value in U.S. dollar term during the Year,
according to the statistics of the General Administration of Customs
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC” or “China”). The market
price of cotton dropped by 31.9% in 2022 while the selling price of
linen yarn has recorded over 20% increase during the same period.

According to the statistics of the General Administration of Customs
of the PRC, the total volume of pure linen yarn exports from China
in 2022 has recorded a year-on-year decrease of approximately
8.0%, and Kingdom exported 11,477 tonnes of pure linen in 2022,
accounting for 53.3% of the total export volume of pure linen yarn
from China in 2022. In the trough of the economic cycle, the low
level of cotton yarn price may lead to a reduction in demand for
pure linen yarn from fashion brands and garment manufacturers,
which may favour cotton or cotton/linen blended yarn at such times
to enable products made of these materials to be more appealing to
relatively cost-conscious consumers. However, setting aside the price
factor, the market has proven that pure linen yarn is a preferred fabric
over linen mixed yarn. For years, the Group has been focusing on
upholding excellent product quality and offering tailored customer
services. As such, the Group has always been a key partner of major
overseas linen fabric and garment manufacturers.

Note:  Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified and restated
to conform with the current year’s presentation and accounting
treatment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE RO

During the Year, the Group’s pure linen yarn exports amounted to
11,477 tonnes (2021:
export continued to account for more than 40% of the total pure

14,138 tonnes). The Group’s pure linen yarn

linen yarn export from China, signifying the Group’s continuous
leading position as the largest pure linen yarn exporter in China for
20 consecutive years.

Revenue of the Group for the Year recorded a year-on-year
increase of approximately 12.3% to RMB2,021,055,000 (2021:
RMB1,799,690,000). Gross profit increased by approximately
32.7% year-on-year to RMB386,900,000 (2021: RMB291,585,000)
and overall gross margin increased to 19.1% in 2022 (2021:
16.2%). Profit for the Year was RMB171,808,000, as compared to
RMB90,500,000 for the year of 2021. Basic earnings per Share
amounted to RMB0.29 during the Year as compared to RMBO0.14 in
2021.

To reciprocate the Shareholders for their continuous support of the
Group while reserving resources for further expansions, the Board has
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.09 per Share
for the Year (2021: HK$0.06).

Major Markets and Customers

Being the largest linen yarn exporter in China, the Group has a
sales network covering over 20 countries and regions around the
world. In order to timely seize market opportunities, keep abreast of
market trends and deliver comprehensive and efficient services, the
Group has established presence in major overseas linen textile and
consumer markets. The Group currently has one subsidiary in Italy
and agents in Turkey, Portugal, Italy, Lithuania and Korea. The Group’s
subsidiary in ltaly keeps its own inventories so that it can serve
the immediate needs of and tighten its co-operation with high-end
customers in Europe. During the Year, revenue derived from overseas
sales amounted to RMB1,246,600,000, representing approximately
61.7% of the Group’s total revenue. In particular, revenue from
European Union (“EU”) countries amounted to approximately
RMB552,726,000, representing approximately 27.3% of the Group’s
total revenue, while revenue from non-EU countries amounted to
approximately RMB693,874,000, representing approximately 34.4%
of the Group’s total revenue.

During the Year, the Group’s top five exporting countries are ltaly,

Portugal, India, Turkey and Korea, which accounted for 80.6% of the
Group's total export revenue during the Year (2021: 80.5%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Domestic sales in China increased by approximately 15.1% during
the Year to RMB774,455,000, representing approximately 38.3% of
the Group’s total revenue. In light of the increasing income level,
there have been fundamental changes in the consumption patterns of
the general public in China. Consumers’ concerns have shifted from
purely satisfying practical needs to product quality and the ability
of the product to reflect their personal taste. Linen textiles are not
only anti-bacterial and comfortable, but also highly environmentally
friendly in their production process. Therefore, linen textiles perfectly
suit the taste of new-generation consumers who may have a stronger
preference for environmentally friendly and sustainable products.
Many leading domestic and overseas trend-setting brands and fast-
moving fashion brands have now embarked on their own linen
selection. For example, a famous Japanese brand has not only
launched a linen garment line, but has also introduced a tracking
system for the use of its raw materials to allow it and its consumers to
monitor the quality and environmental-friendliness of its products.

EEE R h

HEMNEAEERERNENGI5.1%E AR
774,455,0007T  {h AN E B AR A XI38.3% o BEE
R EEANBRUAKE LT HERTLEE TR
AHEE HEENIB A ERTER SR KRR
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Sales Analysis by Domestic and Overseas Markets

BRI TIAHE 24

Year-on-year  Year-on-year
For the year ended For the year ended change in change in
31 December 2022 31 December 2021 revenue revenue
HE-E-C HEZ_ZT--& KA KA
+ZA=+—HLEE +ZA=+—HLEE REEH BEEH
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % RMB'000 %

ARETR ARETT AREFT
China i 774,455 38.3% 673,137 37.4% 101,318 15.1%
European Union BLER 552,726 27.3% 563,110 31.3% (10,384) -1.8%
Non-European Union JEERR 693,874 34.4% 563,443 31.3% 130,431 23.1%
Total Revenue A 2,021,055 100.0% 1,799,690 100.0% 221,365 12.3%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

ERE RO

Raw Material Procurement and Related Strategies

During the Year, market prices of fibre flax, the major raw material in
producing linen yarn, remained stable. The Group mainly sources its
fibre flax from well-established origins such as France and Belgium.
Being one of the largest buyers in these regions, the Group enjoys
strong bargaining power when dealing with suppliers. Furthermore,
the Group has formulated systematic procurement strategies under
which the Group will procure raw materials according to the level of
fibre flax harvest, the Group’s inventory and the market prices of fibre
flax so as to stabilise its raw material costs, the overall market demand
and supply, as well as reduce the price fluctuations of raw materials.

The Group also procures industrial hemp fibre for production
of hemp yarn in its factory in Heilongjiang, China. Kingdom
collaborates with local farmers to secure stable supply of hemp fibre
in China with the aim to further stabilise the price and supply of raw
materials. The Group is also building a warehouse in Heilongjiang
to manage the storage, logistics and supply chain of hemp materials
with a vision to transforming Heilongjiang into a national trading hub
of hemp materials in China.

The Group is also collaborating with CottonConnect, a UK non-profit
and social-oriented enterprise with a clear mission to transform the
linen industry for good, to develop the REEL Linen Code of Conduct.
REEL Linen is a sustainability-driven initiative for brands which are
committed to sourcing more sustainable linen, and contents of the
initiative includes improving the environment, product quality and
traceability conditions in their supply chain factories and farms
worldwide. REEL stands for the idea of “Responsible Environment,
Enhanced Livelihood”, it implements sustainable development into
production practices.

2022 Annual Report — &~ " F £
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Production Bases and Productivity

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had four production bases in
China and one production base in Ethiopia. The Group’s production
bases are continuously under improvement. New production bases
are equipped with the latest management systems, technologies and
equipment, a combination of which has resulted in smooth operation
and reduced unnecessary procedures and wastage of raw materials,
improving the Group’s overall production efficiency. These systems
have not only made the production processes more environmentally
friendly, but have also reduced the production costs of the Group
and have laid a solid foundation of profit growth for the Group in
the long run. For further details of the measures taken by the Group
in relation to environmental protection, please refer to the separate
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group for the
Year, which is expected to be despatched together with the annual
report of the Company for the Year before the end of April 2023.

China

The Group’s production base in Rugao City, Jiangsu Province, the
PRC has an annual production capacity of 6,000 tonnes. Two other
production bases are located in Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC. The first Haiyan plant has an annual production capacity
of 7,000 tonnes and the second Haiyan plant has an annual
production capacity of 5,000 tonnes. The Group has established a
fourth production facility in Heilongjiang Province in China with an
annual capacity of 5,000 tonnes for flax and industrial hemp yarn.
Currently, the designated annual linen and industrial hemp yarn
production capacity of the Group amounts to 23,000 tonnes based
on standardized 24Nm specification. During the Year, the utilization
of the four production bases in China were high and they were
operated at near full capacity.

The Group owns 75.34% equity interest in the flax and industrial
hemp yarn manufacturing facility in Heilongjiang and it is the
Group’s maiden attempt to explore the industrial hemp yarn market,
as the Company believes industrial hemp yarn market will grow
rapidly in the next few years due to the national policy in China to
promote the planting of industrial hemp in the Heilongjiang region
and the use of the industrial hemp textile products.

EEE R h
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Ethiopia

The Group is also committed to investing in Ethiopia for new
production facilities and has acquired a parcel of land with a site area
of 300,000 square meters located in Adama Industrial Park, Adama,
Ethiopia. The phase one development of this land parcel has further
boosted the annual production capacity of the Group by 5,000
tonnes. The Board believes that the federal government of Ethiopia
is keen to develop the Kingdom Linen Yarn Factory constructed on
this land parcel and develop it into one of the model projects of the
“Belt & Road” initiative in Ethiopia. The Chinese government also
encouraged manufacturers to expand overseas by expanding the
scope of political risk insurance coverage of insurances offered by
state-owned insurance companies. The Ethiopia project will generate
savings on land lease, labour, energy, tax and custom duty for
exports of linen yarn manufactured in Ethiopia to a vast number of
countries in the world. Despite there being on and off ethno-political
conflicts since October 2016, which has led to the resignation of the
former Prime Minister of Ethiopia in February 2018, the Government
of Ethiopia has reaffirmed their commitment in maintaining the
industrialization agenda that has already been initiated. With the
new Ethiopian Prime Minister Abiy Ahmed Ali being awarded with
the Nobel Peace Prize in 2019, the Board believes that the strategic
investment in Ethiopia will have a long-term benefit to the Group.
The factory in Ethiopia commenced production in the second half of
2021 and has been gradually ramping up its scale of production to its
designed capacity.

Existing and planned production bases

No. Factory Location Country
Wik R Uk EIES
1 Haiyan 1st Factory Zhejiang China
BE—HAKE L FREY
2 Rugao Factory Jiangsu China
MR E TLER fhEY
3 Haiyan 2nd Factory Zhejiang China
“HAmRE iiipal FREY
4 Qinggang Factory Heilongjiang China
BB REeL FREY
5 Ethiopia Adama Ethiopia
REMELED lape$:3 EMELE
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FERE

(Mg) FIAE KR

Utilisation/Status
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Patents, Awards and Recognition

The Group has continued to invest in technology and innovation. As
at 31 December 2022, the Group owned 64 registered patents and
there were another 41 patent applications pending formal approval
by relevant authorities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Year, the Group’s revenue grew by approximately 12.3% to
approximately RMB2,021,055,000 (2021: RMB1,799,690,000). The
growth of revenue was mainly attributable to the increased selling
price of pure linen yarn during the Year. During the Year, sales to
China and non-EU markets grew by 15.1% and 23.1% respectively,
while sales to EU market slightly dropped by 1.8% on a year-on-year
basis.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the Year, the Group’s gross profit reached RMB386,900,000,
representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 32.7% (2021:
RMB291,585,000). Gross profit margin for the Year increased by 2.9
percentage points to 19.1% (2021: 16.2%) as a result of increased
selling prices of pure linen yarn during the Year.

Other Income and Gains

For the Year, the Group recorded a net gain of RMB54,431,000
(2021: RMB7,136,000) for its other income and gains, which mainly
comprises of interest income of RMB2,173,000 (2021: RMB234,000),
various government grants which amounted to RMB12,863,000
(2021: RMB4,641,000) and a net exchange gain of RMB37,087,000
mainly due to United States Dollars having appreciated by 9.2%
against Renminbi during the year (2021:
RMB162,000).

an exchange loss of

Selling and Distribution Expenses

For the Year, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses amounted
to approximately RMB41,532,000 (2021: RMB34,381,000), which
accounted for approximately 2.1% (2021: 1.9%) of the Group's
revenue. The increase in the selling and distribution expenses as a
percentage of the Group's revenue for the Year was attributable to the
higher promotion expenses incurred during the Year.
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Administrative Expenses

For the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses amounted
to approximately RMB118,427,000 (2021: RMB98,406,000),
representing an increase of approximately 20.3% as compared to
the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase in administrative
expenses was mainly due to additional staff costs of RMB3.9 million,
additional consulting fees of RMB2.5 million, additional research
and development expenses of approximately RMB2.1 million and
additional office expense of RMB2.1 million as well as additional
bank charges incurred during the Year.

Other Expenses

Other expenses of the Group for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB13,192,000 (2021: RMB3,803,000), mainly comprised of asset
disposal loss of RMB11,110,000 in relation to obsolete IT equipment
(2021: RMB471,000), and provision of inventory loss on accident of
RMB966,000 (2021: Nil).

Finance Costs

For the Year, finance costs amounted to approximately
RMB33,852,000 (2021: RMB39,044,000), which comprised
net finance cost of approximately RMB33,466,000 (2021:
RMB38,555,000) and interest on lease liabilities of approximately
RMB386,000 (2021: RMB489,000). Net finance costs represented
the total interest expense on bank loans of approximately
RMB38,419,000 (2021: RMB42,687,000) less amount capitalized
attributable to capital assets. An interest expense of approximately
RMB4,953,000 was capitalized during the Year (2021:
RMB4,132,000).

Income Tax Expenses
Income tax expense for the Year was approximately RMB63,020,000
(2021: RMB32,587,000). The effective tax rate of the Year was 26.8%.

Profit for the Year

As a result, the Group recorded a net profit for the Year of
approximately RMB171,808,000, as compared to approximately
RMB90,500,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Minority Interests

The Group’s minority interests amounted to RMB3,888,000, which
mainly represented the Group’s share of results of its 24.66% of
equity interests in Heilongjiang Kingdom Enterprise Co., Ltd.* (32
BE T SEMZEB R AE)) (“Heilongjiang Kingdom”), attributable
to the minority shareholdings during the Year (2021:
RMB2,277,000).

profit of

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

During the Year, the Group recorded a profit attributable to owners
of the parent of approximately RMB175,696,000, as compared to
approximately RMB88,223,000 for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Other Intangible Assets

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s intangible assets were
mainly patents and licences amounted to RMB1,800,000 (2021:
RMB2,000,000) and certified emission rights obtained in 2012
for a term of 20 years, which amounted to RMB4,373,000 (2021:
RMB3,987,000). Intangible assets are subject to amortisation based
on their useful lives. For the Year, the amortisation of intangible assets
was approximately RMB703,000 (2021: RMB580,000).

Inventories

As at 31 December 2022, inventories of the Group increased by
approximately 8.9% to RMB685,180,000 (2021: RMB629,221,000),
the average inventory turnover days decreased from 173 days as at 31
December 2021 to 147 days as at 31 December 2022. The decrease
in number of inventory turnover days was mainly attributable to the
robust sales revenue recorded during the Year.

Trade and Notes Receivables

As at 31 December 2022, trade and notes receivables of the Group
decreased by approximately 16.9% to RMB426,267,000 (2021:
RMB512,732,000), and the average trade receivable turnover days
decreased from 90 days as at 31 December 2021 to 85 days as at 31
December 2022.
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Trade and Notes Payables

As at 31 December 2022, trade and notes payables of the
Group increased by approximately 24.9% to approximately
RMB367,096,000 (2021: RMB293,920,000). The average trade
payable turnover days increased to 74 days during the Year (2021: 64
days).

Interest-bearing Bank and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings decreased by 15.0% to approximately RMB752,903,000
(2021: RMB885,795,000), of which RMB696,344,000 (2021:
RMB828,378,000) were classified as current liabilities and
RMB56,559,000 (2021: RMB57,417,000) were classified as non-
current liabilities. The Group’s borrowings were denominated in
Renminbi, United States Dollars and Euros, of which approximately
RMB423,000,000 (2021: RMB485,348,000) were at fixed interest
rates.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had net current assets of
approximately RMB417,334,000 (2021: RMB178,810,000). The
Group financed its operations with internally generated resources and
bank loans during the Year. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
total cash and deposits of approximately RMB529,369,000 (2021:
RMB293,943,000) which consisted of cash and cash equivalents
of approximately RMB467,469,000 (2021: RMB249,213,000)
and pledged deposits of approximately RMB61,900,000 (2021:
RMB44,730,000). The Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in Renminbi, United States Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars,
Euros and Ethiopian Birrs.

The liquidity ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2022 was
approximately 131.6% (2021: 113.3%). Total equity of the Group as
at 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB1,487,990,000 (2021:
RMB1,350,616,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings repayable within 12 months therefrom of
approximately RMB696,344,000 (2021: RMB828,378,000) and
long-term interest-bearing other borrowings of approximately
RMB56,559,000 (2021: RMB57,417,000). Together these interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings represented a gross debt gearing
ratio (i.e. total borrowings divided by total equity) of approximately
50.6% (2021: 65.6%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, outstanding contractual capital
commitments of the Group in respect of purchase of property,
plant and equipment not provided for in the annual financial
statements amounted to approximately RMB208,855,000 (2021:
RMB259,247,000).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals of
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the Year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

The Group did not hold any significant investments during the Year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2021: Nil).

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the current interest-bearing bank
borrowings with a carrying amount of RMB408,000,000 (2021:
RMB443,521,000) were secured by certain property, plant
and equipment, and inventories with carrying amounts of
RMB298,487,000 (2021: RMB322,481,000), and RMB40,000,000
(2021: RMB40,000,000), respectively.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENT OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save for the various up-keeping and maintenance of existing factory
projects, vertical expansion into weaving and fabric business, the
Directors confirmed that as at the date of this annual report, there is
no current plan to acquire any material investment or capital assets.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group's transactions were mainly denominated in Renminbi,
United States Dollars, Euro and Hong Kong Dollars. The exchange
rate changes of such currencies were monitored regularly and
managed appropriately. The Group had entered into certain foreign
currency forward contracts by utilising its credit line during the Year
and there was no derivative financial asset or liability recorded as at
31 December 2022 (2021: liabilities of RMB1,275,000).

REMUNERATION POLICY AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 4,087 employees
(2021: 3,808 employees). Total staff costs incurred for the Year
increased by approximately 9.7% to RMB261,764,000 (2021:
RMB238,536,000). The increase in staff costs stemmed from
additional headcounts to cope with the expanded operation and the
commencement of the operation of the factory in Ethiopia during the
Year.

The Group offers comprehensive and competitive remuneration,
retirement scheme and benefit packages to its employees. The
Group is required to make contributions (retirement insurance and
unemployment insurance) to a social security scheme in China. The
remuneration policy for the employees of the Group is formulated by
the Board with reference to the employee’s respective qualification,
experience, responsibilities and contributions to the Group, as well as
the prevailing market rate of remuneration for a similar position. The
remuneration of the Directors are determined by the Board based on
the recommendation of the remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) and with the mandate given by
the Shareholders at the annual general meeting having regard to the
Group's operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics. The Group also provides both internal and external
training programmes for its employees from time to time.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme and a share
award plan for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the
Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, and other
employees of the Group who have contributed to the success of the
Group's operations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK AND PLANS
The Group will leverage on the success of the operation of its factory
in Ethiopia to expand its coverage to different customers and markets.

In addition, the Group will leverage on local government incentives
to commence our own weaving and fabric project in China in 2023,
which is our maiden attempt to expand into linen weaving and fabric
business. By expanding into weaving and fabric business with a
view to explore different applications of linen fabric, such move will
eventually provide business supports to Kingdom'’s customers and
further drive the demand of linen yarn in long term.

Being the first company in the linen industry obtained carbon-
neutrality certification, we will continue to cultivate the growth of the
hemp fiber base in China. We target to establish a scaled hemp yarn
production within three years to satisfy the market demand.

Kingdom has been collaborating with CottonConnect, a UK non-
profit and social-oriented enterprise with a clear mission to
transform the linen industry for good, to develop the REEL Linen
Code of Conduct. REEL Linen is a sustainability-driven initiative
for brands which are committed to sourcing more sustainable
linen, and contents of the initiative includes including improving
environment, product quality and traceability conditions in their
supply chain factories and farms worldwide. REEL stands for the idea
of “Responsible Environment, Enhanced Livelihood”, it implements
sustainable development into production practices. REEL Linen Code
of Conduct version 2.0 was issued in May 2022. This initiative would
help Kingdom to move towards a sustainable operation and ensure its
long-term success.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESheEREEE

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ren Weiming (f£4£E8) , aged 63, is the chairman of the Group
and an executive Director. Mr. Ren is responsible for the overall
management of the Group and decision-making of the business
development strategy of the Group. Mr. Ren has worked in the silk
and textile industry since 1979. He has been the chairman and
general manager of Zhejiang Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd.* (4’1
EEAIZER BB RAE) (“Kingdom Creative”), a company which
is owned as to 71.64% by Mr. Ren since 2000. Mr. Ren started to
engage in the linen yarn manufacturing business in December 2001.
He joined the Group in March 2003 when the first operating member
of the Group, Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd.* (37T & CiE i A R
‘A 7)) (“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) was established. Mr. Ren is a director of
Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. * CL#k <= CaE A
fR/AB)) (“Jiangsu Jinyuan”), and Zhejiang Kingdom Flax Co., Ltd.*
(HIeE R MARLQF) (“Zhejiang Kingdom”), all of which are
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ren is also a director
of Heilongjiang Kingdom Enterprise Co., Ltd.* (BEE/ I REMES R
‘2 7)) (“Heilongjiang Kingdom”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company. Mr. Ren obtained various awards including National
Township Entrepreneur awarded by the Ministry of Agriculture of
the PRC, National Excellent Young Factory Manager and Zhejiang
Provincial Excellent Entrepreneur. He was a representative of the
9th and 10th National People’s Congress of Zhejiang Province. Mr.
Ren is currently the vice president of China Bast and Leaf Fibers
Textile Association and the Vice Chairman of The Hong Kong General
Chamber of Textiles Ltd. He is also a director of Kingdom Investment
Holdings Limited (“Kingdom Investment”) which holds interests in
the Shares discloseable under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the”SFO”). Mr. Ren is a director of Kingdom
Creative and its subsidiaries including Zhejiang Jinxiu Jiangnan Silk
Co., Ltd.* (M LER# I #4485 BR/AF)) (“Jinxiu Jiangnan”) and
Interconnect Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* CE@R &
5 (k8) BRAE)) (“Interconnect”). Mr. Ren is also a director of
Bank of Jiaxing Co., Ltd.* (ZHIR1TI1H BRA B)) which is owned
as to 7.39% by Kingdom Creative.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Shen Yueming (JLBEBH), aged 61, is an executive Director.
Mr. Shen is a director of Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan and
Zhejiang Kingdom, all of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of
the Company. Mr. Shen is also a director of Heilongjiang Kingdom,
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Shen is
responsible for the day-to-day operations and management of the
Group and also takes part in the decision making of the business
development strategy of the Group. He is also a director of Kingdom
Creative and its subsidiaries including Jinxiu Jiangnan, Interconnect
and Haiyan Chen Chen Silk Clothing Co., Ltd* CSEiE E 44 48B54EH
FR/2 1) . Mr. Shen joined the Group in March 2003.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhang Hongwen (SRI83X), aged 56, is an executive Director. Mr.
Zhang is the director of Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan, Zhejiang
Kingdom, Kingdom Tiansheng (Shanghai) Trading Co., Ltd.* (&#EX
R (L&) mEBAERAR), Zhejiang Kingdom REEL Textile Co. Ltd.*
(I ISEREHBARAE) (“Kingdom REEL”) and Heilongjiang
Kingdom Fiber Hemp Co., Ltd.* (BEIIREMERMBIRAE),
all of which are subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of
Kingdom Creative and its subsidiaries including Interconnect, Jinxiu
Jiangnan, Zhejiang Yuyuan Photovoltaic Co., Ltd.* (31T 2RIERE
FR/2 1), Heilongjiang Kangyuan Bio-Technology Co., Ltd.* (R&E'L
BEREYRI B R/AE) (“Kangyuan Bio-Tech”). Before joining the
Group in 2003, Mr. Zhang was the assistant to the general manager
and the head of capital clearing division of Kingdom Creative from
2000 to 2002.
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Directors and Senior Management

ESheEREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ms. Shen Hong (E7B), aged 56, is an executive Director. Ms. Shen
is the management controller of the Group. She completed her
professional accounting studies at Zhejiang Long March Finance
School in the People’s Republic of China in July 1994 and has more
than 20 years of experience in finance-related area. Ms. Shen is the
director of Heilongjiang Kingdom and Heilongjiang Kangyuan Flax
and Hemp Seed Co., Ltd.* (BEE/IEREEARAF]) (“Kangyuan
Seed”), both of which are non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Company. Ms. Shen is also a director of Kingdom Creative and its
subsidiaries including Kangyuan Bio-Tech. Before joining the Group
in March 2003, she worked in Kingdom Creative as the head of
finance management department.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert (B85/), aged 73, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Ngan is the chairman of Millionfull Company Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong engaged in the trading of
linen and linen blend textiles. Mr. Ngan was a member of the 9th
and 10th Fujian Provincial People’s Political Consultative Conference
and vice-chairman of Po Leung Kuk from April 2010 to March 2012.
He was the president of The Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles
Ltd. from September 2009 to August 2011 and was appointed as the
permanent honorary chairman of The Hong Kong General Chamber
of Textiles Ltd. in September 2011 and as a director of HuaQiao
University in 2002. He is a member of the Election Committee of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He joined the Group in
September 2004. He is also the chairman of the board of directors of
Millionfull International Co., Ltd which has interests in the shares of
the Company discloseable under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO. He is also a director of Interconnect.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (B|Z2), aged 49, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Lau is the finance and investor relations director and
the company secretary of Dalipal Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
01921), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lau is also currently an independent non-executive director of
United Strength Power Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 02337), Sinco
Pharmaceuticals Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 06833) and KangLi
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 06890), all of which are
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. From
16 May 2012 to 30 September 2020, Mr. Lau was an independent
non-executive director of Xiezhong International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 03663) which was delisted on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 5 July 2021 and from 20 December 2013 to 15
February 2022, he was an independent non-executive director of
China Wood Optimization (Holding) Limited (Stock Code: 01885)
which is a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and holds a master’s degree in finance from
the City University of Hong Kong. He has extensive experience in
financial and accounting in China and Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in November 2006.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (Z8Ef5), aged 49, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Lo has more than 20 years of working
experience in investment banking and advising on corporate finance.
Mr. Lo is the managing director of Caitong International Capital
Company Limited. Mr. Lo is also an independent non-executive
director of Raymond Industrial Limited (Stock Code: 00229), a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo also
has three years of experience in the field of auditing and accounting.
Mr. Lo is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He obtained his bachelor’s degree in commerce
from the University of British Columbia in Canada in 1995. He joined
the Group in May 2010.

EEhEREEE

BIERITES

BEGESEE  RFEN+ AR B ERTES
BEERABTRER ETNENZZRER
NE B&ID1CEE 1 01921) M AR EERFRIEE
BABME - BILERTABAERIEZRERA
3 (RS : 02337) BRI BBEEITRERA
3] (1D 1SR 1 06833) MEFIEEIZERBIRAT
(BRIDLSR  06890) (LHABIMIERIFIEMR
W) WBIERTEZT - BIRER_E—_F
ERA+AHEZZ_ZEFNA=THEIHREH
REERARAE BRDMAIR: 03663) (RE_—
ELtBABEBIMERKRE MR _E—=
+ZB+BREE-_ "B+ HBEEFFH
B R BIRAR BRIDMRSE 1 01885) (TEHIZZ
FrERLE™T NBILIENTEEZ - BEERER
IR EEFREE UFESBRTAZ SR
BEIEN -FRIENEEEEESRAE st
BE NN BT NE+—BMAKER-

BIFRITESR

BEERE HEN+AR BYIFRTESR B
FERKRERITREXBERRB D EHEEBI1B20
FEB-BALERERSMBEREREBRATN
EFREE -BAETABMIAER LT RTF
REFXAERAT (M 1 00229) BVEILIFH
TEF - BAETHEA-FERERGHER &
SER/EHGFA MR EREBESHIATEE -
BN —NANEFERNEARB ISR RER
MBLBA KN _E—EFHAMAKRER-

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ZRERAE

27



28

Directors and Senior Management

ESheEREEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yan Jianmiao (B&#2#), aged 57, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director at the conclusion of the annual
general meeting on 30 May 2016. Mr. Yan is currently a professor
of Department of International Economics of Zhejiang University
(“ZJU"), a director of China Society of World Economics (CSWE),
an executive director of Zhejiang International Economics and Trade
Association and a researcher of the Center for Research of Private
Economy (CRPE) of ZJU. Prior to holding these positions, Mr. Yan
served as a deputy director in Department of International Trade of
Hangzhou University and a director of Department of International
Economics of ZJU. Mr. Yan is currently an independent director
of Baida Group Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 600865), a company listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and Rongsheng Petrochemical
Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 002493), a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. Mr. Yan was an independent director of Top Choice
Medical Co., Inc. (Stock Code: 600763) from 24 December 2014
until 1 February 2021, and of Zhejiang Xinan Chemical Industrial
Group Co. Ltd. (Stock Code: 600596) from 7 July 2014 until 1 July
2020, both of which are companies listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Mr. Yan graduated from Hangzhou University in 1985 with
a Bachelor of Economics degree. He obtained a master’s degree in
economics from the Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences in 1988.
Mr. Yan was a senior visiting scholar of Le Havre Business School in
France in 1997 and obtained a PhD in Economics from ZJU in 2005.
He joined the Group in May 2016.

2022 Annual Report — &~ " F £

BIAERITES

BEHLE BEI+tm RIE—REHA
T+ HEHNREBFASERGELZTABILIF
HITER -BAERBFAITIAZ (THK)) EE
KESBAHPFE PEAHRALCER2GESE IHIL
EREEEZ 2R HEERTARELHEN
ETHEOIES - FRIEFE L MBS BREESE
MINABEBREZRZE T MABEREESZA
AEF - BEERBALEESRERETAT
BAEERMDERAR BRM1SR © 600865) &
FINBERG LB RABEBALEKRADERAE
(B 1L5% 1 002493) B ESF - BRAEENR T
E—OMFE+ "B+ HmBAEE_—F"H—H
ETERBEEROBERAR BRIDMRSE  600763)
MR _E—NE+tBA+tHE_E_THF+tHF—
HESTITZIETIEBRBERAR B&RMH 1R
% : 600596) (LMK ABHE LBESFRTH
FTE™ WBYES - BAEET—NN\AFEE
AN KRB A BB 8y (£ — N\ \E
BELELER BREHEE2BIT 2 BILEN
—hhtEEEEHLe Havre Business School (]
HEEER) ShSHBE T ST RFEWE
WMARES BB (EBEESR) - BN _ZT—X

FHAMALER-



Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Yan Kwan Andy (BR1Z#), aged 54, is the chief financial
officer and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan has over
20 years of experience in accounting and financial sector. From
July 2004 to January 2014, he was the group financial controller
and company secretary of Natural Beauty Bio-Technology Limited
(Stock Code: 00157), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, responsible for financial planning and monitoring.
Prior to July 2004, he worked in an international accounting
firm and served senior financial positions in a company listed on
the NASDAQ Stock Market and a renowned German exhibition
company. Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director
of Greentown Management Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 09979), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and one of the Hang Seng Composite Index constituent
stocks. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA). He is also a Fellow
Chartered Secretary and Fellow Chartered Governance Professional
of The Chartered Governance Institute (CGI) and The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (HKCGI). Mr. Chan graduated from
the University of Hull in the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s
degree in economics and accounting in 1992; graduated from the
Ivey Business School with Western University (formerly Richard Ivey
School of Business with University of Western Ontario), Canada
with an Executive MBA in 2008 and graduated from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University with a master’s degree in corporate
governance (with distinction) in 2021. Mr. Chan joined the Group in
January 2014.
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Report of the Directors
EFERS

It is the Board’s pleasure to present their annual report on the affairs
of the Group together with the audited financial statements for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 97 of this annual report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year is set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 4 and page 9 of this annual report. An indication
of likely future developments of the Group’s business can be found
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. An analysis of the
Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators is
provided in the sections headed “Five Year Financial Summary” on
page 8 and “Financial Review” on page 15 of this annual report.

The Group is committed to supporting environmental sustainability.
In its pursuit of excellent operating results, the Group has put a lot of
efforts in promoting sustainable development. In terms of production
of per tonne of linen yarn, the level of consumption of electricity and
steam increased by 3.4% and 24.4% respectively, while the level
of consumption of water and natural gas decreased by 2.4% and
2.5% respectively. We will continue to explore ways to improve the
production processes to further enhance our operational efficiencies.
For details of the Group’s performance in environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”) aspects including relationships with various
stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group, please refer to the Group's
separate ESG report for the Year. The Group has been in compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Company during the Year.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACED BY
THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing of linen yarn
and the sale of the products to over 20 countries. Overseas sales are
invoiced in United States Dollars, except for the sales by the Group’s
subsidiary in Italy which are invoiced in Euro. Domestic sales in
China are invoiced in Renminbi. Raw materials (flax fiber and hemp
fiber) are imported from Europe and sourced in China. The principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group include the unstable demand
for linen yarn, protectionism of certain countries and possible
punitive tariffs on products made in China, unstable supply of raw
materials, continuous decline in cotton price, depreciation of United
States Dollars against Renminbi, the execution risk of the new
expansion project in Ethiopia, and the outbreak of epidemic which
caused disruption of the production process.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognizes that employees, customers and business
partners are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is
committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Company provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity of its staff and provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts in ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and
development resources to its employees so that they can keep abreast
of the latest development of the market and the industry and, at the
same time, improve their performance and achieve self-actualization
in performing their duties.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY
THAT HAVE OCCURRED SINCE THE END OF THE
FINANCIAL YEAR

There was no important event affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the Year and up to the date of this annual
report.
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Report of the Directors
EFERS

DIVIDEND

At a meeting of the Board held on 28 March 2023, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.09 per
ordinary share for the Year. The proposed final dividend, if approved
by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, will be paid on or before 14 July 2023 to the Shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company as
at 23 June 2023. None of the Shareholders has waived or agreed to
waive any dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 101 of this
annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands amounted
to RMB609,415,000 (31 December 2021: RMB644,737,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately RMB148,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB92,000).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group are set out
in note 26 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 8 of this annual
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB49,334,000. Details of the movements are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS
During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, the Directors
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ren Weiming (Chairman)
Mr. Shen Yueming

Mr. Zhang Hongwen

Ms. Shen Hong

Non-executive Director
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson

Mr. Yan Jianmiao

Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles”), at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every
three years and be eligible for re-election. In accordance with article
84 of the Articles, Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert, Mr. Yan Jianmiao and
Ms. Shen Hong shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. All retiring Directors, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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Report of the Directors
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Pursuant to code provision B.2.3 of the corporate governance code
(the “CG Code”) set out in Part 2 of the Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, if an independent non-executive director has served more than
nine years, such director’s further appointment should be subject to
a separate resolution to be approved by shareholders. Mr. Lau Ying
Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson, independent non-executive
Directors who have served the Company since 13 November 2006
and 17 May 2010, respectively. Separate resolutions will be proposed
for their continuous appointments at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has received from each of Mr. Lau
Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson a written confirmation of
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and Mr.
Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson have not engaged in
any executive management of the Group. Taking into consideration
of their independent scope of work in the past years, the Board
considers that Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson
would independently fulfill their role as independent non-executive
Directors despite the fact that each of Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo
Kwong Shun Wilson has served the Company for more than nine
years. Each of Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson
has the required character and integrity to act as a Director of the
Company and possesses extensive experience and professional
knowledge in accounting and corporate finance to bring objective
judgement to the Board.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting, ordinary resolutions will
be proposed to re-elect Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert as non-executive
Director, Mr. Yan Jianmiao as independent non-executive Director,
Ms. Shen Hong as executive Director, and continuous appointment of
Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson as independent non-
executive Directors who have served for more than nine years.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has any unexpired service contract with the
Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or its subsidiaries,
and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, was a party
and in which a Director has a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year except as disclosed under the section headed “Connected
Transactions” below and note 33 to the financial statements.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and the
Board considers all of the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during
the Year and remain so as at the date of this annual report. The re-
election of Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (who had
both served the Board for more than nine years) as independent non-
executive Directors has been approved by way of separate resolutions
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 21 May 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director or other officer of the
Company shall be entitled to be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which he/she
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her
office or otherwise in relation thereto; provided that such indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attach to any of the said persons. The Company has
arranged appropriate directors’ and officers” liability insurance
coverage in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers
of the Group.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

The remuneration of the senior management of the Company during
the Year fell within the following range:

RMB1,500,001 — RMB2,000,000

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on page 24 of this annual report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF
THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management”, there is no other change in information of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company which is required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules since the
date of the interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2022 and
up to the date of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2022, the Directors and their associates had the
following interests in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of

the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO), which were recorded or required to be recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing

Rules:

Name of Director

Mr. Ren Weiming

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert

Ms. Shen Hong

s Personal interests
(Note 1)
BA#ER
Bizt1)
4R E 12,072,000
BEEREYE 418,000
LBEL L 504,000
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EEBITRE
BEERN BYESL
AR RRAD R (%)
314,990,000 327,062,000 51.94
(Note 2)
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67,000,000 67,418,000 10.71
(Note 3)
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Notes:

IR The Shares are registered under the names of the Directors who are the

beneficial Shareholders.

2% Mr. Ren Weiming holds approximately 76.38% of the issued share
capital of Kingdom Investment (as defined below). Mr. Ren therefore
holds a controlling interest in Kingdom Investment and is deemed
under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by Kingdom
Investment.

£l Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert and Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie Sau Kat, the
spouse of Mr. Ngan, hold approximately 51.00% and 23.00% of the
issued share capital of Millionfull International (as defined below) and
57.98% and 29.76% of the issued share capital of Millionfull Company
Limited, respectively. Mr. Ngan therefore holds controlling interests in
both Millionfull International and Millionfull Company Limited and
is deemed under the SFO to be interested in 64,800,000 Shares, i.e.
10.29% Shares, held by Millionfull International and 2,200,000 Shares,
i.e. 0.35% Shares, held by Millionfull Company Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or their associates had or were deemed to have any interest
or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were recorded or required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party or parties to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
Shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director, as at 31 December 2022, the
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying
Shares of the Company which were recorded or required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Name of Shareholder Capacity

ARER % TE 5145

Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited Beneficial owner
(“Kingdom Investment”) (Note 1)
Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited
(TKingdom Investment 1) (#75%1)

Millionfull International Co., Ltd.

(“Millionfull International”) (Note 2)

BmBEAA

Beneficial owner

Millionfull International Co., Ltd. EmEE A
(T Millionfull International 1) (%7z%2)
Notes:
1. Kingdom Investment is owned as to 76.38% by Mr. Ren Weiming, an

executive Director and substantial shareholder of the Company.

2. Millionfull International is owned as to 51.00% by Mr. Ngan Kam Wai
Albert, a non-executive Director, and 23.00% by Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie
Sau Kat, the spouse of Mr. Ngan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying Shares which were recorded or required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) with Shareholders’ approval at
the annual general meeting held on 30 May 2016 was adopted on the
same date.

The Scheme was established to recognize and acknowledge the
contributions that eligible participants had made or may make to
the Group. The Scheme will provide the eligible participants with an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to
achieving the following objectives:

(@  motivate the eligible participants to optimise their performance
and efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(b)  attract and retain or otherwise maintain ongoing business
relationship with the eligible participants whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the long term growth of the Group.

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board may at its discretion
grant options to: (i) any Director, employee, consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a
company in which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such
company (the “Affiliate”); or (ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary
of which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of
which include any Director, employee, consultant, professional,
customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate; or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any
Director, employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate,
who has contributed to the success of the Group’s operations. The
overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid limit,
the total number of Shares available for issue under options which
may be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes must not,
in aggregate, exceed 62,967,800 Shares, being 10% of the number of
issued Shares as at 30 May 2016, the date of adoption of the Scheme,
and 10% of the number of issued Shares as at the date of this annual
report, respectively, unless separate Shareholders’ approval has been
obtained.

In accepting the relevant options, the participant is required to pay
HK$10.00 to the Company as consideration for the grant of options.
The payment of such consideration should be made on or before the
relevant acceptance date, being a date not later than 30 days after the
offer date.
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The maximum entitlement for any one participant under the Scheme
shall not in any 12-month period up to the date of grant exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Board at the time of the grant, and must expire no
later than 10 years from the date of grant of option.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for which
an option must be held or the performance targets which must be
achieved before an option can be exercised under the terms of the
Scheme. However, at the time of granting any option, the Board may
impose such conditions, restrictions or limitations as it may determine
in its absolute discretion.

The subscription price for any Share shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a business day, (ii) an amount equivalent to the
average closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant option and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period
of 10 years from the date of its adoption. The Scheme will have a
remaining term of approximately 3 years as at the date of this annual
report.
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No option has been granted under the Scheme since its adoption
on 30 May 2016 and the Company has no current plans to grant
any options under the Scheme. Accordingly, there are (i) no
options granted and to be granted to the Directors, chief executive
or substantial shareholders of the Company, or their respective
associates; (ii) no participant with options granted and to be granted
in excess of the 1% individual limit; (i) no related entity participant
or service provider with options granted and to be granted in any
12-month period exceeding 0.1% of the relevant class of shares
in issue; and (iv) no other employee participants, related entity
participants and service providers with options granted and to be
granted. For this reason, it is not applicable for the Company to set
out any details of such grant in accordance with Rule 17.07(1) of
the Listing Rules. Also, since no Shares have been awarded under
the Shares Award Plan, and the Company has no current plans to
grant any awarded Shares under the Shares Award Plan, it is not
applicable for the Company to set out the number of Shares that may
be issued in respect of the Scheme and the Share Award Plan during
the year ended 31 December 2022 divided by the weighted average
number of Shares of the relevant class in issue for the year ended 31
December 2022. There were a maximum of 62,967,800 Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme at the beginning and the end of the year ended 31 December
2022.

SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company has adopted a share award plan (the “Share Award
Plan”) on 26 August 2016. The purpose of the Share Award Plan
is to incentivize, recognize and reward eligible persons for their
contribution to the Group, attract and retain personnel, and align
the interests of award holders with that of the Shareholders to
promote the long-term development and financial performance of the
Company.
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The Board may, from time to time and at its sole discretion, select any
eligible person to participate in the Share Award Plan and determine
the number of Shares to be awarded and the terms and conditions of
the awards. Awards shall be satisfied by Shares acquired in the market
at the prevailing market price and no new Shares will be allotted and
issued under the Share Award Plan. The trustee of the Share Award
Plan (the “Trustee”) shall hold the awarded Shares on trust for the
award holders until the awarded Shares are vested in the relevant
award holders according to the Share Award Plan rules. Upon vesting,
the Trustee shall either transfer the vested awarded Shares at no cost
to such award holders or sell the vested awarded Shares at the then
prevailing market price by way of market order and remit the net
proceeds to the award holders in accordance with the direction given
by such award holders. As such, it is not applicable for the Company
to set out the basis of determining the purchase price of the awarded
Shares as required by Rule 17.09(8) of the Listing Rules. It is also not
applicable for the Company to set out the period within which the
option may be exercised by a selected person as required by Rule
17.09(5) of the Listing Rules since the award will be in the form of
Shares, instead of options.

No amount is payable by a selected person upon the acceptance of
an offer of or transfer of the awarded Shares from the Trustee to such
selected person.

Any grant of awarded Shares to a selected person which would result
in the aggregate of (i) the number of awarded Shares underlying
all awards (whether vested or not); and (ii) the number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised
or outstanding) under any share option scheme adopted by the
Company from time to time (including the Scheme), granted to such
selected person in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of grant of such awarded Shares exceeding 1% of the Shares in issue
as at the date of grant of such awarded Shares shall be subject to the
approval of the Shareholders in a general meeting. In any financial
year of the Company, the maximum number of Shares acquired by
the Trustee under the Share Award Plan shall not exceed 5% of the
Shares in issue as at the beginning of such financial year.

The vesting period of awarded Shares granted under the Share Award
Plan is 4 years.
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EFERS

Subject to earlier termination by the Board, the Share Award Plan
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of
its adoption. The Share Award Plan will have a remaining term of
approximately 3.5 years as at the date of this annual report.

During the Year, no Shares have been awarded pursuant to the Share
Award Plan and no awarded Shares were vested as the vesting
condition on performance target for the Year was not satisfied. The
Board will constantly review and determine at its absolute discretion
such number of awarded Shares to be awarded to the selected
persons under the Share Award Plan with such vesting conditions as
the Board may deem appropriate.

Pursuant to the Share Award Plan, 19,400,000 Shares have been
awarded to selected persons on 25 May 2018, of which 19,370,000
Shares have been accepted pursuant to the Share Award Plan. Out of
such 19,370,000 Shares as accepted by the selected persons pursuant
to the Share Award Plan, there were 1,010,000 Shares and 5,159,250
Shares vested and transferred to the employees in 2019 and 2020,
respectively. In addition, 1,000,000 and 575,000 granted Shares were
returned to the Shares pool due to resignation of relevant employees
during 2020 and 2021, respectively. Thus, as at 1 January 2022, the
number of awarded Shares available for grant under the Share Award
Plan were 1,605,000 Shares. In addition, as a total of 11,625,750
granted but unvested Shares will be returned to the Trustee as the
2022 performance targets were not met, together with the 1,605,000
Shares remain available for granting to employees in the future under
the Share Award Scheme, there were a total of 13,230,750 Shares
held by Trustee and available for future granting as at 31 December
2022, representing approximately 2.1% of the issued Shares of the
Company as at the date of the annual report.

None of the Company’s Directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholders or their respective associates had been awarded any
Shares of the Company and the Company has no plans to award
Shares to the aforesaid personnels.

All awarded Shares were granted to employees of the Group. There
was no participant with awarded Shares granted and to be granted
in excess of the 1% individual limit and there was no related entity
participant or service provider with awarded Shares granted and to
be granted in any 12-month period exceeding 0.1% of the ordinary
shares of the Company in issue.
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The following table sets out awards granted and to be granted under
the Share Award Plan to (i) each of the Directors, chief executive
or substantial shareholders of the listed issuer, or their respective

associates; (ii) each participant with awards granted and to be

granted in excess of the 1% individual limit; (iii) each related entity
participant or service provider with awards granted and to be granted
in any 12-month period exceeding 0.1% of the relevant class of
Shares in issue; and (iv) other employee participants, related entity

participants and service providers by category:

Name/Category of selected person
Mr. Ren Weiming (Chairman)

Mr. Shen Yueming (Director)

Mr. Zhang Hongwen (Director)

Ms. Shen Hong (Director)

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert (Director)
Mr. Lau Ying Kit (Director)

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (Director)
Mr. Yan Jianmiao (Director)

Substantial shareholders or their
respective associates

Related entities

Service providers

EEALHR 8
REBEE ER)
LRALE EF)
REXEL (EF)
LEZL (EF)
BERELE ED)
ks (EF)
BEERLE EP)
BEELE EF)
E‘E%iéfﬁ%&%%ﬁ )

HEER
RBREHS

FalE

The five highest paid individuals during E?ETWE?E%%%%FM

the financial year in aggregate

Other employees of the Group in
aggregate

(=)=

rEBEMER A

Number of
awarded

Shares unvested
at the beginning
of the Year
(together with
date of grant,
vesting period
and purchase
rice)
ENXRBEN
EERHUE
(EREHAS
BEARBAR

1,806,000

9,819,750
(Granted on
25 May 2018 with nil

consideration, for details

regarding the vesting
conditions,
see note below)
_9,819,750%
RZB—N\E
EAZ+EA
EBESL
EEBEEEY
HEZRT XM

Number of
awarded Shares
granted during
the Year

FERIRHN
BERHEE

The closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which
the awarded Shares were granted was HK$0.97.
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Note: Vesting conditions of awarded Shares under the Share Award Plan

Mifat - BRAn SRSt 8 T SRE AR 1D R BR B IR 1

Vesting Date of Awarded Shares  Percentage and Conditions of Awarded Shares to be Vested

BROEEER 57 B BV SE R AR 1 B 0 EE R AR 14
On 1 April 2020 30% of the total number of awarded Shares granted (the “First Tranche Awarded Shares”)

subject to the audited net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019

having reached RMB100 million

R—E-ZTEFMA—AH PR H R R DR #B930% ((E—HEBERKRMD) ' xEBEE_Z-NF+ A
=+—HLEFENEEZATREINARBI00BET

On 1 April 2021 30% of the total number of awarded Shares granted (the “Second Tranche Awarded
Shares”) together with the First Tranche Awarded Shares which have not been previously
vested as a result of non-satisfaction of the performance target by the relevant Grantee,
subject to the audited net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020

having reached RMB150 million

B —FMBA—H PR M BB AR 0 4R 8 8930% (M5 “ BB AR5 1) ER SRl R AR ARIERKIR

B AR i A< 57 /B BV 55 —HEER R AR 10

AERBE_Z_TFT_RB=+—HLFE

EEZAANRZRARKIS08E T

On 1 April 2022 40% of the total number of awarded Shares granted (the “Third Tranche Awarded
Shares”) together with the Second Tranche Awarded Shares which have not been
previously vested as a result of non-satisfaction of the performance target by the relevant
Grantee, subject to the audited net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 having reached RMB200 million

A — Y R = PR M BB AR (0 4R 8 8940% (MB = EERAR (S 1) ER SRR AR ARIERKIR

B AR i) A< 57 /8 BV 55 —HEERR AR 10

AEEBET - —F+"A=+—HILFE

BN RZRARKE20088 T

On 1 April 2023 Any of the remaining Third Tranche Awarded Shares which have not been previously
N _E_=FMAB—H vested as a result of non-satisfaction of the performance target by the relevant grantee,
subject to the audited net profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022

having reached RMB250 million.

RS AR AR A REZERTRIRBIRMEREFBAVER T 6 = HERRG > AEH
BE_Z - S+ A=+—HLEFENKEEZATREINAREB25088 T

Any unvested awarded Shares will be forfeited thereafter.

I RER BBV IR AR (0 HAR R R UL o

Since during the Year, no Shares have been awarded pursuant to
the Share Award Plan and no option has been granted under the
Scheme since its adoption on 30 May 2016, it is not applicable for
the Company to set out the number of Shares that may be issued
in respect of the Share Award Plan and the Scheme during the
year ended 31 December 2022 divided by the weighted average
number of Shares of the relevant class in issue for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Scheme and the Share Award Plan as disclosed in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreement was entered into during
the year ended 31 December 2022 or subsisted at the end of the year
of 2022.

INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business have
been entered into, or subsisted, between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and any controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted
for approximately 20.1% of the Group's total sales for the Year, which
is less than 30% of the Group’s total sales for the Year, and sales to
the Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 5.3% of
the Group’s total sales for the Year. Purchases from the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 45.2% of the Group’s
total purchases for the Year, and purchases from the Group’s largest
supplier accounted for approximately 17.4% of the Group's total
purchases for the Year.

So far as the Board is aware, none of the Directors, their close
associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had
any interests in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers noted
above.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected transactions

The Group had not entered into any transaction that constituted
connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules during the Year.

Continuing connected transactions

The Group had entered into the following continuing connected
transactions with its connected persons which subsisted during the
Year. The transactions constituted non-exempt continuing connected
transactions for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
that were subject to reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but exempt from circular, independent financial advice
and independent Shareholders” approval requirements.

1. Purchases of chemicals and additives

On 12 March 2021, the Company entered into an agreement
with Jinxiu Jiangnan in relation to the purchase of chemicals
and additives (the “Purchase of Chemicals and Additives
Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company
agreed to purchase, and Jinxiu Jiangnan agreed to sell,
chemicals and additives to subsidiaries of the Company, for
the purpose of the fiber scouring and bleaching process to
be undergone by the subsidiaries, for a term of three years
with retrospective effect from 1 January 2021 and ending on
31 December 2023. The terms of the historical purchase of
chemicals and additives from Jinxiu Jiangnan were consistent
with the terms as contemplated under the Purchase of
Chemicals and Additives Framework Agreement as further
detailed in the announcement of the Company dated 12 March
2021.

The Group considered that the type of chemicals and additives
and their mixing proportion were critical to the scouring and
bleaching process, together with the identities of the suppliers,
these were collectively commercial secrets and were important
to the success of the Group. The chemicals and additives
were first purchased by Jinxiu Jiangnan, re-labelled and then
delivered to the wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
The chemicals were charged by Jinxiu Jiangnan at the original
costs of purchase from the third-party suppliers plus the
additional transportation costs of transporting the chemicals to
the Group’s factories. Such arrangements were purely made
to preserve the commercial secrets of the Group and Jinxiu
Jiangnan did not have any gain during the transactions.
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As at the date of the Purchase of Chemicals and Additives
Framework Agreement, Jinxiu Jiangnan was owned as to
98% by Kingdom Creative and 2% by Mr. Ren Weiming, an
executive Director and chairman of the Board, and Kingdom
Creative was owned as to 71.64% by Mr. Ren Weiming. Jingxu
Jiangnan was therefore a connected person of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, and the transactions
contemplated under the Purchase of Chemicals and Additives
Framework Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Jinxiu Jiangnan is principally engaged in trading business
and is entitled to conduct import and export business in China.

During the Year, the Group purchased chemicals and
additives for scouring and bleaching from Jinxiu Jiangnan
with an amount of RMB2,284,000 (2021: RMB3,023,000),
which did not exceed the annual cap for the Year, which was
RMB6,000,000.

Purchases of tools and accessories

The Group built a new factory in Ethiopia. Due to the absence
of the relevant tools and accessories in Ethiopia, all of the
tools and accessories used in the factory in Ethiopia had to be
purchased and shipped from China to Ethiopia. On 12 March
2021, the Company entered into an agreement in relation to
the purchase of tools and accessories (the “Purchase of Tools
and Accessories Framework Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Company agreed to purchase, and Jinxiu Jiangnan agreed to
sell, tools and accessories to subsidiaries of the Company, for
usage in the Group’s production plant in Ethiopia, for a term
of three years with retrospective effect from 1 January 2021
and ending on 31 December 2023. The terms of the historical
purchase of tools and accessories from Jinxiu Jiangnan were
consistent with the terms as contemplated under the Purchase
of Tools and Accessories Framework Agreement as further
detailed in the announcement of the Company dated 12 March
2021.
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As the tools and accessories were sourced from a number of
different suppliers in China, the Group engaged Jinxiu Jiangnan
to procure and collect those tools and accessories sourced
from different suppliers over a period of time, and consolidate
and arrange the shipment of all tools and accessories sourced
directly to our factory in Ethiopia. The tools and accessories
were charged by Jinxiu Jiangnan at the original costs of
purchase from the third-party suppliers plus the additional
shipping costs of shipping those tools and accessories to
Ethiopia. Jinxiu Jiangnan did not have any gain during the
transactions.

As at the date of the Purchase of Tools and Accessories
Framework Agreement, Jingxu Jiangnan was owned as to 98%
by Kingdom Creative and 2% as to Mr. Ren Weiming, an
executive Director and chairman of the Board, and Kingdom
Creative was in turn owned as to 71.64% by Mr. Ren Weiming.
Jingxu Jiangnan was therefore a connected person of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and the
transactions contemplated under the Purchase of Tools and
Accessories Framework Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Group did not purchase any tools and
accessories from Jinxiu Jiangnan (2021: RMB323,000). The
annual cap for the Year was RMB3,000,000.
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Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement

On 24 October 2022, Zhejiang Kingdom and Zhejiang Jinyuan,
both indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
entered into a purchase agreement (the “Photovoltaic Electricity
Purchase Agreement”) with Zhejiang Yuyuan, pursuant to
which Zhejiang Kingdom and Zhejiang Jinyuan agreed to
purchase from Zhejiang Yuyuan electricity generated from the
photovoltaic electricity system owned, managed and operated
by Zhejiang Yuyuan for a term of three years commencing
from 1 October 2022 and ending on 30 September 2025, at
an annual cap of no more than RMB3,500,000 per year. As at
the date of the Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement,
Zhejiang Yuyuan was wholly owned by Kingdom Creative,
which was in turn owned as to approximately 71.92% by
Mr. Ren Weiming, an executive Director and chairman of the
Board. Accordingly, Zhejiang Yuyuan was a connected person
of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
the transactions contemplated under the Photovoltaic Electricity
Purchase Agreement constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
purchased electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan with an amount
of RMB2,619,000, which was within the annual cap. The
price of electricity purchased was charged with a discount
rate of approximately 3.5% to the prevailing government
prescribed price for industrial use in Haiyan County. As the
applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio) for
the Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase Agreement, on an annual
basis, exceed 0.1% but are less than 5%, the transactions
contemplated under the Photovoltaic Electricity Purchase
Agreement is only subject to the reporting, announcement and
annual review requirements, but is exempted from the circular,
independent financial advice and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
For further details, please also refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 24 October 2022.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions had been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the Group;

(i) either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there are
no available comparable terms, on terms no less favorable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(iii)  according to the agreements governing them and on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as a whole.

The auditors of the Company was engaged to report on the continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Year and the auditors has
provided a letter to the Board in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules, confirming that:

(i) nothing has come to their attention that caused the auditors to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the Board;

(i) nothing has come to their attention that caused the auditors to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group and the relevant
agreements governing such transactions; and

(iii)  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention that
caused the auditors to believe that the disclosed continuing
connected transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, the Group had not entered
into any other connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction which needs to be disclosed in this annual report pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the other related party transactions as
disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements do not constitute
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions required
to be disclosed in this annual report under the Listing Rules. The
related party transactions that constituted connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions of the Group have complied with
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2022 are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

The Company does not have any disclosure obligations under Rules
13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE GROUP’S
LISTED SHARES

The Company or any of its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or
redeem any of the Group’s listed securities during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the Companies Act, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

RELIEF OF TAXATION
The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Shares.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 2.4 and
note 7 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of
this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules:

As at 31 December 2022, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates had interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Mr. Ren Weiming (“Mr. Ren”) holds directorships and/or interests
respectively, either directly and/or through Kingdom Creative, in
certain private companies (the “Private Companies”). The Private
Companies are engaged in the silk and/or silk products manufacturing
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and/or trading industry, banking and finance leasing (the “Excluded
Business”), which are fundamentally different from the products
manufactured by the Group.

Mr. Ren undertakes, subject to the exceptions mentioned in
the prospectus of the Company dated 30 November 2006 (the
“Prospectus”), that he will not, and will procure that his associates
will not (a) either on his own account or in conjunction with or
on behalf of any person, firm or company, directly or indirectly be
interested or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold an interest
(in each case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise)
in any business which is or is about to be engaged in any business
which competes or is likely to compete directly or indirectly with
the Group’s business, those other businesses of the Group as set out
in the Prospectus, in Hong Kong, the PRC and any other country or
jurisdiction to which the Group markets or sells its products and/or
in which any member of the Group carries on business mentioned
above from time to time (the “Restricted Activity”), or (b) either on his
own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm
or company, or as a principal, shareholder, partner, agent, consultant,
employee or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise,
directly or indirectly, solicit, interfere with or endeavour to entice
away from any member in the Group any person, firm, company
or organisation who to its or his knowledge is now or has been a
customer, supplier or employee of any member in the Group.

By reasons of the fact that the Excluded Business does not pose
any direct or indirect actual competition with the Group’s business
and that Mr. Ren has already given an undertaking as referred to
above, the Group is therefore capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arms’ length from, the Excluded Business as
described above.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Ren has no plan to inject the
aforesaid Excluded Business into the Group.

The Company has received from Kingdom Investment and
Mr. Ren an annual confirmation that it/he has fully complied with its/
his obligations under the deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company dated 27 November 2006 during the Year.
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CORPORATE STRATEGY AND LONG TERM BUSINESS
MODEL

The Company strives to be one of the largest linen yarn manufacturers
in the world through its commitment to sustainable development and
technical innovation, developing proprietary intellectual property
rights, branding of products and pursuing advanced management for
lean management and excellent performance to generate or preserve
value over a longer term.

The Board periodically reviews the progress made against ESG related
goals and targets to enable the Group’s sustainable development of its
business, in order to generate or preserve value over a longer term.

DIVIDEND POLICY
The Company has adopted a dividend policy on 14 December 2018

(the “Dividend Policy”).

Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the annual dividend to be distributed
by the Company to the Shareholders shall be not less than 20% of
the Group’s profit attributable to Shareholders in any financial year,
subject to the criteria set out in the Dividend Policy.

Such declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board and subject to all
applicable requirements under the Companies Act of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles.

In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall also take into
account, inter alia, the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance; Shareholders’ interests; general business conditions
and strategies; the Group’s expected working capital requirements
and future expansion plans; possible effects on the Group’s
creditworthiness; general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Group's business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and position of
the Company; and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.
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The Company will continually review the Dividend Policy and
reserves the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy
shall in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the
Company that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/
or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time
or from time to time. The payment of dividend is also subject to any
restriction under the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands and any
other applicable laws, rules and regulations, as well as the articles of
association of the Company (as amended from time to time).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Group’s principal corporate governance practices are set out on
page 60.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Monday, 29 May 2023
to Friday, 2 June 2023, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of Shares will be effected. In order to determine who are
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, unregistered holders of Shares of the Company shall
ensure that all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 25 May 2023.

In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed final dividend
(subject to approval by the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual
general meeting), the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Wednesday, 21 June 2023 to Friday, 23 June 2023,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will
be effected. In order to determine who are entitled to the proposed
final dividend (subject to approval by the Shareholders at the annual
general meeting), unregistered holders of Shares of the Company shall
ensure that, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch
share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at above address for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 20 June 2023. The
proposed final dividend, subject to Shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, will be paid to Shareholders on
or before Friday, 14 July 2023 whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company at the close of business on Friday, 23 June
2023.
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AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors in the
preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board

Ren Weiming
Chairman
Haiyan County, the PRC, 28 March 2023

*  For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE PURPOSE, STRATEGY AND
GOVERNANCE

The Company is headed by an effective board which assumes
responsibility for its leadership and control and is collectively
responsible for promoting its success by directing and supervising its
affairs. All Directors are expected to take decisions objectively in the
best interests of the Company.

The Company recognizes the importance of incorporating elements
of good corporate governance in the management structures and
internal control procedures of the Group so as to achieve effective
accountability. The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, as amended
from time to time (the “CG Code”), as its own code of corporate
governance.

Kingdom strives to be one of the largest linen yarn manufacturers in
the world through its commitment to sustainable development and
technical innovation, developing proprietary intellectual property
rights, branding of products and pursuing advanced management for
lean management and excellent performance to generate or preserve
value over a longer term.

All Directors are expected to act with integrity, set a good example,
and promote the desired culture and core values of the Group,
namely, Responsible, Sincere, Innovative, and Mutually Successful.

The financial performance of the Group for the Year is set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on page 4 and page 9 of this annual report.
Other performance of the Group for the Year is set out in the ESG
report which is separately published and is available for download at
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

At Kingdom, environmental considerations are central and are
embedded in our decision-making and management processes.
Kingdom also supports the development of innovative technologies
and properly uses and invests in technologies and businesses that
have less adverse impact on the environment.
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The Board is committed to periodically review the progress made
against ESG-related goals and targets to facilitate the Group’s
sustainable development of its business, in order to generate or
preserve value over a longer term.

Except for the deviation from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code as
further detailed in the section headed “Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer”, the Company has complied with all the code provisions set
out in the CG Code that were in effect during the Year. The Company
will continue to review and monitor its corporate governance
practices to ensure the compliance of the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code and has also devised
a code of conduct regarding securities transactions by Directors on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model
Code. Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, all the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the provisions
of the Model Code and the Company’s code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions for the Year and up to the date of this
annual report.

THE BOARD

The Board consists of eight Directors, four of whom are executive
Directors, one of whom is non-executive Director and three of
whom are independent non-executive Directors. There are seven
male Directors and one female Director. The functions and duties
conferred on the Board include: overseeing the Group’s businesses,
strategic decisions and performance, promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs, convening
Shareholders” meetings and reporting on the work of the Board to the
Shareholders at Shareholders’ meetings as may be required by the
applicable laws, implementing resolutions passed at Shareholders’
meetings, determining the Company’s business plans and investment
plans, formulating the Company’s annual budget and final accounts,
formulating the Company’s proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties
as conferred on it by the Articles and the applicable laws. The senior
management is delegated with the authority and responsibility by the
Board to oversee the day-to-day management and operations of the
Group, and will report back and obtain prior Board approval before
making key investment decisions.
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The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and to consider and approve the
overall strategies and policies of the Company. The composition of the
Board and attendance of individual Directors at the meetings of the
Board, the Remuneration Committee, the Audit Committee and the

Nomination Committee during the Year are as follows:

Directors £E

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Ren Weiming RHERSY
(Chairman of the Board) (EEFTF/E)

Mr. Shen Yueming LEERR T A

Mr. Zhang Hongwen RIBX ST

Ms. Shen Hong LB L

Non-executive Director EHITES

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert PR IR E

Independent non-executive Directors &I IFHITES

Mr. Lau Ying Kit Bk E
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (FEIZEEZF/E)

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BERERE
(Chairman of the Nomination FEEZEETF/E)
Committee)

Mr. Yan Jianmiao BEmSE
(Chairman of the Remuneration FWZSZF/E)

Committee)

Apart from regular Board meetings, the chairman of the Board also
held meetings with the independent non-executive Directors without
the presence of the other Directors during the Year.
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The biographical details of the current Board members are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
page 24 of this annual report. Save as otherwise disclosed, there
is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material relationship) between any members of the Board or senior
management of the Company.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors with at least one independent non-
executive Director possessing appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise, and the
independent non-executive Directors represented over one-third of
the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules during the Year and
remain so as at the date of this annual report.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management to fulfil their duties and, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All Directors
also have access to the company secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. An agenda and accompanying Board/
committee papers are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notice in advance of the relevant meetings.
Minutes of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees,
which record in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board/
committee and decisions reached, including any concerns raised by
the Directors or dissenting views expressed, are kept by the company
secretary and are available for inspection by the Directors.
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Pursuant to article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
a multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least
once every three years and be eligible for re-election. In accordance
with article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert, Mr. Yan
Jianmiao and Ms. Shen Hong shall retire from office by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. All retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The re-election of Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson
(who had both served the Board for more than nine years) as
independent non-executive Directors were approved by way of
separate resolutions in the annual general meeting held on 21 May
2021.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
Every Director must always know their responsibilities as a Director of
the Company and the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. Given the essential unitary nature of the Board,
non-executive Directors have the same duties of care and skill and
fiduciary duties as executive Directors.

Newly appointed Directors of the Company will receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on appointment from
the legal advisors of the Company. Subsequently, they will also
receive briefings and professional development trainings necessary
to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and business and are fully aware of their responsibilities
under statute and common law, the Exchange Listing Rules, legal
and other regulatory requirements and the Company’s business and
governance policies.

The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities of the
Directors in relation to the financial statements, should be read
in conjunction with, but be distinguished from, the Independent
Auditors” Report on page 90 which states the reporting responsibilities
of the Group’s auditors.
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Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year, which gives a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group, and present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports and other
financial disclosures required by the Exchange Listing Rules.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the
Group has used appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards have been
followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622, Laws of Hong Kong) and the
applicable accounting standards.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have any officer with the title of “chief
executive officer”. However, Mr. Ren Weiming, who acts as the
chairman of the Company, is also responsible for overseeing the
general operations of the Group. The Board meets regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Company.
The Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance
of power and authority between the Board and the management of
the Company and is conducive to strong and consistent leadership,
enabling the Company to operate efficiently.
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The chairman is to provide leadership for the Board and to take
primary responsibility for ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established. The chairman should ensure
that the Board works effectively and performs its responsibilities, and
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely
manner. The chairman will ensure that all Directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and ensure that all
Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate information, which
must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable.

The chairman is to encourage all Directors to make a full and active
contribution to the Board’s affairs and take the lead to ensure that
it acts in the best interests of the Company, to encourage Directors
with different views to voice their concerns, allow sufficient time for
discussion of issues and ensure that Board decisions fairly reflect the
Board’s consensus.

The chairman is to ensure that appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with the Shareholders and that their views
are communicated to the Board as a whole, and to promote a culture
of openness and debate by facilitating the effective contribution
of non-executive Directors in particular and ensuring constructive
relationship between executive and non-executive Directors. The
chairman held a meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors during the Year.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The functions of non-executive directors include:

(@)  participating in Board meetings to bring an independent
judgement on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standards of
conduct;

(b)  taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
remuneration and nomination

(c) serving on the audit,
committees, if invited; and

(d)  scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed
corporate goals and objectives, and monitoring performance
reporting.

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert, a non-executive Director, renewed his
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years with an
annual remuneration of HK$120,000 on 1 January 2022.

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson and Mr. Lau Ying Kit, who are
independent non-executive Directors of the Company, renewed
their appointments with the Company on the same terms with an
annual remuneration of HK$120,000 and HK$144,000 respectively
for another three years on 1 January 2022. Mr. Yan Jianmiao was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 30 May 2016. Mr. Yan has
renewed his appointment with the Company for a term of three years
with similar terms as other independent non-executive Directors with
an annual remuneration of HK$120,000 with effect on 30 May 2022.
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MECHANISM TO ENSURE BOARD INDEPENDENCE

Mr. Lau Ying Kit has been serving as an independent non-executive
Director since his appointment on 13 November 2006 and Mr.
LO Kwong Shun Wilson has been serving as an independent non-
executive Director since his appointment on 17 May 2010.

The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure and
composition of the Board, the confirmations and disclosures given
by each of the retiring Directors, the qualifications, skills and
experience, time commitment and contribution of each of the
retiring Directors with reference to the nomination principles and
criteria set out in the Company’s board diversity policy, the director
nomination policy and the corporate strategy. The Nomination
Committee has recommended to the Board that the re-election of all
retiring Directors and continuous appointments of independent non-
executive Directors who have served for more than nine years be
proposed for Shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting.
Based on the professional qualifications and the independent scope
of work for Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson, the
Board determines that the continuous appointments of Mr. Lau Ying
Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson as independent non-executive
Directors will bring considerable stability to the Board.

Mr. Lau Ying Kit has extensive experience in the accounting field. His
participation in the Board brings independent judgments on issues
relating to the Group’s accounts, internal controls, risk management,
nominations of directors, conflicts of interests and other management
matters. Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson has extensive experience in
the corporate finance field. His participation in the Board brings
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group’s corporate
finance, accounting, internal control, risk management, nomination
of directors, conflict of interests and other management matters.

The Board also noted that each of Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong
Shun Wilson had not engaged in any executive management of the
Group. Taking into consideration of each of their independent scope
of work in the past years, the Directors considered each of Mr. Lau
Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson to be independent under the
Listing Rules despite the fact that each of Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo
Kwong Shun Wilson had been serving the Company for more than
nine years and would continue to bring valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning and diversity.

The further appointment of Mr. Lau Ying Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun
Wilson will be subject to a separate resolution to be approved by
the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting with
additional disclosures in accordance with the CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

During the Year, the Directors were provided with regular updates
on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to enable
the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. In
addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company updates the Directors on the latest development
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements from time to time, to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices. During the
Year, the Company arranged a training on latest changes on the CG
Code and the Listing Rules, with topics covering core shareholder
protection standards, codification of other requirements, consultation
conclusions on review of the CG Code and related listing rules and
listing rules amendments relating to share schemes, for Directors’
continuous professional development. All Directors attended the
training.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE
AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against them. During
the Year, no claim had been made against the Directors and officers of
the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Mr. Chan Yan Kwan Andy, the company secretary
of the Company, a Chartered Secretary and a Chartered Governance
Professional, attended relevant professional training for not less than
15 hours.

Mr. Chan is an employee of the Group and reports to the chairman
of the Board. All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all
applicable law, rules and regulations, are followed.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company were established
with defined written terms of reference and report their findings
and recommendations to the Board after each meeting of the Board
committees. An updated list of Directors identifying their roles and
functions and whether they are independent non-executive Directors,
and the terms of reference of the Board committees are provided on
the website of the Company and on the Stock Exchange’s website and
are available to the Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman and
members of each Board committee is set out under the section titled
“Corporate Information” on page 2 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee has adopted written terms of
reference prepared by reference to the requirements under the
code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee are to consider and recommend to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Hongwen, Mr. Yan Jianmiao (chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year
to review the remuneration policy and structure and determine
the annual remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
the senior executives and other related matters. The Remuneration
Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration.
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Two Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the Year. At
the meetings, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved
the remuneration of the Directors, after comparing with that of the
directors of similar textile companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
The Remuneration Committee reviewed the share schemes of the
Company (i.e. share option scheme and share award plan) during the
Year. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were
also reviewed and amended during the Year.

The attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee at the said meetings is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors EEH4

Mr. Zhang Hongwen RIBX L

Mr. Yan Jianmiao (Chairman) EEESLE (F/E)
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson EERERE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee (the “NC”) has adopted written terms of
reference prepared by reference to the requirements under the code
provision B.3.1 of the CG Code which is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The primary functions of
the NC are to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually;
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors and
review the Board’s diversity policy and to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment or reappointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, based on skills, knowledge and
experience, to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The
NC also determined the policy for the nomination of Directors and
the nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted
by the NC to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
The NC comprises of one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shen Yueming, Mr. Lau Ying
Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (chairman of the Nomination
Committee).
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One meeting was held during the Year. At the meeting, the NC
reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and the
Board’s diversity policy. The attendance record of each member of the
NC at the said meeting is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors EXNA

Mr. Shen Yueming L EERR S A

Mr. Lau Ying Kit EESHS S

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (Chairman) BEESRE EE)

Nomination Policy

Objective

The NC shall nominate suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to shareholders for election
as Directors including independent non-executive Directors of the
Company (the “INEDs”) at general meetings or appoint as Directors
including INEDs to fill casual vacancies.

The NC may, as it considers appropriate, nominate a number of
candidates more than the number of Directors to be appointed or

reappointed at a general meeting, or the number of casual vacancies
to be filled.

The ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of Directors
rests with the Board.

Selection Criteria
The factors listed below would be used as reference by the NC in

assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate.

o Reputation for integrity

J Accomplishment and experience in the textile industry
o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
J Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,

age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service
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These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive
nor decisive. The NC has the discretion to nominate any person, as it
considers appropriate.

Retiring INEDs are eligible for nomination by the Board to stand
for re-election at a general meeting. For those who have served as
INEDs for a period of nine consecutive years, such retiring INEDs
may stand for re-election at a general meeting subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the Shareholders at a general meeting.
For the avoidance of doubt, the nine-year period for determining the
independence of an INED for nomination by the Board to stand for
re-election at a general meeting would count from his/her date of first
appointment as an INED until the date of the general meeting.

Proposed candidates will be asked to submit the necessary personal
information in a prescribed form, together with their written consent
to be appointed as an INED and to the public disclosure of their
personal data on any documents or the relevant websites for the
purpose of or in relation to their standing for election as an INED.

Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the NC shall call a meeting of the NC, and
invite nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the NC prior to its meeting. The NC may also put
forward candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy, the NC shall make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval. For proposing candidates
to stand for election at a general meeting, the NC shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the publication of the circular to the Shareholders, the
nominated persons shall not assume that they have been
recommended by the Board to stand for election at the general
meeting.
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In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by
the Board to stand for election at a general meeting, a circular will
be sent to Shareholders. The circular to Shareholders will set out
the names, brief biographies (including qualifications and relevant
experience), independence, proposed remuneration and any other
information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time
before the general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the
Company Secretary.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

As there may be more candidates than the number of vacancies
available, the “highest number of votes” method will be used to
determine who shall be elected as an INED.

The Nomination Committee may request candidates to provide
additional information and documents, if considered necessary.

BOARD DIVERSITY REVIEW AND POLICY

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to, textile industry experience,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The
ultimate decision will be based on the merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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During the Year, the NC had reviewed and compared the diversity of
the Board with all the listed companies in Hong Kong, in terms of the
number of directors a board has, the number of INEDs, the board’s
gender and average age. The NC also reviewed the professional

qualification and expertise of all the Directors. The Board is of the
view that board diversity has been achieved. The Board’s composition
(together with details on the Directors’ textile industry experience,

age, gender and holding of office in textile association) is as follows:

Name

e

REN Weiming

R4S

SHEN Yueming

ML

ZHANG Hongwen
R

SHEN Hong

NGAN Kam Wai Albert
e

LAU Ying Kit

G

LO Kwong Shun Wilson
RERE

YAN Jianmiao

BEH

Measurable objectives

Textile Industry
experience

AT RAEER

Yes
=
Yes
=
Yes
B
Yes
=
Yes

No
T~
=
No
I~
=
No
I~
| )

Age
e

63
61
56
56
74
49
49

57

The Company’s measurable objectives of the Board diversity policy

are as follows:

1) At least half of the members of the Board should have textile

industry experience.

2)  Atleast one Director should hold office/honorary title in textile
association(s) in order to ensure the Company receive first-
hand information about the development and challenges of the

industry.
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3) There must be one female Director at the minimum. Gender
is not the primary consideration subject to the Company’s
compliance with any applicable requirements. The primary
consideration of Board member candidates will be based on
the merit and the contribution the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

With seven male Directors and one female Director currently in the
Board, the board gender diversity is considered achieved. The Board
and NC will continue considering potential successors to the Board to
maintain or enhance gender diversity.

Gender diversity of general workforce

As at 31 December 2022, Kingdom had 4,087 employees,
including those from the production, research and development and
management teams. Female staff accounted for approximately 63% of
the workforce as the production of linen yarn calls for a relative high
degree of attentiveness and deftness which is more common with
women, and the majority of them are between the ages of 31 and 50.

The general workforce is considered to be with proper gender
diversity.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rules 3.21
and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written terms of reference
in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems of the Group
as well as the Group’s internal audit function and to provide advice
and comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee is responsible for determining the policy for the
corporate governance of the Company and performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

J to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

J to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);
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J to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

J to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lau Ying
Kit, Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson and Mr. Yan Jianmiao, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Lau Ying Kit, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the Year, the Audit Committee held three meetings. At the
meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s relationship
with the external auditor, discussed with the Company’s external
auditor on the tasks performed by them including the nature and
scope of their audit and reporting obligations, and reviewed the terms
of engagement and their remuneration, reviewed the Company’s final
results for the year ended 31 December 2021,
the six months ended 30 June 2022 and the continuing connected

interim results for

transactions with the external auditors, and communicated with the
external auditors twice without the presence of the management in
2022. The Audit Committee also reviewed and approved the internal
audit report and considered the effectiveness of the Group's internal
audit function. The attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee at the said meetings is set out in the table below:

Name of Directors EEUS

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (Chairman) BIRGRE (B
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEELE

Mr. Yan Jianmiao BRZEALE

During the Year, the Audit Committee revised the terms of reference
of the Audit Committee, and reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, the Group's internal control
functions, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
internal control and risk management, the compliance with the
Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosures in this Corporate Governance Report.
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The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which have been
prepared on a going concern basis and in compliance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. There has been no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.

AUDIT, INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.

Management has provided sufficient explanation and information to
the Board to enable it to make an informed assessment of financial
and other information put before it for approval. Management
accounts with both financial and operational data were circulated
to all Directors on a monthly basis to give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of

the Listing Rules.

The Company has in place a sound and effective internal control
system to safeguard the Shareholders’ investment and the Group's
assets. The Company has an internal audit function. The Audit
Committee is entrusted by the Board to monitor the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control and risk management systems on
an ongoing basis so as to ensure that the internal control and
risk management systems in place, including the resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes, accounting,
internal audit, compliance and financial reporting functions of the
Company are adequate.
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The Company has established written policies and procedures
applicable to all operating units to ensure the effectiveness of internal
controls. The risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed on a half-yearly basis. The Company also has a process
for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks (including
ESG risks) associated with the achievement of its operational
objectives. The day-to-day operation of the Company is entrusted to
the individual department, which is accountable for its own conduct
and performance, and is required to strictly adhere to the policies set
by the Board/Audit Committee. The Company carries out reviews on
the effectiveness of the internal control systems, including financial,
operational and compliance controls from time to time in order to
ensure that they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic and ever
changing business environment.

The Company has established an optimized risk management and
internal control system consisting of the Board, Audit Committee,
management team, internal control and all departments of the
Company. In respect of risk management and internal control, all
departments of the Company are the first line of defence, the internal
control and management teams are the second line of defence, and
the Audit Committee of the Board is the third line of defence. The
Board is ultimately responsible for the development of a sound risk
management and internal control system of the Company and the
effective implementation of risk management, and is the highest
decision-making authority for risk management and internal control
of the Company.

The primary objective of risk management is to have all the business
risks effectively identified, measured, analysed and controlled, such
as having them measured against defined limits, monitored, reported
and managed (including mitigation of risks), followed by the pursuit
of business development on the premise of keeping risks in check.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

The Audit Committee conducted review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems twice during
the Year including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management.
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During the Year, the Company scrutinized and identified potential
risks associated with its corporate structure and business operation by
executing basic risk management procedures in all key operations.
A risk register of the Company was established to gain substantial
information on its overall risk characteristics, providing a solid
foundation for risk management and internal control.

The Company conducted an analysis and assessment on the identified
risks based on their possibility and influence, so as to determine the
risk levels and identify the significant risks faced by the Company.
A summary of key risks identified from the perspective of global
economy, industry and company level was reviewed and discussed
by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Based on the review of the results of risk management and internal
control, no material failure or weakness was found in respect of
risk monitoring during the Year. The management procedures of
financial reports and information disclosure of the Company were
in compliance with the Listing Rules. The Board considered that the
risk management and internal control of the Company to be effective
during the Year and up to the date of this annual report.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
obligations under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules and the SFO and
the overriding principle that any inside information of the Company
should be announced as soon as practicable. The Company reviews
from time to time its internal guidelines on inside information with
reference to its own and industry circumstances and the Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission.

The Company’s policy contains a strict prohibition on unauthorized
use of confidential or inside information. The Chairman and the chief
financial officer of the Company are the key spokespersons of the
Company in all external media communications.

The purpose of streamlining the communications of the Group with
the media is to regulate all media communication activities, protect
the interests of the Company and keep inside information strictly
confidential prior to its disclosure.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

Kingdom also advocates the principles of integrity, honesty, equity
and compliance in the communication and conduct of its entire staff.
It strictly requires its staff to:

J reject any bribe, unfair competition, malpractice and
embezzlement of corporate assets;

J refuse to do anything harmful to the Company, the environment
and the society; and

J refrain from receiving or offering bribes, illegal political
contributions or improper donations, events, gift or services.

Kingdom maintains detailed operating procedures, codes of
conduct and reward and punishment systems, and makes sure all its
employees understand the importance of and uphold integrity and
ethics.

Staff can report to their immediate superiors, the human resource
department and the top-ranking executives with respect to any non-
compliance such as breach or dereliction of duty, abuse of power,
receiving bribes or embezzlement of corporate property by means
of mail, electronic mail or phone. The issue will then be reported
to the human resources department or the Audit Committee for
investigation, collection of evidence, verification and resolution, and
upon verification will be handled in accordance with the law.

Topics of anti-bribery and anti-corruption are covered in staff trainings
and the same are included in the employee regulations section of the
staff handbook.

During the Year, there was no reported case in relation to corruption,
bribery, blackmail, fraud and money-laundering, legal actions for
anti-competitive behaviour, anti-trust, and monopoly practices.
Kingdom will adhere to its corporate ethics and uphold its reputation
to prevent corruption. There were also no illegal activities or relevant
fine or punishment made against the Group in respect of products,
human rights or the society. No political contribution was made in
2021.
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WHISTLE-BLOWING POLICY/GRIEVANCE CHANNEL
In order to protect the legitimate rights and interests of employees,
strengthen the effective communication between the employees and
the company’s management, timely communicate and implement
rules and regulations formulated by the company, discover and
deal with various hidden problems, establish a harmonious,
stable, and united labor relationship and create a good corporate
culture, and for individuals to seek advice and raise concerns about
responsible business conduct in the Group’s operations and business
relationships, Kingdom has adopted a whistle-blowing policy, with
the following principles:

° Legal, fair and just;

J Equal dialogue and engagement;
J Transparent and barrier-free;

° No retaliation;

o Confidential;

J Simple and easy to use.

The grievance channels include suggestion box, notice board
displaying various channels to air grievances, telephone, mobile
phone, email (ss@kingdom-china.com) and WeChat. We promise that
we will handle any complaint within 10 working days.

ANNUAL REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO THE
MEMBERS OF SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

BIMHER HHRRE

AEEEI A D MBRETRARNTAEEEZ
BB BER REBBITATATFENRE
FIE FRMRESERS BUMKE - RENE
EHNSERFR TEERFNEEXE UkHt
BAMAEREENEBHAETINESEHET
HEREREMNRELEL SERMBRBCR H
JRAJINT

s BEAAFRRLE;
o  TEHENZHA,
o B ERE,

s MERE,

o MEBEZR-

HFREBEERERE - BTRERBAEFR
RENRLAEW - BF - FH -BTEFBH
(ss@kingdom-china.com)f {5 - — B #ZH|#
BAIEERE10ETERAARIE-

FEAT = 4 ' 1R 8 B & B 55 FE i

HE-_S-—F+-A=+—BHIE5E BRE
BEMENEEFHEENT

Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands (RMB) HNEE (AR N
RMB1,500,001 — RMB2,000,000 AR &1 ,500,001 T AR ﬁfrﬁ1§_‘z2,000,00077|: 1

2022 Annual Report — &~ " F £



Corporate Governance Report

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the Year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s external
auditors, Ernst & Young, is as follows:

Services rendered AR
Audit Services EIZARTE
Tax services RIEARTS

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the 2022
financial statements are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors” Report” on page 90. Save as disclosed above and in the
section headed “Independent Auditors” Report”, the Company did not
engage Ernst & Young for any non-audit services during the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all
information and representations contained in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Year, which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the operating
results and cash flow for the year. The Directors consider that the
financial statements have been prepared in conformity with all
applicable accounting standards and requirements and reflect
amounts that are based on the best estimates, reasonable information
and prudent judgment of the Board and the management. The
Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors have prepared the consolidated financial statements of the
Group on a going concern basis.

The statements of the auditor of the Group about its reporting
responsibility on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
are set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on page 82 of this
annual report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT
Within the knowledge of the Board, there have been sufficient public

float of not fewer than 25% of number of total outstanding shares of
the Company according to the “Disclosure of Interests” records at the
website of the Stock Exchange, as of 31 December 2021 and as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(i)

Procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) (including
making proposals/moving a resolution at the EGM to be
called by the Board)

Any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”),
to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, including putting
forward proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to require an EGM to be called
by the Board for the purpose of making proposals or moving
a resolution at the EGM must deposit a written requisition (the
“Requisition”) signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned
to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong
Kong at 5/F, Manulife Place, 348 Kwun Tong Road, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.
The Requisition must state clearly the name of the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their shareholding in the
Company, the reason(s) for convening an EGM, the agenda
of the EGM including the details of the business(es) proposed
to be transacted at the EGM, and signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned.
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The Company will check the Requisition, and the identity and
the shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder(s) will be verified
by the Company’s branch share registrar. If the Requisition is
found to be proper and in order, the Company Secretary will
ask the Board to convene an EGM within two months and/or
include the proposal or the resolution proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder at the EGM after the deposit of the Requisition. On
the contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as being not in
order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not convene an
EGM and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed by
the Eligible Shareholder(s) at the EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Board
has not advised the Eligible Shareholder(s) of any outcome to
the contrary and fails to proceed to convene such EGM, the
Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/themselves may do so
in accordance with the Articles, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned by the Company.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong at 5/F, Manulife Place, 348
Kwun Tong Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or email
to ir@kingdom-china.com for the attention of the investors
relation department of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS MEETINGS

Shareholders are given sufficient notice of Shareholders meetings and

the chairman of a meeting will ensure that an explanation is provided

of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answer any

questions from Shareholders on voting by poll.

For each substantially separate issue at a general meeting, a separate
resolution will be proposed by the chairman of that meeting.

All Directors (including the chairman of the Board, the Audit

Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee) are expected to attend the annual general meeting to
answer questions at the annual general meeting.
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CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there were tidy-up and housekeeping amendments
made to the Memorandum of Association of the Company (the
“Memorandum”) and amendments were made to the Articles of
Association of the Company (the “Articles”) in order to (i) reflect
and align with the new requirements under the amendments on
the Listing Rules with effect from 1 January 2022; (ii) enable the
Company to convene and hold electronic or hybrid general meetings
of members and provide flexibility to the Company in relation to the
conduct of general meetings; (iii) reflect other relevant requirements
of the Listing Rules and company law of the Cayman Islands; and (iv)
make other consequential, tidy-up and housekeeping amendments.

The amendments and the adoption of the new Memorandum and
the new Articles have been approved by the Shareholders by way of
a special resolution at the annual general meeting and have become
effective on 27 May 2022. The full text of the new Memorandum
and the new Articles have been published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group firmly believes the importance of communicating with
the investment community and the Shareholders in attaining a high
level of transparency. Since its listing, the Group has maintained
various communication channels with analysts and fund managers
such as one-on-one meetings, telephone communications, and press
releases. The general meetings of the Company provide a platform
for communication between the Shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee or if, in
their absence, other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent board committee, are available
to answer questions at the Shareholders’ meetings. The Company
endeavours to provide timely and accurate information to the
investors to enhance the understanding of the investors about the
linen industry, as well as the business development strategy and
direction of the Group.

In light of the above, the Group considers that the Group’s current
Shareholders” communication policy is effective. The Group will
continue to maintain a close relationship with investors and develop
greater understanding about the Group for international investors, to
enhance investors’ confidence in the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

As at 31 December 2022, the market capitalisation of the Company
was approximately HK$894,142,760 based on 629,678,000 Shares
outstanding at the closing price of HK$1.42 per Share.

The details of the substantial shareholders of the Company can be
found on page 39 of this annual report.

CONTACT DETAILS

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Kingdom Holdings Limited
5/F, Manulife Place
348 Kwun Tong Road
Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Investor Relations Department)

Fax: +852 3628 2284
Email: ir@kingdom-china.com
DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for
reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The information
does not represent and should not be regarded as legal or other
professional advice from the Company to the Shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the Company.
The Company disclaims all liabilities and losses incurred by its
Shareholders in reliance on any contents of this section headed
“Shareholders’ Rights”.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BT R S

et
EY:x

To the shareholders of Kingdom Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingdom
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
set out on pages 97 to 212, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

B BEN RS
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BERAERMAESFBEGHVYBBRRARHAERR
ETREN HATEHELEFREHEBNE
R TS —FEEBSATENAEEN
B AE R

HPIEEBIT T SR EZEATFLF S HHAFR
ZREHNEFTBOEMANE R BFEABLEFE
MR EE - B AT TEEERT
AEH LS HY BRI B AR R
REANEF - RMURTEARFNER  BFER
HTREBEFAATHRER  SEBERS HEH
BRERBASREHTER

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

HRESNEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZERAEBE PR AIEEE

Assessment on impairment for non-current assets

B B ERY B E Y

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and other
intangible assets was RMB1,150 million in aggregate,
which represented 40% of the Group’s total assets. As
the carrying amount of the Group’s net assets was higher
than the Company’s market capitalisation, management
performed an impairment test on its non-current assets.
This assessment requires management to make certain key
assumptions, such as cash flow projections covering a five-
year period, the future growth rate and the discount rate,
which are highly judgemental.
RIB__F+"B=+—H WE -BERRMHE"
ERAREERHEMETLEENRESREHA/ARE
1,150,000,00070 > 1 SEMBEMREN40% BER &
EREEFENRASESN BATNTE WERE
BEHIFRBEEETREANN LREREEEFH

ETWRER NAEHRS RN KRIEERRE
S ESPECES

Our audit procedures included assessing the identification
of cash-generating units and key assumptions, including
those related to future increases in expected growth
rates, turnover and discount rates, projection periods and
disposal values of the non-current assets at the end of
the projection period applied. In performing our audit
procedures, we involved our internal valuation specialists
in assessing the valuation methodology used and the key
assumptions applied and performed sensitivity analyses on
the key assumptions.

HPIvE R EMEREEE BUNHA k& EH
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

FAEEASEEw

Key audit matter

BB EE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZERAEBE PR AIEEE

Assessment on impairment for non-current assets

B B ERY B E Y

Detailed information about the significant accounting
judgements and estimates on impairment for non-current
assets is provided in note 3 to the financial statements.
BERFFRBEERENERE B RENFRER
INEEE SRR

We also reviewed the historical financial performance
of the business units and compared it with the original
forecasts when evaluating management’s budgeting
process. We have also reviewed the relevant disclosures in
the financial statements.

HATERNEBEUNELMBRRE TRHERAR
ALEE ML EEE R ERENBRE - KMATEEY

IR BIAERIMEE o

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Annual Report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s
report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the
date of the auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

J Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matter. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Shun Lung Wai.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2023
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REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income tax expense
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
Basic

Diluted

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BHE=R

Year ended 31 December 2022 #E T —#F+ _F=+—HIFFE

Notes
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FRHEF
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BREEB A
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EhEkREH
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#a 12

2022 2021
—E-= B4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARMEF T
2,021,055 1,799,690
(1,634,155) (1,508,105)
386,900 291,585
54,431 7,136
(41,532) (34,381)
(118,427) (98,406)
(13,192) (3,803)
(33,852) (39,044)

500 =

234,828 123,087
(63,020) (32,587)

171,808 90,500
175,696 88,223
(3,888) 2,277

AR #RMB0.297T AR H¥RMBO.147T
AR ¥RMB0.297T AR HBERMBO.147T
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SHEERmR

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_EFE - —F+ _H=+—HIFEZE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests
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2022 2021
—E-= B4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARMEF T
171,808 90,500
(3,081) (9,722)
168,727 80,778
172,615 78,501
(3,888) 2,277
168,727 80,778




NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Investment properties
Right-of-use assets

Other intangible assets
Prepayments for equipment
Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and notes payables

Other payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings

Derivative financial instruments

Dividends payable

Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES
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Notes
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15
16

17

18
19

20
22
22

23
24

25
21

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BHMBINRR

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

2022 2021
—E-= B4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARMEF T
1,075,398 1,150,775
4,533 5,132
68,815 87,362
6,173 5,987
1,082 1,456
8,473 7,233
3,407 3,407
1,167,881 1,261,352
685,180 629,221
426,267 512,732
96,225 92,219
61,900 44,730
467,469 249213
1,737,041 1,528,115
367,096 293,920
228,094 210,602
696,344 828,378

= 1,275

307 182
27,866 14,948
1,319,707 1,349,305
417,334 178,810
1,585,215 1,440,162
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BHMBARRE

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liabilities

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings

Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY
Equity attributable to owners of
the parent

Share capital
Treasury shares
Reserves

Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Ren Weiming
{EAERR

Director

EF
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Notes
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25

26
27
29

2022 2021
—=E=-= B4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARMEF T
1,585,215 1,440,162
40,666 32,129
56,559 57,417
97,225 89,546
1,487,990 1,350,616
6,329 6,329
(13,305) (13,305)
1,412,964 1,272,702
1,405,988 1,265,726
82,002 84,890
1,487,990 1,350,616

Shen Yueming
7L EEEA
Director

EF



At31 December 2020 (Restated)

Profit for the year
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transfer from retained profits

Acquisition of a subsidiary under
common control

Capital contribution from non-
controlling shareholders

Acquisition of non-controlling
interests

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders

At 31 December 2021

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EHESEER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #E T —#F+ _F=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATRA AL
Non-
Issued Share Treasury Merger  Statutory Other ~ Exchange  Refained controlling Total
capital ~ premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BEf 13201

ke ROVER EERG  AHERE OZERE  BtEE  EREE  REE izt B RElE
RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMB00  RMB00D  RMB00D  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AERTT ARNTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTn ARRTn ARRTR ARETR ARRTT ARWTR

R-IE-5E
+ZA=+-R @E5) 6,329 269,226 (13,305) 204,816 145,113 = (2,662) 585747 1195264 44371 1,239,635
FRER - - - - - - - 88,223 88,223 2277 90,500
BEENEENERER
= = = = = = (9,722) = 9,722) = 9722)
FRZANEAS
- - - - - - (9,722) 88,223 78,501 2277 80,778
ERERERT - - = = 12,515 = = (12,515) = = =
hE—EEANNHEAS
- - - (8,797) - - - - (8,797) - (8,797)
FERREEE
= = = = = = = = = 46,000 46,000
G Fizeslia 3oy
= = = = = 758 = = 758 (758) -
S FEERRRORE
- - - - - - - - - (7,000 (7,000
i
+ZA=1+-A 6329  269226* (13305  196,019*  157,628* 7585 (12,384 661455% 1,265,726 84,890 1,350,616
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Consolida}ed Statement of Changes in Equity
aHESEHR

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HZE L= _HF+ _H=+—HIFFE

At 31 December 2021

Profit for the year
Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Transfer from retained profits

Capital contribution from
non-controlling shareholders

Final 2021 dividend declared

At 31 December 2022

*

RIE_-—&
=A=—H

E R
BEBIMEENERER

FRZENGEE

EHERTET
SHERRRIE

BER-E_-FXHRR

statement of financial position.

2022 Annual Report — & — " £

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATREE A

Non-
Issued Share Treasury Merger  Statutory Other  Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BEfRs  ROEE BERH  AffHE  ZERG HMBE  EREG  RIE et HEblREE  EnlE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETR ARETR ARETT ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETR
6,329 269,226 (13,305 196,019 157,628 758 (12,384) 661,455 1,265,726 84890 1,350,616
= = = = = = = 175,696 175,696 (3,888) 171,808
- - - - - - (3,081) = (3,081) - (3,081)
- - - - - - (3,081) 175,69 172,615 (3,888) 168,727
- - - - 18,724 = = (18,724) = = =
- - - - - - - - - 1,000 1,000
= = = = = = = (32,353) (32,33) = (32,353)
6,329 269,226* (13305  196019* 176352 758¢ (15465  786,074* 1405988 82,002 1,487,990

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of  *
RMB1,412,964,000 (2021: RMB1,272,702,000) in the consolidated

FERFGROITEHRIER RN S H
ANBH#1,412,964,00077 (—FE——F . AR
1,272,702,0005T) °



CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative
instruments

— transactions not qualifying as hedges

Depreciation of property, plant and

equipment and investment properties

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Provision/(reversal of provision)
for impairment of inventories
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment

Reversal of provision for trade receivables

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Finance costs
Bank interest income

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and
notes receivables

Increase in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Proceeds from pledged deposits

New pledged deposits

Increase in trade and notes payables

Increase in other payables and accruals

Cash generated from operations

Interest received
Income tax paid

Net cash flows generated from operating
activities

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHRERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #E T —#F+ _F=+—HIFFE

Notes
HrzE

HEEFPHNHEERE

BRI ATE A

TN B IEEHRFEEE
METENAREE
m) K18
—REBRIEE
M5 7
M BB KRB
KREYEINTE 13,14
EREEEITE 15
Hthm A & Eis 16
FEERERE BEE
0] 7
HEYZE  RE K& 1E
THHEEE 7
FEURE Z R T e
E 19
HE—XRMBATH
Bam 30
2R DN 6
IRITR E WA 5

FE ogm Rl
FEWE 7 IR B IR
BmL (g
AN R REAMER
IR N
BRI PTE IR
MBS EIRE™
BB ZRMKRENR
ERE M
Hth e IR TR TR
& REm

REEENRE

BIF B
BEFER

REREENRE

MEFH

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
234,828 123,087
(1,275) 1,275
104,772 88,934
4,226 4,460
703 580
29,144 (3,164)
11,110 470
(586) (1,423)
(500) -
33,852 39,044
(2,173) (234)
414,101 253,029
(85,103) 168,012
87,051 (135,466)
(4,006) (18,848)
395,651 202,999
(412,821) (208,096)
73,176 95,057
22,760 4,020
490,809 360,707
2,173 234
(42,805) (2,098)
450,177 358,843
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BHEERER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HE_EFE - —F+ _H=+—HIFEZE

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds from disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment
Purchase of right-of-use assets
Disposal of a subsidiary

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital contribution from non-controlling
shareholders

New bank loans

Repayment of bank loans

Proceeds from pledged deposits

New pledged deposits

Interest paid

Principal portion of lease payments

Payment for acquisition of a subsidiary
under common control

Dividends paid

Dividends paid to non-controlling
shareholders

Net cash flows used in financing activities

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

2022 Annual Report —Z - _F &R

REZPNHEERE

BEVX BMERREE
BUKRELEE
HEYZE BEKRRHER
B BYFr SRR
BEEREEE
HE—RMBAT

REEFFTANRE

MEFER

MEFHNHEERE

FERKRREE

MEBIRITEM
EERITEM
B IRFRBIPT ST
MES|ITE™
BB
HERBENAEEZEHD
W Bis — R HE R4 51 B9 BfY
EYNCI:SENE
BEARE
YT IR R AR ERAY
RS

MEEBFMANERES

ME P

RERBEEEEMIEM
FER

FURERIFETEEY

EXBHYEFE

EXRRAERFEEEY

Notes
HzE

30

31(b)

2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT

(49,890) (118,567)
7,342 4,160

(2,393) (17,145)
20,360 15,000

(24,581) (116,552)
1,000 46,000
970,624 1,187,859
(1,102,739) (1,315,974)
- 155

- (6,899)

(38,805) (43,173)
(2,110) (2,404)

- (8,800)

(32,353) -

- (7,000)
(204,383) (150,236)
221,213 92,055
249,213 166,882
(2,957) (9,724)
467,469 249,213




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
Kingdom Holdings Limited was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on 21

July 2006. The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12
December 2006.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of linen yarn.

The Company’s registered address is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands; and the principal place of business is located at 5/F,
Manulife Place, 348 Kwun Tong Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

REREERER
FEZEREAERR2EANRZZEEF LA
T+ HEREHEAMRILIAERRE
BE’/_\\T ZK@THRTDE\_%%/\E‘F H
FﬁJ)_l:T‘E°

FEBEFBERNFEERIBE DMLY -

RAB WM AE A Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands; EFZ
EEMBAUN BB NEERIEBE348 R
FE #5518

BRI B AR E R
ARABWNBE AR FHBWNT

Place and date of
establishment

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

and nature registered
Name of company of legal entity share capital
B IR R BB R BERTEAER
PG BERENME mfE/ EmRE
Overseas Kingdom Limited British Virgin Islands (“BV1”) HK$0.01/HK$500
26 July 2006
Overseas Kingdom Limited HEEYHS 0.017875,/500%7T
(RERZEE)

Kingdom Group Holdings Limited

Z2EFLAIFRH
Hong Kong, China

HK$1,250,000

(“Hong Kong Kingdom”) 10 September 2004
TEERERARAT hEEE 1,250,000 7C
(EBEEE) —ZEMEAATH

Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. PRC US$70,000,000
18 March 2003
Wholly foreign owned
enterprise

ALETRRARAT R 70,000,000 7
—BZ=£=-A+)\H’
IEEALE

Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. PRC US$18,500,000
17 October 2003
Limited liability company

IHETEMARAR R 18,500,000%7¢
—ZZ=£+A+tH’
BIRAF

Zhejiang Kingdom Linen Co., Ltd. ~ PRC RMB100,000,000
28 May 2012
Limited liability company

MISREMARAR R AE#100,000,00070
“2—HFRAZFNE
ﬁﬁﬁ NG

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

Principal activities

FAREEEGEE AL TEER
Direct Indirect
B# ifE
100% - Investment holding
100% - REER
- 100% Investment holding and
trading
= 100% RERRKRES
= 100% Manufacture and sale of
linen yarn
= 100% 4 ERHE T ML
= 100% Manufacture and sale of
linen yarn
= 100% 4 ERHE T ML
= 100% Manufacture and sale of
linen yarn
= 100% 4 ERHE DML

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ZRERAE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ATKREREH @

(continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ERMEBATNER @

Nominal value of
issued ordinary/

Place and date of
establishment

and nature registered Percentage of equity
Name of company of legal entity share capital ~ attributable to the Company  Principal activities
B3RS R B HA R BETEAER
YNGRz AIAERNLE e/ ks AAREGEEEE AL TEEH
Direct Indirect
Ef i
Kingdom Europe S.R.L. Italy EUR502,646 - 100% Trading
7 September 2007
Kingdom Europe S.R.L. EAA 502,64681 7T = 100% B%
“Z2tENAtH
Kingdom (Ethiopia) Linen PLC Ethiopia ETB1,859,676,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
16 July 2014 linen yarn
Kingdom (Fthiopia) Linen PLC BREMLE 1,859,676,000 = 100% EERHE TR
—Z-MEEA+/H BEGE DR
Heilongjiang Kingdom Enterprise ~ PRC RMB300,000,000 - 75.33% Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd. 11 March 2016 linen yarn
Limited liability company
RELZEMFEERAT R AE300,000,00070 - 7533%  EERHEDRRMY
—Z—E=A+-H’
BRAH
Kingdom T Sun (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. PRC RMB15,000,000 - 80% Trading
11 October 2019
Limited liability company
TEXR (LB BEARA R AE%15,000,00070 - 80% EBZ
“Z-NE+A+—H
BRAH
Zhejiang Kingdom REEL Textile PRC RMB20,000,000 - 100% Trading
Co., Ltd. 15 June 2020
Limited liability company
mlEERBHABRAR R AE%20,000,00070 - 100% B3
“E2RESRATRR
BRAH
Heilongjiang Kingdom Hemp PRC RMB65,000,000 - 81.03% Sale of industrial hemp
Co., Ltd. 12 June 2020
Limited liability company
RELSEQEARMARLE  SE A E%65,000,00070 - 81.03%  SHETXKARM
“ECRERATIR
BRAH
Heilongjiang Kangyuan PRC RMB10,000,000 - 60.26% R&D and sale of hemp
Seeds Industry Co., Ltd. 8 August 2017 seeds
Limited liability company
REIRBEXERAT R AE%10,000,00070 - 60.26%  BIE RIS AR
“E2—tENANB>
BRAH
Jiangxi Kingdom Fabric Co., Ltd. PRC RMB70,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of
15 December 2021 fabric
Limited liability company
IREEREERAF R AE%70,000,00070 - 100%  EERFEEAMN

2022 Annual Report — & — " £
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for derivative financial
instruments and notes receivables which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand (RMB’000), except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

2.1

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

R

AP BwRRDZRER St ERESER
i (RRMBRELER) (BIEFRA (BEE
MBREER]) ~ (BERGSHER]) k2 HE)
REB(ABMER) B B AR E MR o BRTT
TEMITARBRRERBAANEBENE
o AR BRI IRIBEE A BAIARS
BRIES AR TP HREUARE
2 MAMAEBEENEEAZEREANT
U AR®ET ) -

BHEE
BHVBREREELRRATDRAERBAT
BIEER)BE_T_—F+-A=1—
HIEFENPHERE - MBASDAEER
SEENEREFNER (BEEETE
BB MEAEESERENREBIERN
ERERIERRULEZTEHRERNR
TEEED AAERERTFRAENNUE
BRANSERMEBNERTERN) REZF
[El#R - Bl R A5 B BUS 2l 7 o

BEBRT BFERZSHRREN LIES
BZHE - HEARBDERNBRAERR
BENRTRBNELEFN T EARZE &
EERFLEEEHEAHREHRMNEN
REZtE—UIHBSERER 85

@ HEREHFRAMKEFTEANEGH
25k

b) EMEXNZHELNER ; &

(© AEBENRRERBERRE-
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such control
ceases.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss
of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(i) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2022 Annual Report —& — —F &£}

2.1

RBUEE @)
EHEE@®
M@ AR AR B R R A9R S HA
R TIRA - BRRER - WEAT
NEEHAERESZEHIEN HHEES f
AR WHESHARBEEZSFTHIER
RS-

FFEEERARHEEEREBE #m I
AMAXKEREBNEATDRBRZE @
MR REXTN G HIRER2HIEH-

WA FENIENER LR fy =8|
BTRAEP-—RRZHELIFERE  ARE
BEENMILARTERNRENR B
NEEAEREDNEE LEKXEERR
REDR 5 Ao

HAEBREHWBATNIESE RIS
RIEEDOZWBRENEE (BEEHE)
REME ()ERFFERME RN IREEER
R N BB RSB 228 5 b
BOFFRABHAAEBE  (VERFRERE
NARBEKRIGIVEETEANEIEEENR
B BN RS A o B AE P Hofth 2 T W e A PR SR Y
AEBBGBOZREBENAERERNE
EHEENERRAMRENBREEEN
DEFRENMRB DN WEA) -



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 2.2
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract

Annual Improvements to Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS

IFRS standards 2018-2020 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and
IAS 41

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are
applicable to the Group are described below:

(@ Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that,
for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to
IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the
acquisition date. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to business combinations that occurred on
or after 1 January 2022. As the Group has no business
combination that occurred in 2022, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

Bt BR R B EE

AEBECRAFEMBRERABRERT
FAEERT (BRI B RS 2R ) o

(BRI IR S 2R
EIFEAERT $
(BBt S1655M Y£ BERRE T

1) BsERER

BEIA JBREIET R R
(BPRE st 28] ) 537580 gfiﬁé\ﬁ—/’gﬁd"éﬁ?ﬁ
(EHIEN o7y

(('ﬁﬂgﬁ%fiﬁg/)) (EIRREr 5 3R 5 2281 )
F— | FE-FE B30 (BT BRE
g&ﬂﬁfgﬂ?@ ZE8) 955 ~ (EUFREA
BHREED ) B165%
TEFE R E A K (R
SEER) F4TEH
eI

el HjLﬁﬁﬁAﬂS%lE’JﬁWI%%T (BB 75
REEAVIMEERTE

(@) (BB FERELED) BIFHETER
M-E—N\FEBEMANSIBHFZE
HEHSER (THESEZR)) H)Zﬁ‘%l
PRI IR AR E5NEZE

BAKBEREERTE ZEE .J7T
AR RS 2R ) F3RMERE
5| = Z%E»(F%ﬂ%ﬁzfé;*&%
B2 NAZ BRI E & — B 5 5k
500 o sZ B INBERIRTE  EHA Bl BE B
B (BB & 5T 2E Rl ) 253758 X (B R B
BREREEZET) —REFE21RE
EANEERFIANBEMS  HZE
EEBEBELEMIENERSHD
Ed AER(HRHBREER)E
M BRESR2E (ER gt
BN F37RB(ER I B IREREES
Z)—2EE2155 MIEMSEZR It
Ih ZEEFT R BB AEER W
HEAT S HAB G AEBEHRN
“TEITHF—B—HZZBELEW
XX EMiRAIEREZE BT R BR
AEBR S __FUEELEER
A RAIbZE BT RS AE BT
kR R R A R 2 o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items
as determined by IAS 2 Inventories, in profit or loss.
Since there was no sale of items produced prior to
the property, plant and equipment being available for
use, the amendments did not have any impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used
in fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the
counterparty under the contract. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to contracts for which it
has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022
and no onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

2022 Annual Report —& — —F &£}
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020
sets out amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, Illustrative
Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details
of the amendment that is applicable to the Group are as
follows:

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an
entity includes when assessing whether the terms of
a new or modified financial liability are substantially
different from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received between
the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the
other’s behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 January 2022. As there was no
modification or exchange of the Group’s financial
liabilities during the year, the amendment did not have
any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs, that have been issued
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10

and IAS 28

Amendments to IFRS 16

IFRS 17

Amendments to IFRS 17

Amendment to IFRS 17

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to IAS 8

Amendments to [AS 12

2022 Annual Report — & — " £

but are not yet effective, in these

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture’

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts’ ?

Initial Application of IFRS 17
and IFRS 9 — Comparative
Information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current (the
“2020 Amendments”)* #

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022
Amendments” )

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction’
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

2 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective

date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024

As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June
2020, IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

g An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to
the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it
on initial application of IFRS 17

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-
lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee does
not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to
the right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16
(i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group’s financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current, in particular the determination
over whether an entity has a right to defer settlement of the
liabilities for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are
considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022, the IASB issued
the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among covenants
of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with
which an entity must comply on or before the reporting date
affect the classification of that liability as current or non-
current. In addition, the 2022 Amendments require additional
disclosures by an entity that classifies liabilities arising from
loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right to defer
settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity
complying with future covenants within 12 months after the
reporting period. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall be
applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An
entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to
apply simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa.
The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments
and whether existing loan agreements may require revision.
Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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2.3

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information
rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial statements,
it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on
the basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance on
how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting policy
disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the
amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory,
an effective date for these amendments is not necessary. The
Group is currently revisiting the accounting policy disclosures
to ensure consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes
in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies.
Accounting estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting
estimates. The amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting
estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

2.3

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

B N8 #R 18 I8 ok 4 X8 (B PR B 75 R
HEER D @

(BIRRE st 2R ) B1REST R B 57 B R
ﬁ%&— KERKREEEAGFERERM

FHIZEABR -HEFBREMNAR
RMBREMEEMEN —HZER 7
EEERPEE-—RBEMBERERNTE
EREENRZSMHRRELARE Al
ZEENBEN - (ARMBREERES
WE)B2MPETERNMARERNRS
FERR St BERINERM T IFmbEEE -
(EREEA)B1RNETERN -F
“=F-A—BuRZzERRENFERBEE
M AFFIRFRER - (BERM B REER
BEBRE) B2MmNET R EMNIESITHIE
BEIME S MZEETEANER BB IFL
B AEEBAEEEMBER G EER
B LIRFREES TR RE—e

(BIFRE 5t 2R ) SB8ERVEST R B B E 5
TE%@%IJE&%JBZ%Q@UE’JEEU g
SHREE DM BREDEESETEEN
Eﬁ%%%ﬁ°%§%1@%T¢UTFEJEH§E@HDHT§
RAstERAM R A BN EG st s
FEIAR T _=F—HA— EI‘JZZT%F’;E
BN FERSHABEN LBERRZIARE
FIaR Sz B HEN S S BERES T 5t
EEtEF  RFFHREEA - R FETAER

TEHAEENHFRREMNTANEAE
2

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ZRERAE

115



116

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

2.3

24

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial
recognition exception in IAS 12 so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences, such as leases and decommissioning
obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences
arising from these transactions. The amendments are effective
for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and shall be applied to transactions related to leases and
decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits or other component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied prospectively
to transactions other than leases and decommissioning
obligations. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did
not recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences for transactions related to leases.
Upon initial application of these amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for deductible and taxable temporary differences associated
with right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, and recognise the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits at the
beginning of the earliest comparative period presented.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Business combinations

An acquisition of a business which is a business combination
under common control is accounted for in a manner similar to
a uniting of interests whereby the assets and liabilities acquired
are accounted for at carryover predecessor values to the other
party to the business combination within all periods presented
as if the operations of the Group and the business acquired
had always been combined. The difference between the
consideration paid by the Group and the net assets or liabilities
of the business acquired is adjusted against equity.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurementicontinued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a

whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 —  based on valuation techniques for which the

lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets and financial assets), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if it can
be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person (i) has control or joint control over
the Group; (ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third party and the
other entity is an associate of the third party;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Plant and buildings 4.5%
Machinery 9.0%
Office equipment 18.0%
Motor vehicles 22.5%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant and buildings and
machinery under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the
direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs
on related borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

The Group’s investment properties are accounted for using
the cost model. The initial recognition and subsequent
measurement of land and buildings that are leased out are
accounted for using the same measurement and depreciation
methods as those of plant and buildings.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end. The useful lives of the patents and
licences and certified emission rights of the Group are 20
years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement

approach for all leases, except for short-term leases. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct
costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Plant and buildings
Motor vehicles

50 years
2 to 12 years
10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for
termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate the lease. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in
lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a change
in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Group’s lease liabilities are included in interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do
not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception
(or when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as
either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included
in other income in the statement of profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI1”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are
not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate
cash flows. The business model determines whether cash
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling
the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model
with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified and
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
are held within a business model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial
assets which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position at fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host
and accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host;
a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss
category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative is
required to be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or
. The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in
default when internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are classified
within the following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.
Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at
the reporting date (but that are not purchased
or originated credit-impaired) and for which

Stage 3 -

the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, or payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and notes
payables, other payables and accruals, dividend payable,
derivative financial instruments and interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated
at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts and cross-currency swaps, to hedge
its foreign currency risk. Such derivative financial instruments
are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when
the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit or
loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges,
which is recognised in other comprehensive income and later
reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit
or loss.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Treasury shares

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by the
Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised directly
in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of
the Group’s own equity instruments.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature
to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax
assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity
or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Government grants (continued)

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation
charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods.

(@  Sale of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps
Revenue from the sale of linen yarn, hemp yarn and
scraps is recognised at the point in time when control of
the goods is transferred to the customers, generally upon
delivery of the goods.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award plan for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group'’s operations. Employees
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services in exchange for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. Further details are given in note 28 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Pension scheme

Pursuant to the relevant regulations, the Group has participated
in a local municipal government pension scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees to the
Scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the
Scheme mentioned above. Contributions under the Scheme
are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.
There are no provisions under the Scheme whereby forfeited
contributions may be used to reduce future contributions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items included in
the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-
monetary item is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item measured at fair
value (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to
those prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries
which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

There is no significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements arising from the judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, made by management
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(@)

Impairment of non-current assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-current assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-current assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in
use. The Group identifies that there is only one cash-
generating unit comprising of all property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and other intangible
assets as the operation of the Group is managed on
a centralised basis with production allocated across
all factories based on their available capacity. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm'’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

The recoverable amount of the non-current assets of
the Group has been determined based on a value in
use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by management. The assumption that has
the most significant impact on the determination of the
recoverable amount of the Group's assets is the discount
rate and growth rate. The pre-tax discount rate applied to
the cash flow projections as at 31 December 2022 was
22%. The growth rate is estimated based on historical
growth rate and future economic environment. The
carrying amount of non-current assets under impairment
testing is RMB1,150 million (2021: RMB1,244 million).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the losses can be utilised.
Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying amount of related deferred tax
assets is RMB7,895,000 (2021: RMB16,697,000).

Werite-down of inventories

The Group’s inventories are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The Group writes down
its inventories based on estimates of the realisable
value with reference to the age and conditions of the
inventories, together with the economic circumstances
on the marketability of such inventories. Inventories will
be reviewed annually for write-down, if appropriate.
The carrying amount of inventories at 31 December
2022 was RMB685,180,000 (2021: RMB629,221,000).
Further details are contained in note 18 to the financial
statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by forms of credit
insurance).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(d)  Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables
(continued)
The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's
historical observed default rates. The Group will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience
with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical observed
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of a customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's trade receivables is disclosed in note 19 to the
financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one
single business unit that is primarily the manufacture and
sale of linen yarn. Management reviews the consolidated
results when making decisions about allocating resources
and assessing the performance of the Group. Accordingly, no
segment analysis is presented.

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

3. EARGEHERMEE @

Hst A EEM @
(d) JEWE SR TERE EE 185 E @)

BHEEERVENAEENELER
RENK -AEBKBEBRAEBREYU
HEREEEEHERERKRAEES
Ko GIYN > EFRA AL B4
ERE RARR—FRBE EmE
HNRETENENHEBE N ELE
HNERSEFAE - REBEREHEE
SEERENRR G FLUBH > Lof
AIBEME(GSTRYEE

HELERENR -BAKER TR
ARG EEB ZEBER LT &)
—EEEMMGE - RHIEEERNE
BAHIRIG SRR B RS - &
B B9 2 15 B RS 18 A B ke B 4SS IR
METRAT R EEERTERINH
BHBERENER -ARAAEEEU
HEEMNEREEBREN KM
R 199 BR

4. EEDBEHR

ROEEE AEECHEBR—EE—%
B> BN EE R IH & nffk) - EEE I
NEREFERERFERERTEEERE
REgERGHEGE -RIb cEETES
H BB A

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ZRERAE

145



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical information

(@) Revenue from external customers

An analysis of the Group'’s geographical information on

revenue attributed to the regions on the basis of customer

locations for the year ended 31 December 2022 is set

out in the following table:

Mainland China e 75

European Union BRRA

Non-European Union countries JFEREAE
(b)  Non-current assets

Mainland China e 75

Ethiopia REMELED

RESEER @
IR E R

@ FKESNEFEFKA
TR EEBNE

gt oo

=

+TZRB=+—BLFEERERFME
1t B 73 BY M (& FE 15 U A RO IR B R

DT
Revenue from external customers
KEINBERKA
2022 2021
—E_-C B —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFIT
774,455 673,137
552,726 563,110
693,874 563,443
2,021,055 1,799,690
b) FERBEE

2022 2021

= —EF"—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
790,849 861,900
368,559 392,219
1,159,408 1,254,119

The non-current asset information above is based on the
locations of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

No revenue amounting to 10 percent or more of the Group’s
total revenue was derived from sales to a single customer for
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).
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31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA~Hthhm kG

Revenue from contracts with customers, which is also the ER AW TrEIRERE XL 55 M
Group's turnover, represents the sales value of linen yarn, A0~ R AD e BE LB 5 & B E - A NPRIFE
hemp yarn and scraps, net of sales tax and deduction of any MR AERHEERINRRE BNEME
sales discounts and returns. The performance obligation is PR BB R AD ~ K FRAD K BE KB SE Ak > K
satisfied upon delivery of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps and HBBRBEXNE30E1508 N2 K
payment is generally due within 30 to 150 days from delivery, ERBEEATANTRIE

except for new customers, where payment in advance is
normally required.

An analysis of revenue from contracts with customers, other BEREHWA Bt R Em D
income and gains is as follows: T <
2022 2021
- —ET—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETF T
Type of goods or services M RFEEE
Sale of linen yarn, hemp yarn and scraps #5558 fif 40 ~ R ff4D Kz BE ) 1,966,803 1,751,747
Other services HA AR 54,252 47,943
2,021,055 1,799,690
Timing of revenue recognition Ui A T 50 By
Goods transferred at a point in time RE—RREENS R 1,966,803 1,751,747
Services provided over time PE R BT E AV AR 7S 54,252 47,943
2,021,055 1,799,690
Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities FREESDRET AR S BV S B ENRAR
at the beginning of the reporting period was RMB16,955,000 AE#16,955,0007c (ZE_—%F : AR
(2021: RMB19,752,000). 19,752,0007T) ©

Kingdom Holdings Limited &Z#ZRAERAR 147



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continvey 5. WA~ Bt zm K155 @
RiE(E M IR S 2R E 1555 BRRTE
R A —ERUAN AN RBBEANE

The information about the remaining performance obligations
for contracts with original expected duration of one year or less

is not disclosed as a practical expedient under IFRS 15.

ENERIELRITRE D AETRE-

2022 2021
- B4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETF T
Other income Hthig s
Foreign exchange differences, net SNBEZRE  JREE 37,087 =
Government grants BT fEED 12,863 4,641
Bank interest income FRITH EUWA 2,173 234
Others HAth 2,308 2,261
54,431 7,136
6. FINANCE COSTS BA 5 R A
2022 2021
—E_C —E 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREF T
Interest on bank loans RITERHF S 38,419 42,687
Interest on lease liabilities HESENFHE 386 489
Total interest expense on RERANEBES ABED
financial liabilities not at SRIBENF EMX 485
fair value through profit or loss 38,805 43,176
Less: Interest capitalised B BARERR (4,953) (4,132)
33,852 39,044
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Cost of inventories sold HEFEMA

Depreciation of property, plant and ER GV
equipment and investment properties BBV EINE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE

Amortisation of other intangible assets ~ Efth#Ef & E#H
Research and development (“R&D") ek () X

expenses

Lease payment not included in the Rt AHESBHENHAERTE
measurement of lease liabilities

Auditors’ remuneration I Glilb

Employee benefit expense (including ~ BEEEFIHZ (BFEESEK
directors’ and chief executive’s RETBASHH) :
remuneration):

Wages, salaries and other benefits TE #FeKkEMBA

Pension scheme contributions* IRINE 5T R (R0

Foreign exchange differences, net SNEERR FEE

Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative METIENAREE
instruments 8=/ (5518)

— transactions not qualifying as hedges ~ — RN & ERIEH HFHRZH

Loss on disposal of items of property, HEME BRERREERBEE

plant and equipment

Provision/(Reversal of provision) for FEREREE (EHEED)

impairment of inventories

Reversal of impairment of el E Z AR EED
trade receivables

Bank interest income HRITHEWA

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—KMBABNGEE

*

There is no forfeited contribution for the Group to offset future
contribution.
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BR¥E AT A

AEBBRRATNEN RO GIA) TAIE
IHERFH

2022 2021
g —EBC—F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mzt AREFT ARET T
1,634,155 1,460,162

13, 14 104,772 88,934
15(a) 4,226 4,460
16 703 580
33,856 31,723

15(c) 604 604
2,200 1,950

225,404 214,670

36,360 23,866

261,764 238,536

(37,087) 162

1,275 (1,275)

11,110 470

29,144 (3,164)

19 (586) (1,423)
(2,173) (234)

(500) -

* 7= &= B B 4 0R UR (AR B) A R B R e it

EoN
N
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EFKMESTHASHMN
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b),
(c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2
of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of

FR REBELTRI S FEB(RFFEMD) B
383(1)(@)~ (b)~ (O ROFUR (AT WEE
EHHER) RO B2MWRBNEERES
TEABHMIMT :

Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2022 2021

—E_C 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIT AEBEF T

Fees wE 437 437
Other emoluments: HAENE

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ REE R EYH = 3,740 3,730

Pension scheme contributions RIREFTHEIHRR 72 90

4,249 4,257

(@ Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

@ W\IFATEE

FRAEBUFRATEEINESE

during the year were as follows: LI
2022 2021
ko —B_—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARET T
Mr. Lau Ying Kit BRI E 125 125
Mr. Yan Jianmiao BB iE 104 104
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEERE 104 104
333 333

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year

(2021: Nil).
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EBERESITHAEHM @
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and b)) BITES -ERTEEREST
the chief executive BAB
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration

AR 3] BNE
g REWHE  GEMR HWEE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR ARBTR ARETR

2022 t- St
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Ren Weiming* RHERR T = 2,000 = 2,000
Mr. Shen Yueming SRR RE - 600 - 600
Mr. Zhang Hongwen RIENEE - 750 72 822
Ms. Shen Hong Bzt - 390 - 390
= 3,740 72 3,812
Non-executive director FHRTES
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BARIRRE 104 - - 104
104 = = 104
104 3,740 72 3,916

Kingdom Holdings Limited &iEZERERAR 151



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE'S 8.
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, non-executive director and

the chief executive (continued) AE @
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind contributions remuneration
i ER BRE
e kBT SRR FrbiaezE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTRT AR®TrT AR®TR
2021 BT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Ren Weiming* RMERRSE A - 1,750 - 1,750
Mr. Shen Yueming SRR RE = 750 45 795
Mr. Zhang Hongwen RIEX L - 750 45 795
Ms. Shen Hong WEZ L = 480 = 480
- 3,730 90 3,820
Non-executive director FHRTES
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BARIRRE 104 - - 104
104 - - 104
104

*

Mr. Ren Weiming, who is an executive director of the

Company, also acts as the chief executive officer of the

Company.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2021: four) directors, including the chief executive, details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details
of the remuneration for the year of the remaining one (2021:
one) highest paid employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #rse 2B R EYIF i

Pension scheme contributions BIREFTEIHFR

The remuneration of the non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employee fell within the following band:

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

hamEHMES

FR A EeEFMESSEDNS (ZF
T—F R EF EPEERSTERA
& HErMH IR RN EXXMIEE8 - R 87 T
— % (CEI—F ) IFFRFVEFAR
SITHAEBNRSHMESNFHFMFBEL
B

2022 2021
—E-= B4
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARMEF T
1,575 1,246

15 15

1,590 1,261

FEERFERSTHRAENERSHMES
BUFFENEE IS A T8 E

Number of employees

EE A
2022 2021
- BT —F
HK$1,500,000 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00078 75 22,000,00078 7T 1 1

During the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the
directors and chief executive, or any of the non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration (2021: None). None of the directors
and the chief executive, or any of the non-director and non-
chief executive highest paid employees received any payment
from the Group as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2021: None).

RBE_Z__F#+-B=+—HL#F
B HEEERESTHRABNEMIIFE
ERIFRSTHRAENRSHMNESRE
FRBRBEAFHFM (CZ-—F 1 #|) -
BMEEERERSTRAEBREMIFEEFR
FRSTHABHNRSHMEEULER
W BRAE (AT AR IB LAOR 5| B A0 A S &2 B 34 A0
ATEBRELRBNFEDEBME CT
——F 18
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10.

INCOME TAX 10.
Major components of the Group'’s income tax expense for the
year are as follows:
Current — Mainland China BIHR —FRE A B

— Charge for the year —FAZH

— Overprovision in respect of prior years —— 3B EBEREHE
Current — Hong Kong BIHR—&H

— Charge for the year —FRNZH

— Under-provision in respect of prior —BEEERETNE

years

Current — Italy BIHR— = KA

— Charge for the year —FREE

— Under-provision in respect of prior —BEEEREETE

Deferred (note 17)

Total tax charge for the year

(i)

(i)

years
IESE (HfaE17)

FRRIE HABER

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands or the
British Virgin Islands.

In accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
which was approved and became effective on 1 January
2008, the provision for current income tax of subsidiaries
in Mainland China has been based on a statutory rate
of 25% of the assessable profits of these companies
for the year, except for Zhejiang Kingdom Linen Co.,
Ltd. (“Zhejiang Kingdom”), an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group. Zhejiang Kingdom obtained the
High-new Technology Certificate for the years from 2019
to 2022 and is entitled to a tax rate of 15%.
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(ii)

2022 2021
—E-CfF —E-
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
47,485 150
(2,138) (901)
8,861 3,094
459 -
1,056 153

- 1,788

7,297 28,303
63,020 32,587

REREHEREBELEERR
KER AEBBARMASESN
REBRLESERMSHR

BEEBEBTIN _EENE—HF—
HAEMW (PR B EMMERED » AE
KEHB AT NS REFEEIR
BERNZEABNERREFE25%
EEMESE EAEEN—BEEE
2ERBATRNMISZTMARA
B (MHIZEY) BRI o MITEER
BR_E—NEE_T - _F£&H
FEENSHEMEE  IZH15%8



10.

| NCOME TAX (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate (iii)
of 8.25% on the estimated assessable profits arising in

Hong Kong up to HK$2 million. Assessable profits over

HK$2 million are subject to a tax rate of 16.5%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Italy, the Group (iv)
is subject to tax at an income tax rate of 28.82%, which

comprises the Italy Corporate Income Tax at 24% and the

Italy Regional Income Tax at 4.82%.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Ethiopia, the (v)
Group is subject to tax at an income tax rate of 30%. The

Group enjoys a tax holiday of profit tax exemption of 5

years since 2020.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate
is as follows:

BRI AT R A

Profit before tax

Tax at an applicable tax rate of 25% 1%#25%MH%E AR Rt B HIIRIE
Effect of different/beneficial tax rates Tﬂ/@%ﬂ%—?—%ﬁ st
BEEE (BEEE) BES

in respect of prior years &

(Overprovision)/Under-provision

Income not subject to tax BIERIRHIA

Tax losses not recognised RIS HIIRIEE 1R

Expenses not deductible for tax e AR 2

Tax credit arising from additional — AREIAREMT B A E1 B 22 FE SN
deduction of STHIRRE £ R IEH 2

R&D expenditures of subsidiaries
in Mainland China
Accrual of a withholding tax liability TR0 B &5
Tax effect of deductible temporary — FRFESS P40 R E BF 14 = ZRAIAR

differences not recognised BB
Total tax charge for the year FAMIEXL L HRER

10. FR1&

B HM B RRMEE
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40
EBNBRENEBEENES2H
%/%E1ED+F§D%$Q/M%| L/(S 250/0ﬁT
SHIRE - BE2A BB THRERR
E A EE16.5%M TR/

REBER AR EOER  NEB AR
28.82% A R BMFTISH ) BRI
24% M E T EHN B AT EEREIR KR
124 82% XA BNE AT MEFIF
i o

RIFIREMIE TR AR AEE
BIE30%MEHMFMBR-BZFZ
TER AEEBZASEMERBR
MIRFEEE -

BN B R E KB I B A B LR
MEZREREENRIABTBAN
PRGNS PR IRR S - BIZ BRI
KRABNRBEFRAZAHRMT ¢

2022 2021
g T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T
234,828 123,087
58,707 30,772
(6,683) (1,101)
(1,679) 887
(3,112) (1,036)
3,931 4,166
1,723 2,042
(4,408) (6,936)
7,454 3,793
7,087 A
63,020 32,587
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31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

11.

12.

DIVIDEND

Proposed final — HK9.0 cents
(2021: HK6.0 cents) per ordinary share ~ 9.0781l (ZZ

6.07811)

At the meeting of the board of directors of the Company
held on 28 March 2023, the payment of a final dividend
of HK9.0 cents per ordinary share totalling approximately
RMB50,623,000 was recommended for the year ended 31
December 2022, which is subject to the approval of the
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 616,447,000 (2021: 616,447,000) in issue during the
year, as adjusted to reflect the treasury shares held during the
year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amount is
based on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.

2022 Annual Report —& — —FF R

11.

EEAHPRE - %H“%?E

—F

Az

12.

’RE
2022 2021
—E-= B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARMEF T
50,623 30,889

RZE_=F=ZB -+ \HETHAR
DEECTER L BEEEESREEE
TR CHF+_A=+—HLEEEXRH
BRESKRZEERI.OBI aENARKE
w&ameE SR NBIRERREERE
BEARG LHUER HRIEE-

BATLERERFEAERGER
B
SREABANRESAD S ERERT
BABGLFEFRNREMNERERNEETEBER
NHEFH8616,447,00008 (Z - —4F .
616,447,0008%) 5t& > M E1F H B E L b
FRFANEFRS

SREGENDERESATEBREDR
BEABGERZHNFE - AERERANE
LkM%$ﬁ%E¢WE%ﬁ%E%%E
(B EERELABANFERERR)
RBEREDHEELE @kﬁﬁ%fﬁﬁ
ARRSEBREBEERTHEBERMNE
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. BAREERESFAAERESR
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT B @

(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share BREXRBERNNAESRAT :

amounts are based on:

Earnings attributable to ordinary equity REstEEREARREFH
holders of the parent used in the basic BREEERER
earnings per share calculation FBARGER

Shares Bz n

Weighted average number of ordinary BEStESRELRRETN
shares in issue during the year used in FAEETSER
the basic earnings per share calculation I8k

Effect of dilution — weighted average BErE - LERMETEE:
number of ordinary shares:

Share award plan* Bz 1n £ B 5t &

& The share award is subject to profit target which is contingently &

issuable and as the condition is not met by the end of the year,
it is not included in the calculation of diluted earnings per share
calculation.

2022 2021
B _fF BT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T AREFIT
175,696 88,223

Number of shares

18 E
2022 2021
g T
000 000
Th& FHR
616,447 616,447
616,447 616,447

BR 7 SR ENZRZ RS AR 3 AR B AR
B ERARERZFMN > MR ASR
BERFERNER
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR R M5

31 December 2022

—=F__F1 _HA=1—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2022

At 31 December 2021 and
at 1 January 2022:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2022, net of
accumulated depreciation
Additions
Depreciation provided during

the year
Transfers
Disposals
Disposal of a subsidiary
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2022 net of
accumulated depreciation
At 31 December 2022:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

e
TZA=+-Hk

2

D
RAE

REPE

WZE__#—RA—-H

NRRGTE
HE
ERRERRE

g

HE
HE-RHEAF
ERBE

A
+ZR=+-8
NBRHE

RIBZZ4
+oA=+-8:
Ak
RHHFE
3B
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13. % - -BE KRR

—E_"_H+-HA=+—H

Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
buildings Machinery equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
BERET HE  MAER RE AEMEKE TEIR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT  ARETR ARBTz ARETR ARETR ARETz ARETR
715,915 855,238 128,499 9,719 27,603 118,920 1,855,894
(172,350 (441,573) (66,358) (6,648) (18,190) - (705,119
543,565 413,665 62,141 3,071 9,413 118,920 1,150,775
543,565 413,665 62,141 3,071 9,413 118920 1,150,775
4231 1,053 4,355 3,339 1,302 35,054 49,334
(33,036) (56,366) (8,954) (681) (5,136) - (104,173)
80,400 24,152 908 - 15,819 (121,279 -
- (752) (10,686) - - (7,014) (18,452)
- - - - - (2,087) (2,087)
- - 1 - - - 1
595,160 381,752 47,765 5,729 21,398 23,594 1,075,398
800,546 863,763 120,332 13,058 44,724 23594 1,866,017
(205,386) (482,011) (72,567) (7,329) (23,326) - (790,619)
595,160 381,752 47,765 5,729 21,398 23594 1,075,398




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
31 December 2021

13. ¥I3RBRE Rk wo
R —F+ZR=+—H

Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
buildings Machinery equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BERET HE  BAERE AE HENERE TRIE fat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETR ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 31 December 2020 and at RIZZERE
1 January 2021: +ZA=+-Hk
“2_—4%-f-R:
Cost R 435,404 711,440 122,133 10,367 2373 390366 1,692,083
Accumulated depreciation RetineE (145,467) (412,088) (55,627) (8,113) (14,300) - (635,595)
Net carrying amount RESE 289,937 299,352 66,506 2,254 8,073 390,366 1,056,488
At 1 January 2021, net of RZB_—F—HA—-H>
accumulated depreciation MRESHTE 289,937 299,352 66,506 2,254 8,073 390366 1,056,488
Additions HE 5,192 7,560 3,737 1,794 2,650 166,326 187,259
Depreciation provided during ERHERRE
the year (26,883) (45,788) (11,195) (579) (3,892) - (88,337)
Transfers 25 275,320 154,484 3,186 - 2,582 (435,572) -
Disposals HE - (1,943) (90) (398) = (2,200 (4,631)
Exchange realignment ER A% (1) - ) - - - (4)
At 31 December 2021, net of RZE_—-F
accumulated depreciation +ZA=+-H"
MBRRTE 543,565 413,665 62,141 3,071 9,413 118,920 1,150,775
At 31 December 2021: RZB_-%
+-A=1-AR:
Cost 3 715,915 855,238 128,499 9,719 27,603 118920 1,855,894
Accumulated depreciation Retig (172,350) (441,573) (66,358) 6,648) (18,190) - (705,119)
Net carrying amount REFE 543,565 413,665 62,141 3,071 9,413 118920 1,150,775

As at 31 December 2022, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB298,487,000 (2021: RMB322,481,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in note 25 to

MU IR EE25PR 8 0 10

— = — —

—_—

+_B=+—H AEBEREFEIOAR
#£298,487,00070 (ZE_—&F | AR
322,481,0007T) WY -BEKKXEEFTE

o ERAEBERRITEMBER

the financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14. KEYE

2022 2021

= B —F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFTT

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HNEREEE 5,132 5,729
Depreciation provided during the year ~ FRITERE (599) (597)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ZBA=+—HMREEE 4,533 5,132

The Group’s investment properties are commercial properties in
Shanghai and Jiaxing, the PRC. The directors of the Company
have determined that the investment properties consist of
one class of asset, i.e., commercial, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of the property. The Group's investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2022 based on
valuations performed by Haiyan Zhonglian Asset Assessment
Limited Corporation and Jiaxing Dongxing Asset Assessment
Firm (LLP), independent professionally qualified valuers, at
RMB17,461,000. Each year, the Group's property manager and
the chief financial officer decide, after approval from the audit
committee, to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group’s investment properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases or held by the Group for capital appreciation,
further summary details of which are included in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

2022 Annual Report —& — —F &£}
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

Recurring fair value measurement for: REMRABEHE:
Commercial properties ik ES
Recurring fair value measurement for: BEMARBENE:
Commercial properties EliEkYE S

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

14. REYE W

RABEZFTRIRE
TRETAEEREYENAANBESE

FIRAE

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2022 using
REAMUTEER-E-Zf+-A=1+-H
ETNAREBEHE
Quoted

prices  Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RiEETE BATHRE EXFTHEZE

YR {E BWAE BWAE
(BE—F) (EZRE) (E=) st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ETT ARETT ARETT ARETR

- 17,461 17,461

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2021 using
FREUTEER-_E_—&#+-A=+—H
ETNARBEREZ
Quoted

prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

RiEETSE BAURE EATHTER

HERE BAE BAE
E—E) (EZE) (HE=B) Azt
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR

18,858 18,858
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REYE @
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RABEEREE@
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FNRABEE d‘%f% BrRE_EZ
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers BHEEE TEBEAE=-EHAEE =
into or out of Level 3 (2021: Nil). BHCEZI-F 8-
Set out below is a summary of the valuation technique used TXEFNEEMEGLEFRABNLER EK
and the key inputs to the valuation of investment properties: FTEHABERRE !
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average
fHERE EXTABRRBAE SEEMEFI9H
2022 2021
g 22—
Shanghai Commercial Discounted Estimated rental value RMB192 RMB192
Property | cash flow method (per sq. m. and per month)
EEERY= RERENTE st EEEE AR®E192t  AR®1927T
(BYAERKREAR)
Rent growth (p.a.) 2%-4% 3%-5%
HEE R (BF)
Long term vacancy rate Nil Nil
REAZEEX = =
Discount rate 2.70% 3.25%
rR=x
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B HM B RRMEE

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Valuation technique

f&ESE

Shanghai Commercial Discounted

Property Il
EismmmEN

cash flow method

R RENTE

Jiaxing Commercial Market comparison

Property method
A N LYES I LB

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

14. BEYE @
NREBESREE @

Significant unobservable inputs

Range or weighted average

ERFIHEBAE SEENETI9H
2022 2021
—§__ T
Estimated rental value RMB196 RMB217
(per sq. m. and per month)
hstEBEE ARB196eT AR®K2177T
(BFAHKRKREAR)
Rent growth (p.a.) 3%-5% 3%-5%
HEE R (BF)
Long term vacancy rate Nil Nil
REIZEX i -
Discount rate 3.00% 3.25%
IR
2022 2021
—EF BT
Adjusted market price RMB7,612 RMB8,796
(per sg. m.)
REHEHE (BFHTK) AR®7,6127t AR™8,7967T

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ZRERAE
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

14.

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal
value. This method involves the projection of a series of cash
flows on a property interest. A market-derived discount rate
is applied to the projected cash flow in order to establish the
present value of the income stream associated with the asset.
The exit yield is normally separately determined and differs
from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of
inflows and outflows are determined by events such as rent
reviews, lease renewal and related reletting, redevelopment
or refurbishment. The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of property. The
periodic cash flow is estimated as gross income less vacancy,
non-recoverable expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and other
operating and management expenses. The series of periodic
net operating income, along with an estimate of the terminal
value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is then
discounted.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant and
buildings, motor vehicles and leasehold land. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
the owners with lease periods of 50 years to 70 years, and no
ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of plant and buildings generally have lease terms
between 2 and 12 years, while motor vehicles generally have
lease terms of 10 years. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(@) Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets
and the movements during the year are as follows:

As at 1 January 2021 R_Z_—%—HF—H

15. HE ®w

TEBEASEBEA®

@ RHAEEE

AEBRFRAERAEEENRESR

Additions NE

Decrease D

Depreciation charge WERX

Exchange realignment BEE S0 5 28

As at 31 December 2021 and R_E_—F

1 January 2022 +ZA=+—HK

"5 —F—H

Additions NE

Depreciation charge MERX

Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHBAE

Exchange realignment bE R IR

As at 31 December 2022 A S
+ZRA=+—H

KT
Leasehold Plant and Motor

land buildings vehicles Total
HELH BEREF ! st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT
62,871 10,024 1,070 73,965
18,086 1,461 - 19,547
(940) - - (940)
(1,934) 2,337) (189) (4,460)
- (750) - (750)

78,083 8,398 881 87,362
2,393 1,130 - 3,523
(1,979) (2,043) (204) (4,226)
(18,047) - - (18,047)
- 203 - 203

60,450 7,688 677 68,815
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

15. LEASES (continued) 15.

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)  Lease liabilities
The carrying amount of lease liabilities (included under
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings) and the
movements during the year are as follows:

HE w

TEBFEAEREA®

b)) HEEE
FREEEE GIAGTEIRIT R EM
BEIET) MEREEMEEN T

2022 2021
—§-_ T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBF T
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—HNERE S5 9,496 11,189
New leases s 1,130 1,461
Accretion of interest recognised FRNERERF BIGIE
during the year 386 489
Payments INEN (2,496) (2,893)
Exchange realignment PE D EE 203 (750)
Carrying amount at 31 December R +Z8=+—HMWERETZE 8,719 9,496
Analysed into: PN
Current portion TRENER 2,160 2,079
Non-current portion SEREE D 6,559 7,417

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in
note 36 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

15. LEASES (continued) 15.

The Group as a lessee (continued)
(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to
leases are as follows:

Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE

Depreciation charge of FRESETERS
right-of-use assets

Expense relating to short-term BIGHIE SRR
leases (included in administrative (Gt AfTEIFISZ)
expenses)

Total amount recognised i8R NREEE

in profit or loss

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note
31(c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting
of two commercial properties in Shanghai and part of
the commercial property in Jiaxing under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB323,000 (2021: RMB449,000).

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

HE w
TEBEASEBEA®
(c) MRiIBmPERNEESHEBERIENT :

2022 2021
g T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T
386 489

4,226 4,460

604 604

5,216 5,553

(d) FERSREAEZERMERRNEE
31(c)IFEE o

FEBEALHBEA
AEERBERSHELHEERREYE
(MzE14) (BRELEENHMERRAYEKR
EEMNIOEEYZE) - ILEBENERR—
BRERE LT RESRTAAREZR
MHREHEESEHAERE AEBERN
HERNHEE WA B AREE323,0005T (ZF
——4F : AR ¥449,0007T) °
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

15. LEASES (continued) 15. *H.E (%)
The Group as a lessor (continued) FEBREALBEA @
At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments RITE-_ S+ -"RA=+—H ' &~&EER
receivable by the Group in future periods under non- BEE P NI REHSEHE IR R
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows: HARYRIT IR ERUGEIEN T :
2022 2021
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT
Within one year —FRN 174 435
Within second to fifth year FE_EERF 522 =
Total A8t 696 435
16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. Ht1EWEE
31 December 2022 g "H#+-H=+—H
Patents and Certified
licences  emission rights Total
BH KI5 a0 aa HEIHE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%Fr ARBFR AR%BFR

At 1 January 2022, net of N B _F—HF—H>
accumulated amortisation MNFR R T 2,000 3,987 5,987
Additions RE = 889 889
Amortisation provided during FRE R
the year (200) (503) (703)
At 31 December 2022, net of N_EBETF
accumulated amortisation +ZA=1+—H"
bR Rt 1,800 4,373 6,173
At 31 December 2022: A S
+—HA=+—8":
Cost (D% 2,000 10,569 12,569
Accumulated amortisation REHEH (200) (6,196) (6,396)
Net carrying amount IREFEE 1,800 4,373 6,173
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B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 16. HETEE @
31 December 2021 B Ft+"H=+—H
Patents and Certified
licences emission rights Total
B R AT SRR B HmEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT ARBTT ARETT

At 1 January 2021, net of R_E-_—&F—HF—H>
accumulated amortisation kR H# 2,000 4,158 6,158
Additions NE = 409 409
Amortisation provided during the year G 5HE 4 - (580) (580)
At 31 December 2021, net of ATEBT—F
accumulated amortisation +—A=+—H"
PR Rt 2,000 3,987 5,987
At 31 December 2021: e
+—RA=+—8:
Cost B 2,000 10,226 12,226
Accumulated amortisation REH#H - (6,239) (6,239)
Net carrying amount SREFEE 2,000 3,987 5,987
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAX 17. EEIRIA
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities of the AEFBRLTERNBEEEREBENRNFEANES
Group during the year are as follows: mE
Deferred tax assets: REFRIBEE -
Depreciation
in excess  Loss available Fair value loss
Elimination of related ~ for offsetting ~ on derivative ~ Deductible
Allowance for  Provision for  of unrealised  depreciation ~ against future financial donation
Accrual  doubtful debts  inventories profits allowance  taxable profits  instruments expenses Total

mERH  RLUEE  fiERR
% AMFE BRERR IRNA% GEi
BRER  REER  FRER  REREN  BENEE  BUNEERE 0 BESR  BRER @
RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMB000  RMB000  RMBO000  RMBO00  RMB000  RMBI000  RMB'00D
ARBTT AREBTT AREBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETE

At 1 January 2021 RZEZ-5—F—H 1317 92 3,632 1,162 4310 28,701 - 286 39,500
Deferred tax credited/(charged) £/t A& #HERR/

to the consolidated statement ~ (E&HFERFII) 1)

of profitor loss during the SRR (#/&210)

year (note 10) (428) 134 (1,533) (546) (658) (12,004 319 = (14,716)

At31 December2021and ~ RZEZ-%
1 January 2022 T-A=t-Ak
“E"F-fA-R 889 226 2,099 616 3,652 16,697 319 286 24,784
Deferred tax credited/(charged) /st A& #HERR/
to the consolidated statement (B & #HERFINER) 89
of profit or loss during the ~ SEERIE (A7z£70)
year (note 10) 117 (146) 5,852 1,383 (158) (8,802) (319) (286) (2,359)

At 31 December 2022 RIZZZHF
+ZA=1+-AH 1,006 80 7,951 1,999 3,494 7,895 - - 22,425
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B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 17. RIEIRIE @
Deferred tax liabilities: RERIEEME ©
Withholding
tax on
undistributed Depreciation
profits of  Fair value gains allowance
Mainland on derivative Unrealised in excess
China financial exchange of related
subsidiaries instruments gain in ltaly depreciation Total
HE K B q_
B A= fTEER EAR EEE
ARG TENAR RER BHAM
mFENAR BERFE ERGH HENEHE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETFT ARETFT
At 1 January 2021 RZB2Z—%—HF—H 13,729 - 714 21,650 36,093
Deferred tax charged/(credited) o~ R B & HEHFRING
the consolidated statement of GEAEBHERR) B
profit or loss during the year EIEIRIE (Hfzt10)
(note 10) 3,793 - (71) 9,865 13,587
At 31 December 2021 and RZEZ—%&
1 January 2022 +-A=+—-Hk
“E-"&—H—H 17,522 - 043 31,515 49,680
Deferred tax charged to the FREEHERRIRN
consolidated statement of EILRIE (Hfzt10)
profit or loss during the year
(note 10) 418 - 552 3,968 4,938
At 31 December 2022 S
+-B=+-H 17,940 - 1,195 35,483 54,618

Kingdom Holdings Limited £ZZERERAE
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

17. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 17.
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred
tax balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and 2021
relates to the following:

IEFEFRIA @

BIEEV 2R ETRIERNBEEKRER
EREHTBERERANEHE BIEHFE
] B A& B YRR IE A4S 5% o AT U
T

AEFR B _FR-_E-—F+"1
=+ —HBEIERIEE T3S IEER -

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—E-C B —
+=ZA=+—H +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBT T
Deferred tax assets arising from: TR EELWNIRLERESE !
— Allowance for doubtful debts —REREN A 80 226
— Provision for inventories —GFEEE 7,951 2,099
— Elimination of unrealised profits — IR EH AR B R A 1,999 616
— Accrual —TEIRE R 1,006 889
— Loss available for offsetting against — LU #5 B 2 FE SR
future taxable profit s AR 18 7,895 16,697
— Deductible donation expenses — B HURIE R R 2 — 286
— Fair value losses on derivative financial —#74& &R TANAD
instruments BEBE - 319
— Depreciation in excess of related —TEBLHARITERE
depreciation allowance &8 3,494 3,652
22,425 24,784
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17. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities arising from:

— Withholding tax on undistributed
profits of Mainland China
subsidiaries

— Depreciation allowance in excess of

A B TRR

related depreciation Bt
— Unrealised exchange gain in Italy

Deferred tax, net IR TR R 2R

Reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position:

— Deferred tax assets —IRERIBEE
— Deferred tax liabilities —RIERIBEE

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB31,580,000 (2021: RMB68,914,000) that will expire in
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have been recognised in respect of these losses as
it is considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the above items can be utilised.

The Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB10,351,000 (2021: RMB7,689,000) that will expire
in five years for offsetting against future taxable profits and
has tax losses arising in Ethiopia of RMB18,513,000 (2021:
RMB8,437,000) and in Hong Kong of RMB6,328,000 (2021:
RMB3,358,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the above items
can be utilised.

—BANKRERERST

REHMFBIRRRARIR

SRR BHRRMEE
31 December 2022 —ZE__#+_F=+—H
IR IEFR IH ()

31 December 31 December

TR BEEENEERESR:
— HRE A BE Y B A B R K

—TEEBEBHAERTEN

2022 2021
—E-= s
+=A=+-A +-A=+-8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT

(17,940) (17,522)
(35,483) (31,515)

(1,195) (643)
(54,618) (49,680)
(32,193) (24,896)

8,473 7,233
(40,666) (32,129)

REBRFPEKEEENREBEAAR
#31,580,00070 (ZZ——% : 68,914,000
7o) > B AR B HRLUR IE R 2R FE SR M i
Ao BEMZEEBBERIEERIEEE  JhH
R0 7R Bl SE1F 17X A #h A 418 B 1K 84
BIFEERTR A A o

NREBRTEAAEEENREBEEES A
E110,351,00050 (Z2=Z—F | AR
7,689,0007T * #8174 T 4 9 B HE LUK §5 oKk 21
FERREFN > RIRERILETEREENRIE
BEA ARM18,513,0007t (B - —4% :
A #8,437,0007T) K A\ #6,328,0007T

= —&F: A\RE#3,358,0007T) » 0]
FREAF N IESH EE BB A BB R KRERR
wF o WPt X L R IR IR LR IEE &
TR R ARV EER E A BB
HBIFERRIR A o
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

17.

18.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings generated after 31 December 2007. A 10%
withholding tax is also levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Italy and Ethiopia.

As at 31 December 2022, other than the amount recognised
in the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax has not
been recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China
and Italy. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such unremitted earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China and Italy for which deferred tax liabilities have
not been recognised totalled approximately RMB500,623,000
at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB529,023,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

INVENTORIES

Raw materials R #L
Work in progress ERm
Finished goods A

As at 31 December 2022, inventories with a carrying amount
of RMB40,000,000 (2021: RMB40,000,000) were pledged to
secure loans granted to the Group as set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

2022 Annual Report —& — —F &£}

17.

18.

IREFLIE @
RIBCEZEMERZE) TR BEAEE AR

ﬂﬁ%m&ﬁm%h%l&“ Wﬁﬁﬁﬁx
EEFWI10%NTEINR - ZHEE _ZTZF)

E B—HEEX LBEA T:%ﬁtfﬁ
+TZR=+—HBBREENEFN -EEKF
FIRZEBEILE IR ERE R EMINE
KREEBIRIR BTN ERBUR10%R TR0

RIE-_—F+_HA=+—H ' Batth
FIRERABBHEEIN FEBLERE
£ FR oK B e B KR AR A RO B B A B B 4
iﬂﬁémﬁmﬂetﬁﬁﬁ%ljﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁmiﬁmﬁﬁﬁ
RIEIEIRIB - EFRA > ZEWBATNA
%EHﬂWkT EDIRZERELHRA]
RIB__H+"FA=+—H AR4H
R B e B K i B8 /A B V4% & 75 A T Il £
FUCFE IR R I B B E R M ERA4E 4E
SH45 AR ¥500,623,0007t (ZFB - —
F . AR#¥529,023,0007T) °

FABEERRIKARE L ENHPIER
MBER -

=8
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—E_C BT —F
+=-—B=+—H +=ZH=+—~H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARMEFIT
333,258 322,234
66,869 58,796
285,053 248,191
685,180 629,221

RIEZ-HF+"A=+—H > RE+Z
2 AR #40,000,0007c (ZE-—F : AR
#40,000,0007T) WEEE FEH  EAA
SEERERNER WM KRR 25
P o



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

19. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables FEUN & 5 8RR
Notes receivable ENERE
Impairment BE

Customers are normally granted credit terms ranging from
30 days to 150 days depending on the creditworthiness of
the individual customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

The Group’s notes receivable were all aged within six months
and were neither past due nor impaired. The expected credit
losses for notes receivable are assessed to be minimal.

An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 1T month —{@ B LA
1 to 2 months —ZEZMmEH
2 to 3 months ME=@EA

BiE=1Ea

Over 3 months

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

. BB BIRRKREREE

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
—E-= B
+=-H=+—H +—-_A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
273,073 399,627
153,520 114,017

(326) 912)

426,267 512,732

BERE—RERTEEHI0OREIS0K  H{TF
EREENEEME AEBNRFER
MIEFI R EINEWHRIE TRBEERE
HBUREERBAERBE SREER
TEHREE R A BRAS A5 o FE N B 5 BR R A 5F

=
SN

FEENBREEREOSERR I
BEBMTERE BURENRHREES
BT EAMFEM -

Eﬁ%ﬁiﬁ}%ﬁ% TEBEWE ZIRMIZE
BB AR R ENRE DT T

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
—E-= B4
+—HA=+—H +—-_B=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREF T
148,389 274,160

49,438 60,851

37,250 35,114

37,670 28,590

272,747 398,715

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ZRERAE

175



176

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

19.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At beginning of year RER]
Impairment losses, net (note 7)

Amount written off as uncollectible

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by forms of credit insurance). The calculation
reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value
of money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

Expected credit loss rate EHEEEEX

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) WIEESE AREFT)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEERE ARBTD)
As at 31 December 2021

Expected credit loss rate EHEEEEX

Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) BRESE ARETD)
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) RHEEHE AR
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19.

BER R (aZ7)
R A A BT U (O] B9 = 58

Current

B

0.00%
261,230

Current

B

0.00%
367,774

FEU B S BRI B FENZE 1 @)
EN B ZERFUR B R EEET -

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
—E-C —E_—
+—-—H=+—H +—A=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREFIT

912 2,410
(586) (1,423)

- (75)
326 912

RERSARORARBERETRED
i UETE R E 5 R RIE SRR
BHEXDERARBEARUGEEANS
BERDEET DA BILUEERRETE )
AR B 85t & o 5t B R R R0
ER EBERERNRSARISHNER
BEFIE B AR 1 B R R A IR 4 7R R
MEEKRAIFEER - —RME * HEWE S
BRREHABE —F » BT LUIEE » BRR#H
TI/ERIR

TREAEEREEHRIAAIEREKE
ZERMEE RN THER

WZE-—_%+-HB=+—H

Past due
bl
Less than 1to3 Over
1 month months 3 months Total
—@RMA —ZE=ER BB=EA st
0.22% 1.91% 15.91% 0.12%
7,829 2,355 1,659 273,073
17 45 264 326
A= —#+-A=+—AH
Past due
ek
Less than 1to3 Over
1 month months 3 months Total
—@AMKN —ZE=@EF BB=fEA At
0.25% 2.21% 11.72% 0.23%
11,771 15,458 4624 399,627
29 341 542 912
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes receivable that are not derecognised in their
entirety

As at 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed
Notes”) with a carrying amount of RMB59,843,000 (31
December 2021: RMB33,674,000) to certain of its suppliers
in order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers (the
“Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to these Endorsed Notes, and
accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts
of the Endorsed Notes and the associated trade payables
settled. Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group does not
retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Notes, including
sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Notes to any other third
parties. The aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables
settled by the Endorsed Notes to which the suppliers have
recourse was RMB59,843,000 as at 31 December 2022 (31
December 2021: RMB33,674,000).

Notes receivable that are derecognised in their entirety
As at 31 December 2022, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivable accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Derecognised
Notes”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle the trade
payables due to such suppliers with a carrying amount
in aggregate of RMB34,897,000 (31 December 2021:
RMB23,373,000). The Derecognised Notes had a maturity
of one to six months at the end of the reporting period. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
PRC, the holders of the Derecognised Notes have a right
of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). In the opinion of the directors of
the Company, the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards relating to the Derecognised Notes. Accordingly, it
has derecognised the full carrying amounts of the Derecognised
Notes and the associated trade payables. The maximum
exposure to loss from the Group’s Continuing Involvement in
the Derecognised Notes and the undiscounted cash flows to
repurchase these Derecognised Notes is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the fair values of the Group’s Continuing Involvement in the
Derecognised Notes are not significant.

19.

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

FEW B 5 BRI B FENZE 1 @)
S EAR ISR RN E S

RN _E__F+_HB=+—H'&xE&H
HETHERSZE THTRAMNETER
HEWERE (REERE)) ' RESEA
ANE#59,843,000c (—E_—&F+_H
=+—H: AR#33,674,0007T) » LUASEIE
NZEREENRENERERR (HE)) o
RABEZDRA AEBNRBEARR
KER GEEHZESCHEZHRNEDN
LR A E AR BRSNS EE B A
e ERNEZRINEIEmEEE
REZE AEATEFRETAEHLEH
EZEMNEN 8EETAEME=AE
EEEGERCSEZ R UHEEEAR
BRENCHEZSHREENECTE SRR
R &+ _A=+—HWNERmAEHE
A ANRE®59,843,000c (“E_—F+_8
=+—H : AE33,674,0007T) °

2RI EINE R
R _—F+_HB=+—H ' AEEH
HETHERSEE THRENIRITEMR
HEWER (TR IEERERER)) > IREARZE
A NE134,897,00070 (CE - —F+—
B=+—H: AR23,373,0007T) *» U4
BRENZERERNENSE SRR &KL
RERRRSHARES—ZEANEBRE
B RIBFPEZH L RIEBRBZHENFE
ABERAPENIRITENFRAERIREY
BR (FE2H)) - KARBAEERA KE
EEERARRILHRBEZRNBAI DR
% K [O] % o At » AEE B4R IEFERAR IERE
RERMIEEENEZEANEHBRES
o AREFERFES AR EMABERE KED
ZER IR EENRERRERENR
SELRMEENEHIEEEE XA T
EERA AEEFELARIERIEZR
HARBEILAERK-
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

19.

20.

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes receivable that are derecognised in their entirety
(continued)

The Group has not recognised any gain or loss on the date
of transfer of the Derecognised Notes in 2022 (2021: Nil).
No gains or losses were recognised from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The
Endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Value added tax recoverable EIEIREE R
Prepayments SEENES
Deposits and other receivables P& R HEHMEWEIE

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing
and repayable on demand.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the loss
allowance was assessed to be minimal.

The carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and other
receivables approximates to their fair value due to their short-
term maturity.
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19.

20.

FEU B S BRI B FENZE 1 @)
P2HRIEEINEREE @

KRB AEE R A LR
DT ORISR NESEA C B —
& im) o AE BN R R
2 R 19 3 AR o B BTN ER
Tt o

TR R RE MW TRIE

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
—E-C B
+-—BH=+—H +-—H=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARMEF T
17,272 16,861

66,128 61,456

12,825 13,902

96,225 92,219

EHERRAEIER At R RARERE

SPA LGSR ERMEEL TR EER
EakeEE =N e ORIy S —
FR-ZBZ—F+-A=+—H T6EH
BEFEMFEM-

MR RN R R HME
WRIERRE T REE AR EBEREE-
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2P

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Liabilities: af:
Foreign currency forward SNEEHAH -
contracts — current

(i)  The Group uses forward currency contracts to manage
some of its foreign currency transaction exposures.
These currency forward contracts are not designated as
cash flows, fair value or net investment hedges and are
entered into for periods consistent with foreign currency
transaction exposures, generally from one to twelve
months.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

21. FT&EEmT A

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

—E-C B
+-B=+—H +=-B=1+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARETFT

(1) - 1,275

i FTEEERAEHERSNE EE*B
DINERZ 5 R © 3 i’?‘é%i BH
RIEERRERE ftfgﬁilﬂz
BY 4 Ml IZAVHAR B SME R
B— (—RA—E+ @A) -

22. RERBREZFEYMURBIBRER

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

—E_C 2T —%F

+—H=+—H +—-—B=+—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIT ARET T

Cash and bank balances BE MIRTT4EER 529,369 293,943
529,369 293,943
Less: Pledged deposits for letters of credit & : B R AR KFRNGER (61,900) (44,730)
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEY 467,469 249,213
Denominated in RMB UANREETE 161,331 134,612
Denominated in HK$ MATEHE 2,412 8,575
Denominated in EUR LBRTTEHE 5,670 8,160
Denominated in US$ MUZETFHE 358,074 131,290
Denominated in other currencies UEMEEEE 1,882 11,306
Cash and bank balances BE MIRTT4EER 529,369 293,943
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

22.

23.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS (continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, and Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and notes payables as at 31
December 2022, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Within 1 month —@B LA
1 month to 3 months —Z =184
Over 3 months BiE=1Ea

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing
with credit terms of 90 days. The carrying amount of trade
and notes payables at the end of each reporting period
approximates to their fair value due to their short-term maturity.
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22.

23.

RERREFEMUAREBBER
()

ARBARBERZIRAEMER AT > 1R
BREAEN GMNEBIRIRA) K (GEE &
ERNEEERE) tEEBEEZBER
RETIINEXZBNRTRARBRIRASE
fthE# o

RITERERESARTERANRFEZ
HEBARG B - RITEFREERIFERE
W AREENESBEERIFZRTT

P& B 5 R AR 2 B 11 TR 4

KRB _FE+-A=+—R0 BEEQ
DI FE( B 57 IR IE S TR IRIRES D AR
LI

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
—=E=-= B4
+—H=+—H +—-_B=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARMEF T
65,609 26,092

252,383 207,178
49,104 60,650
367,096 293,920

g A ERIBR A FEEHR0
HeMEREHMER > AR EHHAIE ®E
VEZERARENERENREEEAER
AREERE-
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B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24. HWEMARERTERER

31 December 31 December
2022 2021

B —_=F_—
+=ZB=+—H +ZHA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT
Contract liabilities () =EI=LET) 49,377 16,955
Payroll payables ENE i 28,747 25,993
Accruals TEIRE B 8,049 2,181
Other payables HAth AT FRIE 141,921 165,473
228,094 210,602

(i)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (i) BHEEREBOT

31 December 31 December 1 January
2022 2021 2021
—E-C TR R —F
+=ZB=+—8 +ZB=+—H —HA—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%F ARETT ARETT

Short-term advances WERE F BIRZ I EAA

received from customers
Sale of goods ERiHE 49,377 16,955 19,752
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received EHNEEEERR N E®MUE
to deliver products. The increase and decrease in RHBR N B _FR_F_—
contract liabilities in 2022 and 2021 was mainly due FHNENEEEMERDTEER

to the increase and decrease in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to the sales of
products at the end of the year.

The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-
bearing. The carrying amount of other payables
and accruals at the end of each reporting period
approximates to their fair value due to their short-term
maturity.

RERWEMEERIFERMNE
HAR P BRRIE AN Ko L o

FHAEFRAERA RN R - RER
HEAR > AR HR AN B HR > s E e
tmERFAREANRASZRARAR
ARBEEES-
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31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

25. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 25. StERITREMEE
BORROWINGS
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
“E-CE “2T-f
+ZB=1+-H +-R=+-8
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB'000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
BRA= kS
(%) 5 ARETR (%) I ARETR
Current il
Secured bank loans BEBRTER 3.70-5.00 2023 408,000 0.47-4.6 2022 443,521
Unsecured bank loans RIERRITER 2.00-5.00 2023 280,233 1.67-5.00 2022 376,827
Other loans - unsecured HtES-EIER 3.65 2023 5,951 3.85 2022 5,951
Lease liabilities (note 15) HEBR W25 44 2023 2,160 435 2022 2,079
696,344 828,378
Non-current JEENER
Other loans - unsecured HtER - 491 2024 50,000 491 2024 50,000
Lease liabilities (note 15) REBR WH15) 44 2024-2031 6,559 435 2023-2031 7417
56,559 57,417
752,903 885,795
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
=B BT —F
+—-—B=+—H +—HA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREF T
Analysed into: DA -
Bank loans repayable: EERIBITEN
Within one year —FR 688,233 820,348
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Other borrowings repayable: FEEREMESR !
Within one year —&FR
In the second year BIE
In the third to fifth years, inclusive BE=EFLE
(BIEEEME)
Over five years AFEME

Note:

As at 31 December 2022, the current interest-bearing bank borrowings
with a carrying amount of RMB408,000,000 (2021: RMB443,521,000)
were secured by certain property, plant and equipment, and inventories
with carrying amounts of RMB298,487,000 (2021: RMB322,481,000),
and RMB40,000,000 (2021: RMB40,000,000), respectively.

The carrying amount of the current interest-bearing bank and other
loans of the Group approximates to their fair value due to their short-
term maturity.

The fair values of the non-current interest-bearing other loans have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing other loans as at 31 December 2022 was assessed to
be insignificant. Management has assessed that the carrying amount of
the non-current interest-bearing other loans of the Group approximates
to their fair value because the fixed interest rate is close to the currently
available rate.

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

stRRITREMETG @

31 December 31 December

2022 2021
—E-C B4
+-—B=+—H +—HA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARET T
8,111 8,030

51,251 1,493

2,308 51,726

3,000 4,198

64,670 65,447

Mt -

R_E__&+_A=+—H ' RESEA
AR %408,000,0007c (ZEZ—F . AR
443,521,0007T) WEIHAET SIRITEEMURE 5
DA ANRH298,487,000T (ZEZ—F : AR
#%322,481,0007T) & A E140,000,0007T (ZZ
——& : AR¥40,000,0007T) BETYE BE
R B R EEIRIR

IR R > B A S B BN HR 5T B IR 1T R HoAth
EMMRESHEERAABEES

JFENHEISt EEMERMNARBENEHAAER S
LUER - EERERFERZIBHAAN T AR A
B9F!) Kﬁ&ifﬁi‘ﬂﬂﬂﬂ%fﬁ%»uiﬁﬁ A —
F+A=+—H ' xEEESHFEHEMER
WA BARBETESLAEK - REREHT
> AEEBIFAVAA B HM SR IRE S 2R
HRARBERS RESBEENXZLBRAIA
F=o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. K7
Authorised: EE
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
k- St ZEI—fF
+ZA=+-H +-A=+-H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
R EE &8 et #E &8
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRO0IBTEER 3,000,000,000 30,000 3,000,000,000 30,000
Issued and fully paid: BRITRHE
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
ZE_"Ft-ZA=1+-H -5+ A=1-H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RiA%E &% e i
HK$'000 RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
TEx  ARETRT TAr ARETRm
equivalent equivalent
ZfE B
At the beginning and REDRER

the end of the year 629,678,000 6,297 6,329 629,678,000 6,297 6,329
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27. TREASURY SHARES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

27. EFRG

31 December 2022 31 December 2021

ZEZZE+ZB=1+-H “Z—#+°R=1-H
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RIAME ] BOEE] 8

HK$'000 RMB'000 HK$'000 RMB'000
TER ARBTT TAT AEEFT
equivalent equivalent
% S
Atthe beginning and end of the year  RERER 13,230,750 13,305 13,230,750 14,632 13,305

On 26 August 2016, the Company adopted a share award
plan, which is not subject to the provisions of Chapter 17
of the Listing Rules (the “Share Award Plan”). The board of
directors may, at their discretion, grant shares of the Company
to eligible participants. The Company has appointed a trustee
for administration of the Share Award Plan (the “Trustee”). The
principal activity of the Trustee is administrating and holding
the Company’s shares for the Share Award Plan for the benefit
of the Company’s award holders. The Company’s shares will
be purchased by the Trustee in the market with cash paid by
the Company and held in the trust for relevant award holders
until such shares are vested in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Award Plan. Upon vesting, the Trustee shall either
transfer the vested awarded shares at no cost to such award
holders or sell the vested awarded shares at the then prevailing
market price by way of market order and remit the net proceeds
to the award holders in accordance with the direction given by
such award holders. The Trustee purchased 19,400,000 shares
of the Company at a total consideration of approximately
RMB19,508,000 and 19,370,000 shares were granted to award
holders. During the year ended 31 December 2022, no shares
were vested and transferred to award holders.

RZE—NENBZ+/NH > mATEN
—IER D 8ZRN 5T 8 (TBR AP EZEN 5T 8Y1) » %5t
AR EHRAE+EEE R -E
F2NEREER2EABEEAABRK
B oRNBEBREZTA (ZEA) EER
PR E - R ANEEFZHIALRA
EIRENI A AN m R D LR ST BB 1
REFEBRABIRMG - ARBNRDEHT
FHARTHLERARABZNHRSEA
WEE AN AERREESEAMTEE
BEE ARG IBIERM ZE T E8ESCF U
BEAL NEBEE SXTABEREZE
REFBEAEENIET B EEBILER
BHhREEHETZEREITE A IR ™
5 ERERRTHNMERHEER B
BB (D M S P 1S B R BB B U T IR BN IR
Ao ZEEAMARRLBLOAR19,508,0007T
BE A Z~/A5119,400,000/% f% 15 > 19,370,000
BROERTREFTEABE_Z "
E+-BA=+—HLEEE  HERNHER
[B R T AEENIF A A o
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

28.

SHARE AWARD PLAN

On 25 May 2018, the board of directors (including all
independent non-executive directors), based on the
recommendation of the remuneration committee, resolved
to grant a total of 19,370,000 awarded shares, which have
been acquired by the Trustee from the open market by using
the Company’s internal resources, to 92 employees who were
eligible persons (“Grantees”).

The 19,370,000 awarded shares to be granted to the Grantees
represented (i) nearly 3.08% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at the grant date; and (ii) the value of
approximately RMB19,508,000 based on the calculation of the
share purchase records.

1,010,000 of the 19,370,000 awarded shares were granted to
37 Grantees who were employees and have served the Group
for 30 years or more, or each of the employee couples who
have served the Group for 30 years or more. These awarded
shares of approximately 1 million will be vested on the first
anniversary upon the grant date.

30% of 18,360,000 of the 19,370,000 awarded shares shall
vest on the first anniversary from the grant date and the other
30% and 40% of shares shall vest on the second and third
anniversaries from the grant date, respectively.

Moreover, whether these 18,360,000 awarded shares shall be
vested depends on two requirements: the Group’s net profit
target and personnel annual performance evaluation. For the
net profit target, the Group’s audited net profit is to reach
RMB100 million in 2019, RMB150 million in 2020, and
RMB200 million in 2021. If the Group misses the target in year
one, the 30% shares awarded can only be vested if the Group
meets the target in the next year. If the Group continuously
misses the target in year two, the shares of year one will no
longer be vested. As for the personnel evaluation, the Grantees
shall receive 100% of their awarded shares for that year if the
evaluation result is “Pass” and receive 75% or 50% of their
awarded shares for “Need Improvements” or “Fail”.

2022 Annual Report —& — —F &£}

28.

B 10 B Bh 5t 21
R_E—-NERR-_+HB BFZ (B
E2RBUHNTES) REFHNEES
WEER FRANEEBEERALZEE
(MEFR A ) B H & $£19,370,0002 52 Eh %
7 ZERBRMESTEAERAETAT 2
NEIRE RN AR5 _EUREE o

M)A AR H 2% 519,370,0000% 22 E) iR
BHEEROAATNRIEE B BEETR
ZA33.08%; K (i)EELAR19,508,0007T
(RIERDEE LT E) ©

19,370,000 22BN A% 5 A B91,010,0008% 1%
FI72ATRAN (REARELEBRBAE
E30FH UL EEERBAEEI0F
FU LM BRFEEEZEE) -ZEN—]F
BREBROBRIZFEHBRE—BFH
}%o

19,370,0008% 22 B A1 F 918,360,000/ 5%
RHHPARE—BERE3I0% > BIN0%MK
40% B ABINIKHBBEREZBERSE
—BEFBC

ItE 9N > 5%25518,360,000 R EEN & 19 B E &
BEOARMEBERTE | AEBNMANEEZEK
ANEFEEX£ETE -MANBEMS > &
EEKLEBZMAANN BN EEI AR
100,000,000 - R _ZFZF AR
150,000,000TC &R — 8B~ —FZ3 AR
200,000,0007T ° M ARE BN H— F R EE]
BiZ  BEERERNE —FEED B2
75 F LU B30%BI S BIIR (D o M A E BN 5
TEREREIBER AE—FHRMGE
TBEEB -AETGHMS  MABRAZT
hEER% EE) 0 AR EEZFEE100%H
SRS > MH A M5 B 3 TR R s &
E1875%350%BI S ENAZ 4 o



28.

29.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE AWARD PLAN (continued)

On 25 May 2018, the Company communicated the awarding
of shares with its employees by the Notice of Share Award
Plan. By the Notice of Share Award Plan, the Company and
the employees shared a full understanding of the terms and
conditions of the arrangement. 25 May 2018 was the Grant
Date.

The fair value of awarded shares was HK$0.97 per share, which
was the market price of the shares on 25 May 2018.

The Company assumed that the employees’ resignation rate
would be 1.23% and the employees’ evaluation result would
be 95% of “Pass” and 5% of “Need improvements”. However,
the possibility of achieving the net profit target would be 0%.

During the year, no awarded shares were vested to the
Grantees and the rest of awarded shares will not be vested in
the future considering the profit target evaluation. No share
award expense was amortised under the Share Award Plan in
2022.

RESERVES

The changes in the reserves of the Group during the year have
been disclosed in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity of the Group.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
shareholders’ total capital contributions to Hong Kong
Kingdom over the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange therefor as at the date of
a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of the Group to
rationalise the group structure in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange and the difference
between the aggregate of the then net assets of the subsidiary
acquired and the consideration paid by the Group for the
business combination under common control. Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 30 November 2006.

28.

29.

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

B 1R SEBh 5T 21 )
N_E—NELR_+LHH AAGESE
IR IRE T 2B R E B E B ERDIRE
HF o BBRMDIEREEN ARBKIE
BERDBRTZEHNERKREE —F—/\
FRER_+HBNTHBER

RRIRMNANEERSR0.978T IR
PRZE—-\FLR-+HAKNHE-

FABRREERBERS1.23% MEST
EAER95% @B > 5% BEIE - A
M > SEAAER] B IRAY AT BEME230% ©

FR &EREN BRTEIBER  BEER
RPEFBIRARA > MR EREZRAR MK
HERTERB - N5 HBERH
SRS ORIRIR (D BB ST &I BN -

f#E
ERAEBEESB DR AL G
BERARE o

B A
BHEBESSERIATDRMINBRA £
Mo AEFEETEME (E4A) UEHERR
BER BRATENRRHEBEMBEELRN
B 73 3 1TV AR 10 E B BV E BR K T U
BNBASEREEFEBBERAER
HEER TEFGHAOTNAENESRE-
EEFBHENEARNBHA-TETRE
T—RA=THMNEBEREEAN-
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

29.

RESERVES (continued)

PRC statutory reserve

General reserve fund

The subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to transfer at
least 10% of their profit after taxation, as determined under the
PRC accounting regulations, to the general reserve fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of their respective registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve must be made before the
distribution of dividends to shareholders.

The general reserve fund can be used to make good losses
and convert into share capital by the issue of new shares to
shareholders in proportion to their existing equity holdings.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries.

Share award reserve

Details of the Company’s Share Award Plan and the shares
awarded under the plan are included in note 28 to the financial
statements.

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the funds in the share
premium account are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

2022 Annual Report —& — —F &£}

29. #Ew

PEEE R

—REEZ

TR RFERYM B AR AR B H M P 5t
REEENRRBERNRDI10%E —iRH#
BT BEERBEREIESEEMES
B950%73 LE ~ TR B UL BB RN D IKRE TR
RAEST

—fRFHT AR EEERUZRRE
BERRLEAREZBITHRMN S NEBIRS
B

ER A
ERRESERERINNBEADMBERE
FREEMPIAERZRR

B 17 BB fet 5
AABBIRN R SR RRF AR B
BYBR D BIREIS > B R B ¥R AR Y 528

B8
ROSERNEASIAESHE AT ZEE
B REMSBHSARE MEEEZD K
REBHZ ARRENNAEETBE
TEEIRES ARMEERTHNES
AT ARBRER



30.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Net assets disposed of:
Right-of-use assets
Property, plant and equipment
Accruals and other payables

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the disposal of a subsidiary is as follows:

Cash consideration
Cash and bank balances disposed of

30. HE—XMELQE

HENBFEE !
ERESE
L ENN NG
RITERMHEMELTRIE

AN
RE

REAE
HERIRE RIRTTHERR

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of HE—KHB AT RS KM

the disposal of a subsidiary

REFEVWRAFE

2022
—E__fF

RMB’000
ARBETFT

18,047
2,087
(274)

19,860
500

20,360

20,360

HE-—RMBRARANRERREFEBYR
ABEDFWMT

2022
—E__fF

RMB’000
AR¥T T

20,360

20,360
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31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

31.

2022 Annual Report —& — —F &£}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF  31.

CASH FLOWS

(@

(b)

Major non-cash transactions
There were no major non-cash transactions during the

AHRERERMNE
@ FEFRERS

REMPHRFETETBZIFRER

current financial year. 5 °
Changes in liabilities arising from financing b)) MEIZBEEZEREH
activities
2022 ===
Bank and
other loans Lease liabilities
RITREMEFR HEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT AR®TTT
At 31 December 2021 R-E-—%+"H=+—H 876,299 9,496
Changes from financing cash flows FREIRE S EF) (132,115) (2,496)
New leases MAEE = 1,130
Interest expenses MEMAZ - 386
Exchange realignment bE 2 5 - 203
At 31 December 2022 RIEZZF+ZF=+—H 744,184 8,719
2021 —=—_f
Bank and
other loans Lease liabilities
RITREMER HEaE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT
At 31 December 2020 R_B_FF+_HA=+—H 1,004,414 11,189
Changes from financing cash flows FREIRE TS~ EH) (128,115) (2,893)
New leases HHEE = 1,461
Interest expenses MERZ = 489
Exchange realignment bE S oA EE - (750)
At 31 December 2021 KRB —%+"HA=+—H 876,299 9,496




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FI.OWS (continued)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in the
statement of cash flows is as follows:

KEEHN
G BEEI N

Within operating activities
Within financing activities

32. COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

Contracted for property, plant and
equipment

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

31. EHEERERME @

(o THERERUER
HARSABRNAERS RHE

REANE -

2022 2021

-z T4
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBETTT
211 604

2,496 2,893

2,707 3,497

32. Kk

PRREAR > FEBNEREFEUT

31 December 31 December

TYE - BERREEFTHN

2022 2021
g B
+—-B=+—H +—-A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARMEF T
208,855 259,247
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@ Transactions with companies controlled by one of
the Company’s directors

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group leased offices and manufacturing
facilities located in Mainland China from
Zhejiang Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd. (“Kingdom
Creative”) and incurred operating lease charges
of RMB476,000 (2021: RMB476,000). Mr.
Ren Weiming has a controlling equity interest
in Kingdom Creative. Rental and other terms
for these lease arrangements were negotiated
between the parties on an arm’s length basis with
reference to the then prevailing market rates.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group purchased electricity from Zhejiang Yuyuan
Solar Co., Ltd. with an amount of RMB2,619,000
(2021: RMB2,172,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has a
controlling equity interest in this company. The
price of electricity was made with a discount rate
of approximately 3.5% to the market prices.

During the year ended 31 December 2022,
the Group purchased chemicals, additives
and tools from Zhejiang Jinxiu Jiangnan Silk
Co., Ltd. with an amount of RMB2,284,000
(2021: RMB3,345,000). Mr. Ren Weiming has a
controlling equity interest in this company. The
purchase of raw materials was made according
to published prices and conditions offered by the
supplier to its major customers.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Group leased cars from and leased an office to
Interconnect Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd., which incurred lease charges of RMB319,000
(2021: RMB356,000) and generated lease income
of RMB171,000 (2021: RMB343,000). Mr. Ren
Weiming has a controlling equity interest in
Interconnect Financial Leasing (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd.’s parent company, Kingdom Creative. Rental
and other terms for these lease arrangements were
negotiated between the parties on an arm’s length
basis with reference to the then prevailing market
rates.

2022 Annual Report —& — —F &£}

33. FAEARS
BHRAAT—RERIZEFINAE
ETHXRS

(@

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(vi)

REBz_—_=2_—_+_58
= t+—HLEFE  AEEEF
TeZAIERNMBRAR (&
ZAXE)) BEZEMMFE
REMNBRAEREERmE FI
EENKREHEERAARKE
476,000 (ZEZ—F : AR
#476,0007T) o {E#4ERR A £
BEEZRENERER ZE
HEZHZHE R EMERTD

EH2EZERFHHERFH
mo

REBEE_ZE-_—_&F£+=A8
=t+—HIEFE AEBUA
E12,619,0007c (“E-_—F:
ARM2 172,0007T) @EHIE
BEARBERARIEE - F4EHH
%E%ﬁﬁ;ﬁ@ﬂm?‘“ﬂﬂ“*o
EERMEITEN3.5%°

RBEE_ZET=-__&F+=A~
=t+—HIEEE AEBBEN
ISR IR AR R A B IR
A ANREHE2,284,0007T (—
=~ —4F . AR¥3,345,0007T)
BAEE S AINE K T B {1
MR R R N BIERRE
m o R R Th R R L FE R
BEFEFFRENEAHE
I RARHE/EL ©

RBEE_ZT__£+_H
—t+t—HLEEE XEEHE
BERMEEE (LB AEAT
FAERHE » WHZA & HE i
NE - EEXETHEERARKE
319,000 (CE-—F : AR
#%356,00070) I EWAAE
171,000 (CE_Z—%F : A
EE#£343,00070) o T4 E
BEEEEREHEE (B AR
N EA B 2 ZRIZERIER
HmeozEHEZH ek
HMER T HE S 2E ZRFH
BAFE o



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

Short term employee benefits ZHEE R
Post-employment benefits BRI R E A

Further details of directors’” and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)
(ii) and (a)(iii) above are also disclosed as connected
transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

33.

FIERFR 5 @

(b) FTEETFEEBRASHMHEE

2022 2021
B F T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBTT
5,315 4,976

89 105

5,404 5,081

EShRSTHAEMENE—TFEH

NIRRT

SR 5 (a) (i) Kz () (1) IR Ko BY BRI 5 32
STRE LT RBBI4AZRBERRAER

o
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31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

BRENDENEMTA
RBEHF > SERNEMTANKRESHE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: mr:
2022 B
Financial assets THEE

Financial assets

at fair value Financial
through other assets
comprehensive at amortised
income cost Total
BRAREE
StAHME@E BEHM A
Wz hY Bl BR A9
THMEE TREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREF AREF
Trade receivables FEU B 57 BRX = 272,747 272,747
Notes receivable et 153,520 - 153,520
Financial assets included in deposits 5t A$f<& K EL A FEUGRIER
and other receivables TREE = 7,708 7,708
Pledged deposits BIRER - 61,900 61,900
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEY - 467,469 467,469
153,520 809,824 963,344
Financial liabilities EHMEE
Financial
liabilities Financial
at fair value liabilities
through profit at amortised
or loss cost Total
BARGEE YR SE B A
STARER HERAY
EHaME ERIBME Wt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Interest-bearing bank and SHRIBTRAMBES
other borrowings — 752,903 752,903
Financial liabilities included in StAHMEMNRIERTERRER
other payables and accruals NERERE = 149,971 149,971
Dividend payable FERTRE B - 307 307
Trade and notes payables et B 2 IR eI R - 367,096 367,096
- 1,270,277 1,270,277
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B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

34. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 34.

(continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

REMNSTENEMIAE®
RIREMF SEHSRIANKESHE

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: mE @
(continued)
2021 BT
Financial assets EMEE
Financial
assets
at fair value Financial
through other assets
comprehensive at amortised
income cost Total
BANBE
STAEMEE FrighiH pl A
Wz Y FIBR Y
TRIEE TREE A5t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREF T
Trade receivables FEWE FBR TR = 398,715 398,715
Notes receivable FEWEE 114,017 = 114,017
Financial assets included in deposits &t A3 <& S H A EUERIERT
and other receivables TREE = 13,902 13,902
Pledged deposits EIRER - 44,730 44,730
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEBY = 249,213 249,213
114,017 706,560 820,577
Financial liabilities EHMasE
Financial
liabilities Financial
at fair value liabilities
through profit at amortised
or loss cost Total
BANBE R pl A
SFABREH FIRREY
Bl )=k THEE Est
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT ARETF T
Interest-bearing bank and other ERITRAMES
borrowings - 885,795 885,795
Financial liabilities included in other &t A EL{th FE{I B K
payables and accruals FEiREANE/MERE = 167,654 167,654
Derivative financial instruments mEESRTE 1,275 = 1,275
Dividend payable FEATIR S - 182 182
Trade and notes payables FEfT B R ET Z5 - 293,920 293,920
1275 1,347,551 1,348,826
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that

35. EMITANARABERAAEBES
ARIR1E
FEESHTANEESBERAREE B

FRESEEAANBESEMBEERIN W

reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: Tr
Carrying amounts Fair values
REEE NREE
2022 2021 2022 2021
—g°C “B_-fF B _"ET_—fF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AREBTT ARBTR AREBETR
Financial assets ERMEE
Debt instruments at fair value through BARBESAHEMEE
other comprehensive income WM EH IR 153,520 114,017 153,520 114,017
Financial liabilities EMAR
Derivative financial instruments TEEmMIA

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, pledged deposits,
current interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade and
notes payables, dividend payable, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments. The fair values of the non-current interest-bearing
other loans have been calculated by discounting the expected
future cash flows using rates currently available for instruments
with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities which
is approximate to their carrying amounts. The changes in fair
value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing other loans as at 31 December 2022 were
assessed to be insignificant.
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35.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance
manager is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The finance manager reports directly to the chief
financial officer and the audit committee. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
approved by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with
various counterparties, principally financial institutions with
AAA credit ratings. Derivative financial instruments, including
forward currency contracts, are measured using valuation
techniques similar to forward pricing and swap models, using
present value calculations. The models incorporate various
market observable inputs including the credit quality of
counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates and
interest rate curves. The carrying amounts of forward currency
contracts are the same as their fair values.

The fair values of debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available
for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining
maturities. The fair values have been assessed to be
approximate to their carrying amounts.

35.
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31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

35.

ERMITAENLAABERAREBES
RERE @

DRABEZHREE
TREBLNAEEEHMIANAABET=

FIRERE
RANRBESENEE:

Fair value measurement using

RAUTHBETNAABERE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
31 December markets inputs inputs
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZEITF REBEME EAURE EATUER
+—A HRE BAE BAE
=E—=E F—/E - B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREBFTRT ARBFT ARETR
Notes receivable LN EE 153,520 - 153,520 -
Fair value measurement using
FEUTEHBEETHAABEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
31 December markets inputs inputs
2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
ZEIF  REBEME EATERE EAFUEZR
+=8 HYERE BAE BAE
=+—H £—E B BB
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETRT AREBTT ARETR
Notes receivable W EE 114,017 - 114,017 =
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

35. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchycontinued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

Financial liabilities at fair value through B AABEFA
profit or loss - foreign exchange forward ~ BEHEHEE
contracts —SMNEERHAEH

Financial liabilities at fair value through ~ $&ARBEST A

profit or loss — foreign exchange forward ~ BHEMEREE
contracts —SEEHEHN

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were
no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value
measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair

value measurements (2021: Nil).

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

35. ERMTAENAABERAREESE
RERE @
AABESFREE @
BAREBENENERE

Fair value measurement using

RAUTHBETNAAGBEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

31 December markets inputs inputs

2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

TEITE RERTE  EXJER EXTUERE

+ZA KR E BWAE BWAE

=+—H 5B F/E F=E

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT ARBTn ARETT ARETR
Fair value measurement using

RAUNTEREETHNAABENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

31 December markets inputs inputs

2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

TR -F RERDS  EXURE EXTHER

+2A BB BWAE BWAE

=t—H B F_E s=fE

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®ETT ARBTR ARERTT ARETR

1,275 - 1,275 -

REE_T-__F+-RB=+—HLHF
B ARBEFEES ERF_EZE
HEER TEEAS-EEE=EE8H

(CBEZ—FH)o
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31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial liabilities,
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank loans, trade and
notes payables, dividend payable and other payables. The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the

other than

Group’s operations. The Group has various financial assets
such as trade and notes receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents that arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations
and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks which are
summarised below. The Group’s accounting policies in
relation to derivatives are set out in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
loans with floating interest rates. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax for
the year (through the impact on the floating rate borrowings).
The change in the interest rates has no impact on the Group’s
equity excluding retained profits.

2022 —E-TC
RMB AR
RMB AR
2021 &
RMB AR
RMB AR

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has foreign
currency sales and purchases and certain trade receivables,
payables and bank balances that are denominated in US$,
EUR and HK$, which are currencies other than the functional
currencies of the Group’s subsidiaries, and expose the Group
to foreign currency risk.

36.

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

HERAEREIERERBE @

FMERE @

TRETEMEEMEBHR SR AEH
FRFRANREH HF R SIR 0] SEEEF I
RE GEaHFHFIXREENTE) - F=X
EEHAEBNED (RERFIERIN I

B 488
o

(Decrease)/ Increase/
increase in (decrease) in
interest rate profit before tax
F=E PR AT EF

(F%) /Lt# B, G
RMB’000

ARETTT

(1%) 6,880
1% (6,880)

(1%) 8,201
1% (8,201)

5 LB
SNEREBSRENNBEREHMENTR T
BENARBERNRREEZRERNE
R AEBENIIEEE - ETRKEZIR
R A RRIR B SR AT 465 R A 3F DU A S [ B
BABRINEERSE  MUET BTk
AiE ) EAEREH MG -
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B MR R M5

31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

36.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by entering into
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its exposure
to fluctuations on the translation into RMB of its foreign
operations of sales in US$ and EUR, as described in note 21
to the financial statements. It is the Group's policy to ensure
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by buying
or selling foreign currencies at a fixed rate where necessary
to address short term imbalances. Management will continue
to monitor foreign exchange exposure and will continue to
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure by
using financial instruments such as foreign currency forward
contracts.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in the US$, EUR and HK$
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value
of monetary assets and liabilities including foreign currency

36.

derivatives).
Year ended 31 December 2022 BEZZT”Z
+ZA=+—HLEEFE
If RMB weakens against US$ MARERETHESS
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARERETER

2022 Annual Report —& — —F &£}

MEAMEEEERBE @
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M FERRMEE2 1Pk » KEBFEBET 1L
INEREA G A ERBINETUETK
Bl ThENEEREA AR BRIEEHNE
S M B IREINER R - AEBBBES
REZERFZBRECEXE ANE LI
ME R SR AG R S 17 > DU R B R R BR IR T R
A2 OK I o B 18 [ ) A 4 B5 120 SINBE JL e »
WHEEE BB BERERTE INE=ER
B HHREAINE @ o

TRETEMEEMEHTER A& H
BRIGAD G M H E T T B T EERGIE
AREZFNHERE ANEKEEKRAER
(BIEINETTETR) NARBEES) -

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax

SMESEESR FRIZ AT
A (FEK) i, G
% RMB’000

AR®TTT

5 26,861
(5) (26,861)
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. MBEAMEEBEEREE®

AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued) SMES ELBE
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
GNEE [ BRAR A& A
EF (FER) w@m, CRiL)
% RMB’000
AREFIT
Year ended 31 December 2021 BHE_Z_—&F
+ZA=+—HILHFE
If RMB weakens against US$ MARERETHESS 5 20,989
If RMB strengthens against US$ MARERETER (5) (20,989)
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) in increase
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
Sh SRR FRFR A &R
A (FE) Gre2L) /g0
% RMB’000
AR¥TT
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-_ZS_-_—
+ZBA=+—HLFE
If RMB weakens against EUR MARBRENTTES 5 (1,298)
If RMB strengthens against EUR MARBE REUTER (5) 1,298
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31 December 2022 —ZE__#+_F=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. UHRAMEEBZERER @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SMES ELBE
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) in increase
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
GNEE [ 5?$ﬁﬁﬁ;ﬁﬂ
EF (FER) ) 1N
% RMB’000
AREFIT
Year ended 31 December 2021 BHE_Z_—&F
+ZA=+—HILHFE
If RMB weakens against EUR MAREREITESS 5 (3,445)
If RMB strengthens against EUR MARERETER (5) 3,445
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) in increase
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
Sh SRR I“ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬂ
A (FE) L) 1N
% RMB’000
AR¥TT
Year ended 31 December 2022 BHE—_ZS_-_—
+ZB=+—HLFE
If RMB weakens against HK$ MARBRBITES 5 (145)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ MARBERBITER (5) 145
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

B HM B RRMEE

31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

36. WEEIMGEREEZERBER @

Foreign currency risk (continued) S R B @)
Increase/ (Decrease)/
(decrease) in increase
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
SMBEER BRI AT a A
EF (FER) GRiZL) /1810
%o RMB’000
AREETTT

Year ended 31 December 2021 BHE_ZT_—4%
+TZR=+—HLEE

If RMB weakens against HK$ MARERBITESS 5 (2,636)
If RMB strengthens against HK$ MARERBTER (5) 2,636

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and notes receivables and deposits and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to credit risk are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount.

Customer credit risk is managed by the Group’s established
policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Credit quality of customers is assessed through
credit verification procedures.

EERE
EERRSERSF ARG RERTERE
MIANERGNETHNEEMERME
BRER cEENEERREERE
R B 7 ARk R FE U SRR A R 48 & e H At
BWRRIE - BEEECHFIEERR L&
EEEERR -~EENEXREFERRSE
TEENRERFETESN G

EREERBRAEEEREREERR
EEMNRERR - EFRETEETERE-
ERNEEEREBERRBEREFETT
fige
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31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. MBHEAMREEERRBER @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERR @
Maximum exposure and year-end staging = E R R F AT
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum TRETENTEEEEBRNEEER
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, REmEE ZEEBEREB2REEHER
which is mainly based on past due information unless other RIFEHMBERBER T HIBERAIIE
information is available without undue cost or effort, and year- HENEIER) RN+ B =+—HFAR
end staging classification as at 31 December. The amounts B PSR scmEEREMRLE-

presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2022 RIEZZF+ZH=+—H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+=f8R
BHiEE
5 EHBMEERH
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
F1PER F2MEE FIMEE BEA %
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT NG S ARBTR ARBTT

Trade receivables* MU & 5 BR R - - - 273,073 273,073
Notes receivable — Normal** e Z 3 — IE &+ 153,520 = = = 153,520
Financial assets included in deposits 5t AJ8% & E A EUFIE

and other receivables NEMEE

— Normal** =IER 7,708 = = = 7,708
Pledged deposits [REGRETEZA

— Not yet past due — BRI 61,900 = = = 61,900
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY

— Not yet past due —HFREH 467,469 - - - 467,469

690,597 - - 273,073 963,670
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31 December 2022 —ZFE__#+_FH=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. HHEEAMREEBRREE @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) FEERM @
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) 5 R R R F A TR ()
As at 31 December 2021 KN _E_—F+"A=+—H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+ZER
EHEE
BB 2HRHEEERR
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
PEE: LR FIMBE BEH %
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT NG S ARETT ARETFT AREFT
Trade receivables* WEH&%% BETA* - - - 399,627 399,627
Notes receivable ~ Normal** ERRE-ER 114,017 - - - 114,017
Financial assets included in deposits ﬁ/\ﬁ%&ﬂfﬁ%%ﬂﬁ
and other receivables NEMEE
— Normal** =IER 13,902 - - - 13,902
Pledged deposits BHEFER
—Not yet past due —HARE 44,730 - - - 44,730
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY
— Not yet past due —HFREH 249,213 - - - 249,213
421,862 - - 399,627 821,489
= For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * FLZKEE AR B 1L 7 % T LR 1 B FE I

approach for impairment, information based on the provision
matrix is disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.

o The credit quality of theses financial assets is considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise,
the credit quality of the financial assets is considered to be
“doubttul”.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral.
Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty and by geographical region. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group as
the customer bases of the Group'’s trade receivables are widely
dispersed in different sectors.

EGRAME » BB HEEENE % E
R EERAME19

“ RETHEBENGEEEZICHE KA
WA [IF=) > A B E RN KRS
KK = E RSB R R EIE N -
TR R EENEEEZ SRR R
AR

AR AEREZRERTEEEREFNE=
HETR S ALBAKRBIERm - FE5%E
PRBLRER HFARMEERE B
REEERKREZERMNEREREZD
BRAEDH HAERTEEREESE
RS o
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31 December 2022 —ZE -+ _F=+—H

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. MBREAMEEEREREE®
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk e E R
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as THRAEENREARNESHEETH
at the end of the reporting period, based on contractual BA EELHRITERMLRD
undiscounted payments, was as follows:
As at 31 December 2022
KB+ -A=+-AH
Less than 3to12 1to5 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
BrEX  OR=ER =E+_fR —E5f SREE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEBTT ARBTRT AEREBTT ARETR ARETR ARET=:
Interest-bearing bank and other St ESRITREMEE
borrowings (excluding lease (FERERESR)
liabilities) - 249,031 454,554 60,000 - 763,585
Lease liabilities HEEE - 628 1,718 3,196 4,655 10,197
Dividend payable R E 307 - - - - 307
Trade and notes payables NS 31,664 286,327 49,104 = = 367,095
Other payables and accruals HttEATIERERER 149,971 - - - - 149,971
181,942 535,986 505,376 63,196 4,655 1,291,155
As at 31 December 2021
RZF_-E+-A=+-H
Less than 3to12 Ttob More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
BEX OKR=EAR =Et+7#EA —ERf SRRE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEEFRE ARBFTT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTx
Interest-bearing bank and other ST ESRITREMEE
borrowings (excluding lease (FEERESR)
liabilities) - 241,690 595,945 50,000 - 887,635
Lease liabilities RE&E - 665 1,961 5,906 4,229 12,761
Dividend payable RS 182 - - - - 182
Trade and notes payables B ERRT R ENZE 28,608 204,662 60,650 - - 293,920
Other payables and accruals HitEARERERER 167,654 - - - - 167,654
196,444 447,017 658,556 55,906 4,229 1,362,152
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders” value.

The Group regards total equity as capital and manages
its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in light of
changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the Group’s objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, trade and notes
payables and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.
Capital includes total equity. The gearing ratios as at the end of
the reporting periods were as follows:

36.
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HERAEREIERERBE @

BEHXEE
FEBEAEENEZERARELAER
TRSERRE ) TR RRENERLER
UFEEBRBRRFINEAER

FEBREDBEGERERAREEAEER
R WRFEBERRNEBEHBE S
P RARERRE 2EEAEDR
RIKNHIRE -ARREEERHEITH
BB -REBEE_Z-_F+ZHB=+—H

T F+"B=+—HLEFE 'K
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. MMBEAMEEBEREE®

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)

Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings (note 25)
Trade and notes payables
Other payables (note 24)
Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt
Total equity

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

2022 Annual Report — & — " £

BEXEE @

31 December 31 December
2022 2021
B _F T
+=—B=+—H +—_HA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARET T

SERTREMEE
(Hta£25) 752,903 885,795
PR B Z R ER 367,096 293,920
H e =IE (B5#24) 141,921 165,473
B IRERIREEEY (467,469) (249,213)
B3 %58 794,451 1,095,975
TETR AR EE 1,487,990 1,352,639
BEARKMERFEE 2,282,441 2,448,614
BELEXR 35% 45%




COMPANY

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Dividend payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves (note)

Total equity

FRBEE
KRB ARNKE

MEBEE
FEUKFY BB A BRI
HL A FE URRIE
REeMBEFEY

RENEERE

REBERE
RSB AR RIE
BARE

neamEER
MEBEEFE

BEEMBER
mEEE

BEFE

.

W
BETIRA
& (H1a2)
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AT BRI E
BEARBERBEAARNTBRRAENE
B
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
—E-CH =BT
+-—B=+—H +-—BA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETF T
373,363 373,362
283,152 335,068
4,360 4,083
628 391
288,140 339,542
45,452 61,656
307 182
45,759 61,838
242,381 277,704
615,744 651,066
615,744 651,066
6,329 6,329
609,415 644,737
615,744 651,066

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#ZRERAE
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37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

37. BFRATHBRRAR @

38.

39.

Note: Mt -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RABEBERRNT :
Share  Contributed  Share award Treasury Retained
premium surplus reserve shares profits Total
R BARE ROREGHE R REHR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AR%TR  ARBTz  AREBTT ARETRT  ARETR
At 1 January 2021 RZ2_—%-F-H 269,226 370,213 - (13,305) 21,962 648,096
Loss for the year ERES - - - - (3,359) (3,359)
At31 December 2021 and RIBZ-#+ZA=+-Bk
1 January 2022 “2-"%—-f-H 269,226 370,213 - (13,305) 18,603 044,737
Loss for the year FREE - - - (2,969) (2,969)
Final 2021 dividend declared BER_Z_—FRHRE - - - (32,353) (32,353)
At 31 December 2022 RZE_"F+"B=1+—H 269,226 370,213 - (13,305) (16,719) 609,415
Contributed surplus BARER

Contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value of the
shares of Hong Kong Kingdom at the date of the Reorganisation over
the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company in exchange

therefor.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified and
restated to conform with the current year’s presentation and
accounting treatment.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March
2023.

2022 Annual Report — & — " £

38.

39.

WABBREREHEARERSERNHNA
AEBEBHAADB/RRMETHRME
BRYEEE -

EERE
ETHRSBEENHOBLET UFE
FEEN2FIRGHERS R

HESHIEHRE

EXgERN B =F=A"+/\BittE
RIZET B A GHIFFREK
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